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Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Annual Report are fodaAlaoking in nature as defined in the Private Siiesr
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements] ather written and oral forwaldoking statements made by 1
Company from time to time, may relate to, amongnothings, such matters as planned and expecteatitap
increases and utilization; anticipated capital sigggy environmental matters; legal proceedingspexpe to, and
effects of hedging of, raw material and energy asid foreign currencies; global and regional egdagppolitical,
and business conditions; expectations, strategiesplans for individual assets and products, satgnas well as
for the whole Company; cash requirements and usagailable cash; financing plans; pension expenses
funding; anticipated restructuring, divestituredaonsolidation activities; cost reduction and colng¢fforts and
targets and integration of acquired businessesselplans and expectations are based upon certad@mlying
assumptions, and are in turn based upon intertisl@es and analyses of current market conditiosteends,
management plans and strategies, economic consligom other factors. Actual results could diffextemnially from
expectations expressed in the forward-looking statgs if one or more of the underlying assumpteoms
expectations proves to be inaccurate or is unegliZertain important factors that could causeaeasults to
differ materially from those in the forward-lookistatements are included with such forwhrdking statements a
in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finah€londition and Results of Operations — Forwaraing
Statements May Prove Inaccurate.”

Item 1. Business
Basis of Presentation

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the term “Cedae” refers to Celanese Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, and not its subsidiaries. The ternes‘@ompany,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Celaneaed its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The termditase US” refers to our subsidiary, Celanese USirtys LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, formerly knovas BCP Crystal US Holdings Corp., a Delaware cfpom,
and not its subsidiaries. The term “Purchaser’reefe our subsidiary, Celanese Europe Holding GrébEb. KG,
formerly known as BCP Crystal Acquisition GmbH & GGG, a German limited partnership, and not its
subsidiaries, except where otherwise indicated.

Overview

Celanese Corporation was formed in 2004 when atifi§i of The Blackstone Group purchased 84% of the
ordinary shares of Celanese GmbH, formerly know@elanese AG, a diversified German chemical company
Celanese Corporation was incorporated in 2005 utheelaws of the state of Delaware and its shaegraded on
the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “QBiring the period from 2005-2007, Celanese Corpamat
purchased the remaining 16% interest in CelaneseHsm

We are a leading global integrated producer of ¢balisiand advanced materials. We are one of théligor
largest producers of acetyl products, which arerinediate chemicals for nearly all major industréeswell as a
leading global producer of high performance engie@@olymers that are used in a variety of highueand-use
applications. As an industry leader, we hold gephially balanced global positions and particigatdiversified
end-use markets. Our operations are primarily &gtat North America, Europe and Asia. We combine a
demonstrated track record of execution, strongoperénce built on our principles and objectives, armdear focus
on growth and value creation.

Our large and diverse global customer base prignaohsists of major companies in a broad arraypadfistries.
For the year ended December 31, 2008, approxima8&8iy of our net sales were to customers locatétbitth
America, 43% to customers in Europe and Africa, 26%ustomers in Asia and Australia and 3% to qusts in
South America. We have property, plant and equignmetie United States of $732 million and outsiide United
States of $1,739 million. For more information netiag our property, plant and equipment, see Naa®Note 25
to the consolidated financial statements.

Market Industry

This Annual Report on Form 10-K includes industayadobtained from industry publications and suneys
well as our own internal company surveys. Thirdpardustry publications, surveys and forecastegally state
that the information contained therein has beeninbt from sources believed to be reliable. Thestants
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regarding Celanese’s market position in this docuraee based on information derived from, amongmsththe
2008 Stanford Research Institute International CicairEconomics HandbookCMAI 2008 World Methanol
Analysis, Tecnon OrbiCherAcetic Acid and Vinyl Acetate World Sunikiyd quarter 2008 report and Synthetic
Latex Polymer Reports from Kline and Co.

Segment Overview

We operate principally through four business segmekxdvanced Engineered Materials, Consumer Spexsal
Industrial Specialties and Acetyl Intermediates:. feother details on our business segments, see Roto the
consolidated financial statements. The table bdlogtrates each segment’s net sales to exterrsibmers for the
year ended December 31, 2008, as well as each s¢'s major products and end-use markets.

Advanced
Engineered Materials Consumer Specialties Industrial Specialties Acetyl Intermediates
2008 Net Sale® $1,061 million $1,155 million $1,406 million $3,199 million
Key Products « Polyacetal products « Acetate tow « Polyvinyl alcohol « Acetic acid
(“POM") « Acetate flake (“PVOH") « Vinyl acetate monom
« Ultra-high molecular ¢ Sunett® sweetener « Polyvinyl acetate (“VAM”)
weight polyethylene  « Sorbates « Conventional « Acetic anhydride
(“GUR ®™") emulsions « Acetaldehyde
« Liquid crystal « Vinyl acetate ethylene < Ethyl acetate
polymers (“LCP") emulsions « Butyl acetate
* Polyphenylene sulfide « Low-density « Formaldehyde
(“PPS") polyethylene resins
 Polybutylene (“LDPE”)
terephthalate (“PBT") « Ethylene vinyl acetate
* Polyethylene (“EVA”) resins and
terephthalate (“PET") compounds

« Long fiber reinforced
thermoplastics

(“LFRT")
Major End -Use Markets * Fuel system « Filter products « Paints « Paints
components * Beverages « Coatings « Coatings
» Conveyor belts « Confections * Adhesives * Adhesives
« Battery separators « Baked goods « Building products « Lubricants
« Electronics « Pharmaceuticals * Glass fibers « Detergents
« Seat belt mechanisms « Textiles « Pharmaceuticals
¢ Other automotive « Paper ¢ Films
« Appliances and « Flexible packaging « Textiles
electronics ¢ Lamination products ¢ Inks
« Filtrations « Medical tubing « Plasticizers
« Coatings « Automotive parts « Esters
* Medical Devices « Solvents

« Telecommunication

(1 Consolidated net sales of $6,823 million for tharyended December 31, 2008 also includes $2 miltioret
sales from Other Activities, which is attributalddeour captive insurance companies. Acetyl Interiated’ net
sales exclude int-segment sales of $676 million for the year endeckbder 31, 200¢

Advanced Engineered Materials

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment devetppsuces and supplies a broad portfolio of high
performance technical polymers for applicationumoaotive and electronics products, as well asratbasumer
and industrial applications. Together with our t&tgic affiliates, we are a leading participanttie global technical
polymers industry. The primary products of Advanégdjineered Materials are POM, PPS, LFRT, PBT, REIR
®and LCP. POM, PPS, LFRT, PBT and PET are usedinoad range of products including automotive
components, electronics, appliances and indusipiplications. GURR is used in battery separators, conveyor belts,
filtration equipment, coatings and medical devi¢&dnary end markets for LCP are electrical andtedaics.
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Consumer Specialtie

Our Consumer Specialties segment consists of oatae Products and Nutrinova businesses. Our Acetat
Products business primarily produces and supptieste tow, which is used in the production o€filproducts. We
also produce acetate flake which is processedsicetate fiber in the form of a tow band. Our Nwvia business
produces and sells Sun@tta high intensity sweetener, and food protectigmedients, such as sorbates, for the
food, beverage and pharmaceuticals industries.

Industrial Specialties

Our Industrial Specialties segment includes our Bions, PVOH and AT Plastics businesses. Our Emssi
business is a global leader which produces a hpozdiict portfolio, specializing in vinyl acetatérgiene emulsion
and is a recognized authority on low VOC (volatitganic compounds), an environmentdtigndly technology. A
a global leader, our PVOH business produces a lpoetblio of performance PVOH chemicals enginedretheet
specific customer requirements. Our emulsions andHP products are used in a wide array of applicetio
including paints and coatings, adhesives, buildng construction, glass fiber, textiles and pafi@rPlastics offers
a complete line of low-density polyethylene andcsaléy ethylene vinyl acetate resins and compouAdsPlastics’
products are used in many applications includiegifile packaging films, lamination film productatimelt
adhesives, medical tubing, automotive carpetingsahal cell encapsulation films.

Acetyl Intermediates

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetc
anhydride and acetate esters. These products ageeallg used as starting materials for colorardts, adhesives,
coatings, medicines and more. Other chemicals mextlin this segment are organic solvents and irgdiates for
pharmaceutical, agricultural and chemical products.

Competitive Strengths
We benefit from a number of competitive strengthsluding the following:
Leading Market Positions

We believe that we are a leading global integratediucer of acetyl, acetate and vinyl emulsion pobsl
Advanced Engineered Materials and our strategibiadéfs, Polyplastics Co., Ltd. (“Polyplastics”)dKorea
Engineering Plastics Co., Ltd. ("KEPCQ"), are lgaglproducers and suppliers of engineered polynmekioith
America, Europe and the Asia/Pacific region. Oadkrship positions are based on our large shagbél
production capacity, operating efficiencies, prefary technology and competitive cost structuresuinmajor
product lines.

Proprietary Production Technology and Operating Eagiise

Our production of acetyl products employs induségding proprietary and licensed technologies idiclg oul
proprietary AOPIug™ technology for the production of acetic acid andnit#ge™ and VAntage Plud" vinyl acetat:
monomer technology. AOPIOY enables increased raw material efficiencies, layparating costs and the ability to
expand plant capacity with minimal investment. Vége™ and VAntage Plug” enable significant increases in
production efficiencies, lower operating costs amleases in capacity at ten to fifteen perceirthefcost of buildin
a new plant.

Low Cost Producer

Our competitive cost structures are based on ptamuand purchasing economies of scale, vertidabiration,
technical expertise and the use of advanced tecbiesl.

Global Reach

We operate thirty-two production facilities throwugt the world. We participate in strategic alliasn@éhich
operate nine additional facilities. Our infrastwet of manufacturing plants, terminals, warehoaseksales offices
provides us with a competitive advantage in andiiiig and meeting the needs of our global and logstomers in
well-established and growing markets, while ourggaphic diversity reduces the potential impact of




Table of Contents

volatility in any individual country or region. Weave a strong, growing presence in Asia, partitplarChina, and
we have a defined strategy to continue this groftin.more information regarding our financial infaation with
respect to our geographic areas, see Note 25 wotisolidated financial statements.

Growth

We aggressively align with our customers and timgirkets to capture growth. We are quickly expanding
Asia, the fastest-growing region in the world, d@r to meet increasing demand for our productgpaks of our
strategy, we also continue to develop new prodaetsindustry-leading production technologies tteivér value-
added solutions for our customers.

Strategic Investments

Our strategic investments have enabled us to g&iess, minimize costs and accelerate growth inmavkets,
while also generating significant cash flow anch@ags. Our equity investments and cost investmesggesent an
important component of our growth strategy. SeeeNsoto the consolidated financial statements aad th
“Investments” subheading of Item 1 for additiongbirmation on our equity and cost investments.

Diversified Products and End-Use Markets

We offer our customers a broad range of productsvinide variety of end-use markets. Our diversifieaduct
lines include paints and coatings, textiles, autiveapplications, consumer and medical applicatigerformance
industrial applications, filter media, paper andkzaging, chemical additives, construction, consuamef industrial
adhesives, and food and beverage applications.praéuct and market diversity reduces the potemtiphct of
volatility in any individual market segment.

Business Strategies

Our strategic foundation is based on the followfimgr pillars which are focused on increasing opagatash
flows, improving profitability, delivering high ratn on investments and increasing shareholder value

Focus

We focus on businesses where we have a sustaisadbleroven competitive advantage. We continue to
optimize our business portfolio in order to achievarket, cost and technology leadership while edjpanour
product mix into higher value-added products.

Investment

We leverage and build on advantaged positionsapi@inize our portfolio of products. In order to irase our
competitive advantage, we have invested in our gavap of businesses through acquisitions; growthdia
bolstered by our integrated chemical complex injMan China; and new applications of our advanaegireeered
polymers products.

Redeployment

We divest non-core assets and revitalize underpeifig businesses. We have divested or exited bssése
where we no longer maintain a competitive advanté¢galso continue to make key strategic decisiomsvitalize
businesses that have significant potential for mapd performance and enhanced efficiency.

Underlying all of these strategies is a culturexdcution and productivity. We continually seek wéy reduce
costs, increase productivity and improve procedsrtelogy. Our commitment to operational excelleiscan
integral part of our strategy to maintain our cxdtantage and productivity leadership.

Business Segments
ADVANCED ENGINEERED MATERIALS

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment devefppsluces and supplies a broad portfolio of high-
performance technical polymers.
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Advanced Engineered Materials’ technical polymergenchemical and physical properties enabling them,
among other things, to withstand extreme tempegatuesist chemical reactions with solvents antstaind
fracturing or stretching. These products are usewide range of performance-demanding applicatiorthe
automotive and electronics sectors as well asharatonsumer and industrial goods.

Advanced Engineered Materials works in concert tgtltustomers to enable innovations and develepaore
enhanced products. Advanced Engineered Materiaisés its efforts on developing new markets andicgtipns
for its product lines, often developing custom fatations to satisfy the technical and processigirements of a
customers applications. For example, Advanced EngineeretéNéds has collaborated with fuel system supplie
develop an acetal copolymer with the chemical amgkict resistance necessary to withstand expostnat wiesel
fuels in the new generation of common rail diesgjiees. The product can also be used in autombielesender
units where it remains stable at the high operatngperatures present in direct-injection diesgirees and can
meet the requirements of the new generation ofusts.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ customer base cengisnarily of a large number of plastic moldensia
component suppliers, which typically supply oridisquipment manufacturers (“OEMs”). Advanced Engiegl
Materials works with these molders and componeppkers as well as directly with the OEMs to deyeémd
improve specialized applications and systems.

Prices for most of these products, particularlycggdized product grades for targeted applicatigesierally
reflect the value added in complex polymer chemigirecision formulation and compounding, and tkiemsive
application development services provided. Theseiafized product lines are not typically suscdpttb cyclical
swings in pricing.

Key Products

POM is sold under the trademark Hostafétm all regions but North America, where it is soldder the
trademark Celcoff . Polyplastics and KEPCO are leading suppliers@¥Pand other engineering resins in the
Asia/Pacific region. POM is used for mechanicatpancluding door locks and seat belt mechanismaytomotive
applications and in electrical, consumer and médaipplications such as drug delivery systems ardsger large
appliances.

The primary raw material for POM is formaldehyddiet is manufactured from methanol. Advanced
Engineered Materials currently purchases formaldehig the United States from our Acetyl Intermegadegment
and, in Europe, manufactures formaldehyde fromhmsed methanol.

GUR®is an engineered material used in heavy-duty aut@mand industrial applications such as car bgtter
separator panels and industrial conveyor beltgjadisas in specialty medical and consumer apphbceti such as
sports equipment and prostheses. GURicro powder grades are used for high-performaittees, membranes,
diagnostic devices, coatings and additives fomttoglastics and elastomers. GBRbers are also used in protect
ballistic applications.

Celstran® and CompeP are long fiber reinforced thermoplastics, which artgextra strength and stiffness,
making them more suitable for larger parts tharveational thermoplastics and are used in autompotive
transportation and industrial applications.

Polyesters such as CelarfeRBT, Celane® PET, Vandaf, a series of PBT-polyester blends and Riteflea
thermoplastic polyester elastomer, are used inda wariety of automotive, electrical and consunpgliaations,
including ignition system parts, radiator grillesgctrical switches, appliance and sensor housliggg,emitting
diodes (“LEDs”") and technical fibers. Raw materi@ispolyesters vary. Base monomers, such as dirheth
terephthalate and purified terephthalic acid (“PJ,Ate widely available with pricing dependent soduer
polyester fiber and packaging resins market camuiti Smaller volume specialty co-monomers for tipgeducts
are typically supplied by a limited number of comias.

Liquid crystal polymers, such as Vecfaare used in electrical and electronics applicatiand for precision
parts with thin walls and complex shapes or on tight cookware applications.
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Fortron®, a PPS product, is used in a wide variety of aotora and other applications, especially those
requiring heat and/or chemical resistance, inclgdirel system parts, radiator pipes and halogep laousings,
often replacing metal. Other possible applicatietds include norwoven filtration devices such as coal fired po'
plants. Fortror® is manufactured by Fortron Industries LLC, Advan&sgjineered Materials’ 50% owned strategic
venture with Kureha Corporation of Japan.

Facilities

Advanced Engineered Materials has polymerizatiommounding and research and technology centers in
Germany, Brazil, China and the United States.

Markets

The following table illustrates the destinatiortlo¢ net sales of the Advanced Engineered Matesegsnent by
geographic region for the years ended Decembe2(®18, 2007 and 2006.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — A@dnced Engineered Materials

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $  Segmen
(In millions, except percentages
North America 36& 34% 38¢ 38% 311 34%
Europe/Africa 553 52% 517 50% 50C 55%
Asia/Australia 10€ 10% 88 8% 55 6%
South Americe 37 4% 37 4% 49 5%
Total 1,061 1,03( 91t

Advanced Engineered Materials’ sales in the Asiamket are made directly and through its strateffitages.
Polyplastics, KEPCO and Fortron Industries are antzd for under the equity method and thereforanwtided in
Advanced Engineered Materials’ consolidated nedssdf Advanced Engineered Materials’ portion af Hales
made by these strategic affiliates were includetth@ntable above, the percentage of sales soldia/Australia
would be substantially higher. A number of Advané&adjineered Materials’ POM customers, particularlthe
appliance, electrical components and certain sexid the electronics/telecommunications fieldsiehaoved
tooling and molding operations to Asia, particyfasbuthern China. In addition to our Advanced Ergied
Materials affiliates, we directly service Asian damd offering our customers global solutions.

Advanced Engineered Materials’ principal customaesconsumer product manufacturers and suppligreto
automotive industry. These customers primarily paedengineered products, and Advanced Engineeréerisla
collaborates with its customers to assist in degualpand improving specialized applications andesys. Advance
Engineered Materials has long-standing relatiorsstijph most of its major customers, but also usstibutors for
its major products, as well as a number of eleatrorarketplaces to reach a larger customer bagsembst of
Advanced Engineered Materials’ product lines, cacts with customers typically have a term of ontwvo years.

Competition

Advanced Engineered Materials’ principal compettimclude BASF AG (“BASF”), E. |. DuPont de Nemours
and Company (“DuPont”), DSM N.V., Sabic Innovat®kastics and Solvay S.A. Smaller regional compegito
include Asahi Kasei Corporation, Mitsubishi Gas @fals, Inc., Chevron Phillips Chemical Company.l..
Braskem S.A., Lanxess AG, Teijin, Sumitomo, Inad dioray Industries Inc.

CONSUMER SPECIALTIES

The Consumer Specialties segment consists of oetate Products and Nutrinova businesses. Our Axetat
Products business primarily produces and supptieste tow, which is used in the production o€filproducts. We
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also produce acetate flake which is processedaicetate fiber in the form of a tow band. Our Nuivia business
produces and sells Sun@tta high intensity sweetener, and food protectigmedients, such as sorbates, for the
food, beverage and pharmaceutical industries.

Key Products

Acetate tow is used primarily in cigarette filtevde produce acetate flake by processing wood pitlp acetic
anhydride. We purchase wood pulp that is made feforested trees from major suppliers and prodeeta
anhydride internally. The acetate flake is thethferr processed into acetate fiber in the form wivaband.
According to the 2008 Stanford Research Institaterhational Chemical Economics Handbook, we azentbrld’s
leading producer of acetate tow, including prodarcof our China ventures.

Sales of acetate tow amounted to approximately 12% and 9% of our consolidated net sales for ey
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respsactivel

We have an approximate 30% interest in three matwiag China ventures, which are accounted faross$
method investments (Note 8) that produce acetake #nd tow. Our partner in each of the venturéseishinese
state-owned tobacco entity, China National TobaZoporation. In addition, approximately 10% of @008
acetate tow sales were sold directly to Chinalahgest single market for acetate tow in the world.

Acesulfame potassium, a high intensity sweeteneketed under the trademark Surfetis used in a variety
beverages, confections and dairy products througheuwvorld. Sunet® pricing for targeted applications reflects
value added by Nutrinova, through consistent produality and reliable supply. Nutrinova’s stratagyo be the
most reliable and highest quality producer of ghrisduct, to develop new product applications anghex into new
markets.

Nutrinova'’s food ingredients business consistdeffroduction and sale of food protection ingretdiesuch as
sorbic acid and sorbates, and high intensity sweeseworldwide. Nutrinova’s food protection ingrexis are
mainly used in foods, beverages and personal cadripts. The primary raw materials for these preglace ketene
and crotonaldehyde. Sorbates pricing is extrematgisive to demand and industry capacity and iseoessarily
dependent on the prices of raw materials.

Facilities

Acetate Products has production sites in the UrBtiades, Mexico, the United Kingdom and Belgiund an
participates in three manufacturing ventures im@&hi

Nutrinova has production facilities in Germanyvadl as sales and distribution facilities in all joraworld
markets.

Markets

The following table illustrates the destinationtloé net sales of the Consumer Specialties segnyent b
geographic region for the years ended Decembe2@®18, 2007 and 2006.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — @aumer Specialties

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $  Segmen
(In millions, except percentages
North America 194 17% 201 18% 204 23%
Europe/Africa 497 43% 427 39% 24¢ 28%
Asia/Australia 415 36% 437 3% 39t 45%
South Americe 51 4% 46 4% 29 4%
Total 1,15¢ 1,117 87¢€
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Sales of acetate tow are principally to the majbatco companies that account for a majority ofldveide
cigarette production. Our contracts with most af customers are entered into on an annual basis.

Nutrinova primarily markets Sunettto a limited number of large multinational and @il customers in the
beverage and food industry under long-term and @recantracts. Nutrinova markets food protectiorréaients
primarily through regional distributors to smalldamedium sized customers and directly through regjisales
offices to large multinational customers in thedaodustry.

Competition

Acetate Products’ principal competitors include dhiChemical Industries Ltd. (“Daicel”), Eastmand@dtical
Corporation (“Eastman”) and Rhodia S.A.

The principal competitors for Nutrinova’s Sun@sweetener are Holland Sweetener Company, The Nuéei
Company, Ajinomoto Co., Inc., Tate & Lyle PLC areveral Chinese manufacturers. In sorbates, Nutainov
competes with Nantong AA, Daicel, Yu Yao/Ningbo,n¢aeng AmeriPac and other Chinese manufacturers of
sorbates.

INDUSTRIAL SPECIALTIES

Our Industrial Specialties segment includes our Bions, PVOH and AT Plastics businesses. Our Emssi
business is a global leader which produces a hpoadiict portfolio, specializing in vinyl acetatégene emulsions
and is a recognized authority on low VOC, an envinentally-friendly technology. As a global leadeuy PVOH
business produces and sells a broad portfolio ddpaance PVOH chemicals engineered to meet sgexifitomer
requirements. AT Plastics offers a complete linowof-density polyethylene and specialty, ethyleig/acetate
resins and compounds.

Key Products

The products in our Emulsions business include entional vinyl and acrylate based emulsions ant-hig
pressure vinyl acetate ethylene emulsions. Emusima made from VAM, acrylate esters and styremne. O
Emulsions business is a leading producer of poljghacetate and vinyl acetate ethylene emulsior&irope. These
products are a key component of water-based acthitd coatings, adhesives, non-wovens, textillessgfiber and
other applications.

Sales from the Emulsions business amounted to gippately 13%, 14% and 14% of our consolidated atds
for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 angl, 286pectively.

PVOH is used in adhesives, building products, papatings, films and textiles. The primary raw miaieto
produce PVOH is VAM, while acetic acid is produ@sda byproduct. Products are sold on a global basis aicdg
vary depending on industry segment and end-usécagiph. According to industry sources on PVOH, ave the
largest North American producer of PVOH and thedtfdrgest producer in the world.

AT Plastics produces lowensity polyethylene and EVA resins and compouhdsdre used in the manufact
of hot melt adhesives, automotive carpeting, latinefilm products, flexible packaging films, medldubing and
solar cell encapsulation films. EVA resins and coonpds are produced in high-pressure reactors ftbgleme and
VAM.

Facilities

Emulsions has production sites in the United Staiesada, China, Spain, Sweden, the Netherlands and
Germany. PVOH has production sites in the UnitedeStand Spain along with sales and distributioititias in
Europe, Asia and South America. During 2008, we glown our Slovenia and United Kingdom facilitiés
Plastics has a production facility in Edmonton, étla, Canada.
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The following table illustrates the destinationtioé net sales of the Industrial Specialties segmgteographi
region for years ended December 31, 2008, 20026606.

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — bustrial Specialties

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $- Segmen
(In millions, except percentages
North America 617 44% 582 43% 60& A7%
Europe/Africa 684 48% 674 50% 601 47%
Asia/Australia 81 6% 69 5% 58 5%
South Americe 24 2% 20 2% 17 1%
Total 1,40¢ 1,34¢ 1,281

Industrial Specialties’ products are sold to a theegroup of regional and multinational custom€rsstomers
for emulsions are manufacturers of water-basedpamd coatings, adhesives, paper, building andtaastion
products, glass fiber, non-wovens and textiles. distomers of the PVOH business, who purchase ynairder
multi-year contracts, are primarily engaged inghaduction of adhesives, paper, films, buildingdurcts and
textiles. Customers of AT Plastics are primarilgaged in the manufacture of adhesives, automotisgonents,
packaging materials, print media and solar energgycts.

Competition

Principal competitors in the Emulsions businestuitie The Dow Chemical Company (“Dow”), Rohm & Haas
Company, BASF, Dairen, Wacker and several smadigional manufacturers.

Principal competitors in the PVOH business incldearay Co., Ltd., DuPont, Chang Chun PetrochenGza
Ltd., The Nippon Synthetic Chemical Industry Cad.land several Chinese manufacturers.

Principal competitors for the AT Plastics EVA resend compounds business include DuPont, ExxonMobil
Chemical, Arkema and several Asian manufacturers.

ACETYL |NTERMEDIATES

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetc
anhydride and acetate esters. Other chemicals peddn this segment are organic solvents and irgdiates for
pharmaceutical, agricultural and chemical products.

Key Products

Acetyls. Acetyls products include acetic acid, VAM, acetithydride and acetaldehyde. Acetic acid is
primarily used to manufacture VAM, PTA and otheetgtderivatives. VAM is used in a variety of adives,
paints, films, coatings and textiles. Acetic anligdiis a raw material used in the production ofute$e acetate,
detergents and pharmaceuticals. Acetaldehyde @jarieedstock for the production of polyols. Add&dnyde is
also used in other organic compounds such as pgsdiwhich are used in agricultural products. Weufecture
acetic acid, VAM and acetic anhydride for our ovae uas well as for sale to third parties.

Acetic acid and VAM, our basic acetyl intermedigtesducts, are impacted by global supply/demand
fundamentals and are cyclical in nature. The ppialciaw materials in these products are ethylehéghwwe
purchase from numerous sources; carbon monoxidehw¥e purchase under long-term contracts; and ameth
which we purchase under long-term and short-temtraots. With the exception of carbon monoxideséheaw
materials are commodity products available fromidewariety of sources.
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Our production of acetyl products employs leadingppietary and licensed technologies, including our
proprietary AOPIug“ technology for the production of acetic acid andnitage™ and VAntage Plud" vinyl acetat
monomer technology.

Solvents and DerivativesSolvents and derivatives products include a taoésolvents, formaldehyde and
other chemicals, which in turn are used in the rfacture of paints, coatings, adhesives and ottedymts.

Many solvents and derivatives products are derfk@u our production of acetic acid. Primary produate:

« Ethyl acetate, an acetate ester that is a sohssat in coatings, inks and adhesives and in the faatue of
photographic films and coated papers;

» Butyl acetate, an acetate ester that is a solsad in inks, pharmaceuticals and perfu

Formaldehyde and formaldehyde derivative produetsiarivatives of methanol and are made up of the
following products:

» Formaldehyde, paraformaldehyde and formcels aregpily used to produce adhesive resins for plywood,
particle board, coatings, POM engineering resirtsanompound used in making polyurethe

* Amines such as methyl amines, monisopropynol armanesbutyl amines are used in agrochemicals,
herbicides and the treatment of rubber and watet

« Special solvents, such as crotonaldehyde, whiclised by the Nutrinova business line for the prtidnoof
sorbates, as well as raw materials for the fragramd food ingredients indust

Solvents and derivatives are commodity productsasttarized by cyclicality in pricing. The principaw
materials used in solvents and derivatives prodaretsacetic acid, various alcohols, methanol, etig/land
ammonia. We manufacture many of these raw matdaalsur own use as well as for sales to thirdiparincluding
our competitors in the solvents and derivativesrass. We purchase ethylene from a variety of ssund/e
manufacture acetaldehyde in Europe for our ownaseyell as for sale to third parties.

Sales from acetyl products amounted to approxima&g¥, 34% and 33% of our consolidated net salethéo
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 cieghe. Sales from solvents and derivatives prasl
amounted to approximately 12%, 12% and 13% of onsclidated net sales for the years ended DeceBih@008
2007 and 2006, respectively.

Facilities

Acetyl Intermediates has production sites in thé@&dhStates, China, Mexico, Singapore, Spain, Framd
Germany. We also participate in a strategic ventuf®audi Arabia that produces methanol and me#rtiary-butyl
ether (“MTBE"). Over the last few years, we have continued to shiftproduction capacity to lower cost produc
facilities while expanding in growth markets, sw@ashChina.
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The following table illustrates net sales by destiion of the Acetyl Intermediates segment by geplg@regior
for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 angl. 200

Net Sales to External Customers by Destination — Astyl Intermediates

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
% of % of % of
$ Segmen $ Segmen $ Segmen
(In millions, except percentages
North America 742 23% 68t 23% 68t 26%
Europe/Africa 1,19¢ 37% 1,18: 40% 1,07¢ 40%
Asia/Australia 1,147 36% 96¢ 33% 814 30%
South Americe 11€ 4% 11¢ 4% 11C 4%
Total @ 3,19¢ 2,95¢ 2,68¢

(1) Excludes inter-segment sales of $676 million, $66llon and $667 million for the years ended Decem®1,
2008, 2007 and 2006, respective

Acetyl Intermediates markets its products bothdiyeto customers and through distributors.

Acetic acid, VAM and acetic anhydride are globasinesses which have several large customers. Ggnera
supply these global customers under multi-yearrectg. The customers of acetic acid, VAM and acatitydride
produce polymers used in water-based paints, agdggaper coatings, polyesters, film modifiergrpiaceuticals,
cellulose acetate and textiles. We have long-standilationships with most of these customers.

Solvents and derivatives are sold to a diverseguoduwegional and multinational customers both undelti-
year contracts and on the basis of -standing relationships. The customers of solvantsderivatives are
primarily engaged in the production of paints, cugg and adhesives. We manufacture formaldehydeuioown
use as well as for sale to a few regional custotiatsinclude manufacturers in the wood products@remical
derivatives industries. The sale of formaldehydeaised on both long and short-term agreementsiayesolvents
and amines are sold globally to a wide varietyusftomers, primarily in the coatings and resinsthedspecialty
products industries. These products serve globgtetsin the synthetic lubricant, agrochemical beprocessing
and other specialty chemical areas.

Competition

Our principal competitors in the Acetyl Intermedistsegment include Atofina S.A., BASF, British Bktum
PLC, Chang Chun Petrochemical Co., Ltd., DaicelvPBastman, DuPont, LyondellBasell Industries, Nipp
Gohsei, Perstorp Inc., Rohm & Haas Company, JiaBggo Corporation (Group) Ltd., Showa Denko K.Kd a
Kuraray Co. Ltd.

OTHER ACTIVITIES

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administrathetivities
such as legal, accounting and treasury functiorierést income and expense associated with ourding activities
and our captive insurance companies. Our two wkmlyed captive insurance companies are a key coampafi
our global risk management program, as well asra fif self-insurance for our property, liabilitycamorkers
compensation risks. The captive insurance compassesg insurance policies to our subsidiaries twide
consistent coverage amid fluctuating costs in tiseiance market and to lower long-term insuransésday
avoiding or reducing commercial carrier overhead magulatory fees. The captive insurance compaetai risk a
levels approved by management and obtain reinsarameerage from third parties to limit the net niskained. One
of the captive insurance companies also insureainghird-party risks.
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INVESTMENTS

We have a significant portfolio of strategic invasnts, including a number of ventures in Asia, N&inerica
and Europe. In aggregate, these strategic invessneajoy significant sales, earnings and cash fld\e.have
entered into these strategic investments in omgain access to local markets, minimize costsaacdlerate grow
in areas we believe have significant future busirpegential. See Note 8 to the consolidated firerstatements for
additional information.

The table below represents our significant strategntures as of December 31, 2008:

Location  Ownership Segmen Partner(s) Year Entered
Equity Method Investments
KEPCO South Korei 50% Advanced Engineerc Mitsubishi Gas Chemical 199¢
Materials Company, Inc./Mitsubist
Corporation
Polyplastics Co., Ltd. Japan 45% Advanced Engineert Daicel Chemical 196/
Industries Ltd.
Materials
Fortron Industries LLC us 50% Advanced Engineerc  Kureha Corporation 199z
Materials

Cost Method Investments
National Methanol Co Saudi Arabi 25% Acetyl Intermediates Saudi Basic Industries 1981
Corporation (“SABIC”)/
CTE Petrochemical

Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. China 30% Consumer Specialti China National 199t
Ltd. Tobacco Corporatio

Nantong Cellulose Fibers C China 31% Consumer Specialti China National 198¢
Ltd. Tobacco Corporatio

Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltd.  China 30% Consumer Specialti China National 199:

Tobacco Corporatio
Major Equity Method Investments

Korea Engineering Plastics Co. LtdFounded in 1987, KEPCO is the leading producgrobfacetal in South
Korea. Mitsubishi Gas Chemical Company, Inc. owd%4&nd Mitsubishi Corporation owns 10% of KEPCO.
KEPCO operates a POM plant in Ulsan, South Korebpanmticipates with Polyplastics and Mitsubishi Gas
Chemical Company, Inc. in a world-scale POM fagiiit Nantong, China.

Polyplastics Co., Ltd. Polyplastics is a leading supplier of enginegradtics in the Asia-Pacific region.
Polyplastics’ principal production facilities achted in Japan, Taiwan, Malaysia and China. Wea|
Polyplastics is the largest producer and markdt®QM in the Asia-Pacific region.

Fortron Industries LLC. Fortron Industries LLC is a leading global proeiuof PPS. Production facilities are
located in Wilmington, North Carolina. We believerffon has the leading technology in linear polymer
applications.

Major Cost Method Investments

National Methanol Co. (“Ibn Sina”). With production facilities in Saudi Arabia, Nati@ Methanol Co.
represents approximately 2% of the world’s methamotuction capacity and is the world’s eighth &sigproducer
of MTBE. Methanol and MTBE are key global commodityemical products. We indirectly own a 25% intenes
National Methanol Co. through CTE Petrochemicalsjra venture with Texas Eastern Arabian Corpaoratitd.,
with the remainder held by SABIC (50%). SABIC hasponsibility for all product marketing.

China Acetate Products venturedVe hold approximately 30% ownership interest®43ibard representation)
in three separate Acetate Products productionientit China: the Nantong, Kunming and Zhuhai Gedle Fiber
Companies. In each instance, the Chinese stateebtwhacco entity, China National Tobacco Corporatontrols
the remainder. The China ventures fund operatisirgguoperating cash flows.

These cost investments where we own greater tR&%@ownership interest are accounted for undecaise
method of accounting because we cannot exercisdisant influence over these entities. We detemdithat we
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cannot exercise significant influence over thegdé@ies due to local government investment in arfthence over
these entities, limitations on our involvementhe tlay-to-day operations and the present inalfithe entities to
provide timely financial information prepared incacdance with US generally accepted accountingjplies.

Other Equity Investments

InfraServs. We hold ownership interests in several InfraSamtities located in Germany. InfraServs own and
develop industrial parks and provide on-gjgmeral and administrative support to tenants.tahke below represer
our equity investments in InfraServ ventures aBedember 31, 2008:

Company Ownership %

InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf K 39.(%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack K 28.2%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K 31.2%

Raw Materials and Energy

We purchase a variety of raw materials and enaxy Sources in many countries for use in our priddoc
processes. We have a policy of maintaining, whezil@ve, multiple sources of supply for materidlewever,
some of our individual plants may have single sesiaf supply for some of their raw materials, sasttarbon
monoxide, steam and acetaldehyde. Although we haga able to obtain sufficient supplies of raw maltg there
can be no assurance that unforeseen developmédhtetaffect our raw material supply. Even if wavie multiple
sources of supply for a raw material, there candassurance that these sources can make up flasthef a major
supplier. There cannot be any guarantee that philiity will not be affected should we be requitedqualify
additional sources of supply to our specificationthe event of the loss of a sole supplier. Initald, the price of
raw materials varies, often substantially, fromryjeayear.

A substantial portion of our products and raw niaterare commodities whose prices fluctuate as atark
supply/demand fundamentals change. Our producdaitities rely largely on fuel oil, natural gas agléctricity for
energy. Most of the raw materials for our Europeperations are centrally purchased by one of cosidiaries,
which also buys raw materials on behalf of thirdtipa. We manage our exposure through forward @seh
contracts, long-term supply agreements and multi-peirchasing and sales agreements. During 2008jdveot
enter into any commodity financial derivative caatis. See Note 2 and Note 22 to the consolidatea ial
statements for additional information.

We also currently purchase and lease suppliesradug@precious metals, such as rhodium, used atystd for
the manufacture of Acetyl Intermediates products.gfecious metals, the leases are distributeddsstva minimur
of three lessors per product and are divided iat@mal contracts.

Research and Development

All of our businesses conduct research and devedaparctivities to increase competitiveness. Ouimasses
are innovation-oriented and conduct research andldgment activities to develop new, and optimiisting,
production technologies, as well as to develop cencially viable new products and applications. Veasider the
amount spent during each of the last three fiseatyon research and development activities talegquate to drive
our strategic initiatives.

Intellectual Property

We attach great importance to patents, trademegisirights and product designs in order to proteict
investment in research and development, manufagtamnd marketing. Our policy is to seek the wigestsible
protection for significant product and process dgwments in our major markets. Patents may coveuymts,
processes, intermediate products and product Wsesiso seek to register trademarks extensivetyrasans of
protecting the brand names of our products, whielmdh names become more important once the corrdsmpn
patents have expired. We protect our trademarkseigly against infringement and also seek to tegdesign
protection where appropriate.

In most industrial countries, patent protectiorsexfor new substances and formulations, as wétrasnique
applications and production processes. Howeveaveusiness in regions of the world where intellatproperty

15




Table of Contents

protection may be limited and difficult to enfora¥e maintain strict information security policiasdaprocedures
wherever we do business. Such information secpdtigies and procedures include data encryptionfrots over
the disclosure and safekeeping of confidentialrimition, as well as employee awareness trainingebieer, we
monitor our competitors and vigorously challengeepaand trademark infringement. For example, Acety
Intermediates maintains a strict patent enforcersgategy, which has resulted in favorable outcomesnumber ¢
patent infringement matters in Europe, Asia andthited States. We are currently pursuing a nuroberatters
relating to the infringement of our acetic acidgras. Some of our earlier acetic acid patents edpir 2007; other
patent applications covering acetic acid are ptgspanding.

Neither our business as a whole nor any parti@@gment is materially dependent upon any one péatic
patent, trademark, copyright or trade secret.

Trademarks

AOPIlus™, VAntage™ , VAntage Plus™, BuyTiconaDirecf™ , Celanex®, Celcon®, Celstrar®, Celvol®,
Celvolit®, Compel®, Erkol®, GUR®, Hostaforn®, Impet®, Impet-HI® , Mowilith ®, Nutrinova® , Riteflex®,
Sunett®, Vandar®, Vectra®, Vinamul®, EcCoVAE™ , Duroset?,, Acetex® and certain other products and
services named in this document are registereémnacks and service marks of Celanese. Foftiisra registered
trademark of Fortron Industries LLC, a venture efdDese.

Environmental and Other Regulation

Matters pertaining to environmental and other ratjoihs are discussed in Item 1A. Risk Factors, lfem
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations, and Note 16Nwig 23
to the consolidated financial statements.

Employees

As of December 31, 2008, we had approximately 8g38ployees worldwide from continuing operations,
compared to 8,400 as of December 31, 2007. Thiesepts a decrease of less than 1%. The followibig sets
forth the approximate number of employees on aigoimy basis as of December 31, 2008, 2007 and.2006

Employees as of
December 31,
2008 2007 2006

North America 4,10C 4,35C 4,70
thereof US 3,05C 3,20C 3,30¢
thereof Canad 25C 25C 50C
thereof Mexicc 80C 90C 90C

Europe 3,50C 3,50C 3,90C
thereof German 1,70C 1,70C 2,60(

Asia 70C 50C 25C

Rest of World 50 50 50

Total Employees 8,35( 8,40C  8,90(

Many of our employees are unionized, particulamysiermany, Canada, Mexico, Brazil, Belgium and Eean
However, in the United States, less than one quafteur employees are unionized. Moreover, in Garynand
France, wages and general working conditions aendhe subject of centrally negotiated collectiaegaining
agreements. Within the limits established by theggeements, our various subsidiaries negotiatettirevith the
unions and other labor organizations, such as wsrkeuncils, representing the employees. Collechargaining
agreements between the German chemical employswsiasons and unions relating to remuneration glyehave
a term of one year, while in the United Statesradlyear term for collective bargaining agreementgpical. We
offer comprehensive benefit plans for employeesthait families and believe our relations with eoydes are
satisfactory.
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Backlog

We do not consider backlog to be a significantdatbr of the level of future sales activity. In gesl, we do
not manufacture our products against a backlogasdrs. Production and inventory levels are basetthemevel of
incoming orders as well as projections of futurendad. Therefore, we believe that backlog informmatgonot
material to understanding our overall businesssiradild not be considered a reliable indicator afahility to
achieve any particular level of revenue or finahp&xformance.

Available Information — Securities and Exchange Comission (“SEC”) Filings and Corporate Governance
Materials

We make available free of charge, through our imgewebsite (www.celanese.com), our annual reorts
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curmemorts on Form 8-K and amendments to those refilaisor
furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of3keurities Exchange Act of 1934, as soon as reképn
practicable after electronically filing such magénvith, or furnishing it to, the SEC. The SEC ntains an Internet
site that contains reports, proxy and informatitatesnents, and other information regarding issuecfyding
Celanese Corporation, that electronically file vitie SEC at http://www.sec.gov.

We also make available free of charge, throughmternet website, our Corporate Governance Guidslof
our Board of Directors and the charters of eadthefcommittees of the Board. Such materials aealsilable in
print upon the written request of any shareholdeZ¢lanese Corporation, 1601 West LBJ Freeway aBallexas,
75234-6034, Attention: Investor Relations.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Many factors could have an effect on our financ@hdition, cash flows and results of operations.ane
subject to various risks resulting from changingmamic, environmental, political, industry, busis@sd financial
conditions. The factors described below representpoincipal risks.

Risks Related to Our Business

The worldwide economic downturn and difficult cortéins in the global capital and credit markets have
affected and may continue to adversely affect oussiness, as well as the industries of many of oustomers
and suppliers, which are cyclical in nature. We dot expect these conditions to improve in the néaure.

Some of the markets in which our end-use custopeaticipate, such as the automotive, electricalstmiction
and textile industries, are cyclical in nature stipwsing a risk to us which is beyond our conffbkese markets are
highly competitive, to a large extent driven by arsg markets, and may experience overcapacitgf alhich may
affect demand for and pricing of our products.

Recent declines in consumer and business confidemtspending, together with severe reductionsen t
availability and cost of credit and volatility ihe capital and credit markets, have adversely &ffethe business a
economic environment in which we operate and tléitability of our business. Our business is expbserisks
associated with the creditworthiness of our keyp$ieps, customers and business partners. In p&atioue are
exposed to risks associated with the ongoing dedfrthe automotive, textile and housing markelgese conditior
have resulted in financial instability or other adse effects at many of our suppliers, customelasisiness partnet
The consequences of such adverse effects couladimt¢he interruption of production at the facibtief our
customers, the reduction, delay or cancellatiocustomer orders, delays in or the inability of costrs to obtain
financing to purchase our products, delays or inf#ons of the supply of raw materials we purchase
bankruptcy of customers, suppliers or other creslitAny of these events may adversely affect osh dw,
profitability and financial condition.

Moreover, the current worldwide financial crisisshaduced the availability of liquidity and crettitftund or
support the continuation and expansion of businpssations worldwide. Many lenders and institutidneestors
have reduced and, in some cases, ceased to pfanidiag to borrowers. Continued disruption of thedit markets
has affected and could continue to adversely affactustomer’s access to credit which supportetimtinuation
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and expansion of their businesses worldwide antda@sult in contract cancellations or suspensipagment
delays or defaults by our customers.

We are a company with operations around the worlitlaare exposed to general economic, political and
regulatory conditions and risks in the countries imhich we have significant operations.

We operate in the global market and have customemany countries. We have major facilities prirhari
located in North America, Europe and Asia, and haldrests in ventures that operate in Germanyn&hiapan,
South Korea and Saudi Arabia. Our principal custsnage similarly global in scope, and the priceswf most
significant products are typically world marketqas. Consequently, our business and financialteearg affected,
directly and indirectly, by world economic, polgicand regulatory conditions.

In addition to the worldwide economic downturn, ditions such as the uncertainties associated wéih w
terrorist activities, epidemics, pandemics or jpditinstability in any of the countries in whickewoperate could
affect us by causing delays or losses in the supptielivery of raw materials and products, as wslincreasing
security costs, insurance premiums and other exgefifiese conditions could also result in or lemgconomic
recession in the United States, Europe, Asia @wdisre.

Moreover, changes in laws or regulations, suchnaspected changes in regulatory requirements (i
import or export licensing requirements), or chanigethe reporting requirements of the United Sta@erman or
European Union (“EU”) governmental agencies, contilease the cost of doing business in these reghmy of
these conditions may have an effect on our busiaeddinancial results as a whole and may resulblatile curren
and future prices for our securities, including starck.

In particular, we have invested significant resesrin China and other Asian countries. This regignbowth
has slowed and we may fail to realize the antieipdtenefits associated with our investment thedeoam financial
results may be adversely impacted.

We are subject to risks associated with the incegsolatility in the prices and availability of kenxaw materials
and energy.

We purchase significant amounts of natural gag/etle and methanol from third parties for use in ou
production of basic chemicals in the Acetyl Intediages segment, principally formaldehyde, acetid aod VAM.
We use a portion of our output of these chemigalgjrn, as inputs in the production of further gwots in all our
segments. We also purchase significant amountootlyulp for use in our production of cellulosetatein the
Consumer Specialties segment. The price of matiyesie items is dependent on the available supm@ydi item
and may increase significantly as a result of petida disruptions or strikes. For example, the anpked shutdown
of our Clear Lake, Texas facility together with @thight supply conditions caused a shortage di@eeid and
increased the price for such product during 2007.

We are exposed to any volatility in the prices of aw materials and energy. Although we have agesss
providing for the supply of natural gas, ethylewepd pulp, electricity and fuel oil, the contradtp&ces for these
raw materials and energy vary with market cond&iand may be highly volatile. Factors which havesed
volatility in our raw material prices in the pasidawhich may do so in the future include:

» Shortages of raw materials due to increasing demreagd from growing uses or new us

» Capacity constraints, e.g., due to constructioaydglstrike action or involuntary shutdow
« The general level of business and economic acfigity

« The direct or indirect effect of governmental regidn.

If we are not able to fully offset the effects afler energy and raw material costs, or if suchrooxtities were
unavailable, it could have a significant adverdeafon our financial results.
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Failure to develop new products and production techogies or to implement productivity and cost rexdion
initiatives successfully may harm our competitivegition.

Our operating results, especially in our Consunparclties and Advanced Engineered Materials setgnen
depend significantly on the development of comnadiyciviable new products, product grades and appbaos, as
well as production technologies. If we are unsusftgsn developing new products, applications aratpction
processes in the future, our competitive positioth @perating results may be negatively affectekiewise, we have
undertaken and are continuing to undertake inigatin all segments to improve productivity and@@nance and
to generate cost savings. These initiatives maypeaompleted or beneficial or the estimated cagngs from suc
activities may not be realized.

Recent federal regulations aimed at increasing satyuat certain chemical production plants and sitar
legislation that may be proposed in the future cdulf passed into law, require us to relocate cénta
manufacturing activities and require us to alter aliscontinue our production of certain chemical pdacts,
thereby increasing our operating costs and causemgadverse effect on our results of operations.

Regulations have recently been issued by the Dmpattof Homeland Security (‘DHS”) aimed at decregsi
the risk, and effects, of potential terrorist ataon chemical plants located within the Unitedé&taPursuant to
these regulations, these goals would be accomplishpart through the requirement that certain fpgbrity
facilities develop a prevention, preparedness,rasgonse plan after conducting a vulnerability sssent. In
addition, companies may be required to evaluat@dssibility of using less dangerous chemicalstandnologies
as part of their vulnerability assessments andeuéen plans and implementing feasible safer teldgies in order
to minimize potential damage to their facilitiesrr a terrorist attack. We have registered certhouosites with
DHS in accordance with these regulations, and @anelucting vulnerability assessments for our sitesuntil that is
done we cannot state with certainty the costs &ssacwith any security plans that DHS may requiteese
regulations may be revised further, and additiéegiklation may be proposed in the future on tbggd. It is
possible that such future legislation could contaims that are more restrictive than what hasntgcbeen passed
and which would be more costly to us. We cannadlipteéhe final form of currently pending legislatiocor other
related legislation that may be passed and cariggao assurance that such legislation will notehaw adverse
effect on our results of operations in a futureoréipg period.

Environmental regulations and other obligations @ing to environmental matters could subject usli@bility
for fines, clean-ups and other damages, requiretasncur significant costs to modify our operatiorand
increase our manufacturing and delivery costs.

Costs related to our compliance with environmelatak and regulations, and potential obligation$wétspect
to contaminated sites may have a significant negathpact on our operating results. These includigations
related to sites currently or formerly owned ormped by us, or where waste from our operationsdisgsosed. We
also have obligations related to the indemnity egrent contained in the demerger and transfer agneteinetween
Celanese GmbH and Hoechst, also referred to adetinerger agreement, for environmental mattersngrisut of
certain divestitures that took place prior to tleengrger.

Our operations are subject to extensive internatjorational, state, local and other supranatitavas and
regulations that govern environmental and healthsaiety matters, including the Comprehensive Bmvirental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 198D0HRCLA”") and the Resource Conservation and Reco&ety
of 1976 (“RCRA"). We incur substantial capital amither costs to comply with these requirements dfwolate
them, we can be held liable for substantial fines ather sanctions, including limitations on ouergiions as a
result of changes to or revocations of environmnigrgamits involved. Stricter environmental, safatyd health laws
regulations and enforcement policies could resudiuibstantial costs and liabilities to us or liiditas on our
operations and could subject our handling, manufacuse, reuse or disposal of substances or aotkito more
rigorous scrutiny than at present. Consequentimpti@nce with these laws and regulations couldltésu
significant capital expenditures as well as otlests and liabilities, which could cause our bussreasd operating
results to be less favorable than expected.
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We are also involved in several claims, lawsuitd administrative proceedings relating to environtaken
matters. An adverse outcome in any of them maythegiyaaffect our earnings and cash flows in aipatar
reporting period.

Changes in environmental, health and safety regudats in the jurisdictions where we manufacture asell
our products could lead to a decrease in demanddar products.

New or revised governmental regulations and inddeenstudies relating to the effect of our prodwcts
health, safety and the environment may affect dehfianour products and the cost of producing oadpcts.

Canada recently included vinyl acetate monomer (WWAas one of approximately 200 chemicals being
assessed as part of the Canadian Government’s CalsrManagement Plan under the Canadian Envirommient
Protection Act (“CEPA”). On May 16, 2008, Healthr@aa published a draft screening risk assessmdrdraft
risk management scope document for VAM that coredidising a 'precautionary approach’, that VAM is&ed as
a “toxic substance” under CEPA. On January 27, 2a8f18r consideration of data submitted by Celameskother
manufacturers and users of VAM and further consitilen of a risk assessment prepared by the Eurdgeam,
Health Canada published its final decision ovengiiis May 16, 2008 draft assessment of VAM. He@l#mada
concluded that VAM does not meet the regulatoryimanents for being listed as a toxic substanceu@dEPA.

The Registration, Evaluation, Authorization and tReson of Chemicals (“REACh”), which establishad
system to register and evaluate chemicals manuéstin, or imported to, the European Union, becaffective on
June 1, 2007. VAM is one of the chemicals thatEheopean Chemicals Agency (“ECHA”) will regulateden
REACh. ECHA will likely rely on the work of the EWorking group on classification and labeling of darous
substances. After extensive study, the EU-Workingu agreed that VAM should be classified in the &J
showing limited evidence of a carcinogenic efféciaddition, a risk assessment was performed on \Wthe
European Chemicals Bureau of the European CommisRisk reduction strategies for human health &ed t
environment were finalized without the impositidnany restrictions or burdens atypical to an indakthemical.
The EU-Working Group conclusion has been reviewatisubstantively approved by EU Scientific Comnaitbe
Health and Environmental Risks.

We can provide no assurance that the EU classditabn VAM will not be revised in the future, drat other
chemicals we produce will not be classified in anmex that would adversely affect demand for sudupets. Such
negative classifications could have an adverseiaffie our business and results of operations.

We are a producer of formaldehyde and plasticsrddrirom formaldehyde. Several studies have ingatgi
possible links between formaldehyde exposure andwsend points including leukemia. The InternadibAgency
for Research on Cancer (“IARC"), a private reseagéncy, has reclassified formaldehyde from Grodp 2
(probable human carcinogen) to Group 1 (known huozacinogen) based on studies linking formaldehyde
exposure to nasopharyngeal cancer, a rare canbamans. We expect the results of IARC’s review lél
examined and considered by government agencies@ggonsibility for setting worker and environmétgposure
standards and labeling requirements. If such agemgve strong consideration to IARC’s findingsetting such
standards and requirements, it could have an agedfsct on our business.

Other pending initiatives will potentially requitexicological testing and risk assessments of &watiety of
chemicals, including chemicals used or producedsyl hese initiatives include the Voluntary ChildseeChemical
Evaluation Program, High Production Volume Chemindlative and Chemical Assessment and Management
Program (“ChAMP?”) in the United States, as wellvasious European Commission programs, such as REACh

The above-mentioned assessments in the UnitedsS@amada and Europe may result in heightened owce
about the chemicals involved and additional reqméets being placed on the production, handlingliag or use
of the subject chemicals. Such concerns and additi@quirements could increase the cost incuryeau
customers to use our chemical products and othemist the use of these products, which could lead decrease
in demand for these products. Such a decreasamanttwould likely have an adverse impact on ouirass and
results of operations.
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Our production facilities handle the processing séme volatile and hazardous materials that subjestto
operating risks that could have a negative effeat@ur operating results.

Our operations are subject to operating risks déatmtwith chemical manufacturing, including thiated
storage and transportation of raw materials, prtsdad waste. These risks include, among othegshipipeline
and storage tank leaks and ruptures, explosiongirscand discharges or releases of toxic or lumeer substances.

These operating risks can cause personal injuopgity damage and environmental contamination naaw
result in the shutdown of affected facilities ahd tmposition of civil or criminal penalties. Theaurrence of any ¢
these events may disrupt production and have aimeggfect on the productivity and profitability a particular
manufacturing facility and our operating results aash flows.

Production at our manufacturing facilities could bdisrupted for a variety of reasons, which couldgwent us
from producing enough of our products to maintairuosales and satisfy our customers’ demands.

A disruption in production at our manufacturingiféies could have a material adverse effect onlmusiness.
Disruptions could occur for many reasons, including natural disasters, weather, unplanned miaartee or other
manufacturing problems, disease, strikes, tranaportinterruption, government regulation or teigor. Alternative
facilities with sufficient capacity or capabilitiesay not be available, may cost substantially noonmay take a
significant time to start production, each of whaduld negatively affect our business and finangeéformance. If
one of our key manufacturing facilities is unaligtoduce our products for an extended periodneé tiour sales
may be reduced by the shortfall caused by the plignu and we may not be able to meet our custonmemsds,
which could cause them to seek other suppliersekample, during 2007, production was disruptechfoextended
period of time at our Clear Lake, Texas facilitgttproduces primarily acetic acid and VAM. The djgion was
caused by an unplanned outage of our acetic adidBetause of this disruption, the volumes of Aaetyl
Intermediates segment were lower than we had exgdot 2007 as we were unable to fully offset s |
production. Similar outages could occur in the fatfirom unexpected disruptions at any of our othanufacturing
facilities of key products. Such outages could havedverse effect on our results of operatioristure reporting
periods.

We may experience unexpected difficulties in théomation of our Ticona plant from Kelsterbach to ¢hRhine
Main area, which may increase our costs, delay thensition or disrupt our ability to supply our cuesmers.

We have agreed with Frankfurt, Germany Airport @ijgort”) to relocate our Kelsterbach, Germany bussne
resolving several years of legal disputes relatettié planned Frankfurt airport expansion. As alted the
settlement, we will transition Ticona’'s operatidram Kelsterbach to another location in Germanyrhgi-2011. In
July 2007, we announced that we would relocat&#isterbach, Germany business to the Hoechst InduBark ir
the Rhine Main area. Over a five-year period, Frapgreed to pay Ticona a total of €670 millioroftset the costs
associated with the transition of the business fitsraurrent location and the closure of the Kelsieh plant. While
the settlement and related payment amount are neastcost-neutral and represent the actual anoentill
require to select a site, build new productionlfies, demolish old production facilities and ts#ion business
activities according to schedule and without arsyujitions to customer supply, we may encounter peebed costs
or other difficulties during the relocation procéisat bring the total costs of the relocation tcaarount greater than
the compensation provided by Fraport. The relooatithese facilities represents a major logisticalertaking,
and we may have underestimated the amount thabevilequired to carry out every aspect of the e¢lon. We
may lose the services of valuable experienced grepbduring the transition if they decide not takwat the new
location. The construction of the new facilitiesymmt be complete on time or may face cost overrlirmir costs
relating to the relocation exceed the amount ofymyts from Fraport or if the relocation causes otimexpected
difficulties, our expenses may increase or suppbiesur customers may be disrupted.

If supply to our customers is disrupted for an gt period, this could negatively impact the rapah of this
business and result in the loss of customers. 8ffebts could have an adverse impact on our resfiliperations ii
future periods.
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Our significant nor-US operations expose us to global exchange ratetfliations that could adversely impa
our profitability.

As we conduct a significant portion of our operati@mutside the United States, fluctuations in awies of
other countries, especially the Euro, may matgriafifect our operating results. For example, changeurrency
exchange rates may decrease our profits in conguatisthe profits of our competitors on the samalpcts sold in
the same markets and increase the cost of iterngeegn our operations.

A substantial portion of our net sales is denongidan currencies other than the US dollar. In amsolidated
financial statements, we translate our local cuydimancial results into US dollars based on ageraxchange rat:
prevailing during a reporting period or the exchangte at the end of that period. During times strangthening
US dollar our reported international sales, eamiagsets and liabilities will be reduced becaeddcal currency
will translate into fewer US dollars.

In addition to currency translation risks, we inaucurrency transaction risk whenever one of o@rajng
subsidiaries enters into either a purchase ores $elnsaction using a currency different fromaperating
subsidiary’s functional currency. Given the vol&tibf exchange rates, we may not be able to manageurrency
transaction and translation risks effectively, apthtility in currency exchange rates may exposefimancial
condition or results of operations to a significadditional risk. Since a portion of our indebtesmes and will be
denominated in currencies other than US dollaveeakening of the US dollar could make it more difft for us to
repay our indebtedness.

We use financial instruments to hedge our expasufereign currency fluctuations, but we cannotrgngéee
that our hedging strategies will be effective. alto effectively manage these risks could havaduerse impact
on our financial position, results of operations aash flows.

Significant changes in pension fund investment peninance or assumptions relating to pension costsyrhave
a material effect on the valuation of pension obditjons, the funded status of pension plans and q&nsion
cost.

The cost of our pension plans is incurred over Ipegods of time and involve many uncertaintiesryithose
periods of time. Our funding policy for pensionipdas to accumulate plan assets that, over theriomgwill
approximate the present value of projected benbfigations. Our pension cost is materially affedby the
discount rate used to measure pension obligatibadevel of plan assets available to fund thodigations at the
measurement date and the expected long-term ragtush on plan assets. Significant changes insimrent
performance or a change in the portfolio mix ofésted assets can result in corresponding increasedecreases
the valuation of plan assets, particularly equétgwsities, or in a change of the expected ratetofin on plan assets.
During the previous fiscal year, the value of olanpassets declined significantly due to the dedimthe overall
equity markets. A change in the discount rate woeddilt in a significant increase or decrease énvtiduation of
pension obligations, affecting the reported funsgtedus of our pension plans as well as the nebgierpension cost
in the following fiscal years. In recent years,eattended duration strategy in the asset portfai® theen
implemented to minimize the influence of liabilitglatility due to interest rate movements. Simifadhanges in the
expected return on plan assets can result in ggnif changes in the net periodic pension cosstdibsequent fiscal
years. If the value of our pension fU's portfolio declines or does not perform as exeédir if our experience with
the fund leads us to change our assumptions regatidé fund, we may be required to contribute doltktl capital
to the fund.

Our future success will depend in part on our alylito protect our intellectual property rights. Ounability to
enforce these rights could reduce our ability to m&ain our market position and our profit margins.

We attach great importance to patents, trademedksrights and product designs in order to prodect
investment in research and development, manufactamnd marketing. Our policy is to seek the wigestsible
protection for significant product and process dgwments in our major markets. Patents may coveuymts,
processes, intermediate products and product Bsetection for individual products extends for vagyperiods in
accordance with the date of patent applicationdiind the legal life of patents in the variousntoas. The
protection afforded, which may also vary from coyrid country, depends upon the type of patentisnstope of
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coverage. As patents expire, the products and gsesadescribed and claimed in those patents begenesally
available for use by the public. We also seek giister trademarks extensively as a means of pintgtiie brand
names of our products, which brand names become mmgortant once the corresponding patents haviesekOu
continued growth strategy may bring us to regidinthe world where intellectual property protectimay be limited
and difficult to enforce. If we are not successfuprotecting our trademark or patent rights, @wenues, results of
operations and cash flows may be adversely affected

Provisions in our second amended and restated fiegte of incorporation and second amended and setstl
bylaws, as well as any shareholders’ rights planayrdiscourage a takeover attempt.

Provisions contained in our second amended andteelstertificate of incorporation and bylaws comlake it
more difficult for a third party to acquire us, evié doing so might be beneficial to our sharehadd®rovisions of
our second amended and restated certificate ofpocation and bylaws impose various procedurala@hdr
requirements, which could make it more difficult &hareholders to effect certain corporate actibosexample,
our second amended and restated certificate ofpocation authorizes our Board of Directors to deiae the
rights, preferences, privileges and restrictionaroésued series of preferred stock, without artg wo action by our
shareholders. Thus, our Board of Directors canaisth and issue shares of preferred stock withngotir
conversion rights that could adversely affect theng or other rights of holders of our Series Anroon stock.
These rights may have the effect of delaying oewigty a change of control of our company. In addita change
of control of our company may be delayed or detea®a result of our having three classes of dire¢each class
elected for a three year term) or as a result pfstuareholders’ rights plan that our Board of Dioes may adopt.
These provisions could limit the price that cerfawvestors might be willing to pay in the future &hares of our
Series A common stock.

Risks Related to the Acquisition of Celanese GmbHgrmerly Celanese AG

The amounts of the fair cash compensation and oéthuaranteed annual payment offered under the
domination and profit and loss transfer agreemefibpmination Agreement”) may be increased, which may
further reduce the funds the Purchaser can othereimake available to us.

Several minority shareholders of Celanese GmbH hatiated special award proceedings seeking thetso
review of the amounts of the fair cash compensatimhof the guaranteed annual payment offered uhder
Domination Agreement. On March 14, 2005, the FrarikDistrict Court dismissed on grounds of inadiitigisy the
motions of all minority shareholders regarding itiigation of these special award proceedings.anuhry 2006, the
Frankfurt Higher District Court ruled that the apfsewere admissible, and the proceedings will foegecontinue.
On December 12, 2006, the Frankfurt District Caympointed an expert to help determine the valu@etdnese
GmbH. As a result of these proceedings, the amafrite fair cash compensation and of the guardraeeual
payment could be increased by the court, and thehBser would be required to make such paymenksnatitvo
months after the publication of the court’s rulidgny such increase may be substantial. All mincstgareholders
would be entitled to claim the respective highepants. This may reduce the funds the Purchasemede
available to us and, accordingly, diminish ourifpiio make payments on our indebtedness. See 2Bte the
consolidated financial statements for further infation.

The Purchaser may be required to compensate Celar@mbH for annual losses, which may reduce the fgnd
the Purchaser can otherwise make available to us.

Under the Domination Agreement, the Purchasergsired, among other things, to compensate Celanese
GmbH for any annual loss incurred, determined toedance with German accounting requirements, bgr@se
GmbH at the end of the fiscal year in which theslags incurred. This obligation to compensate GaarGmbH fc
annual losses will apply during the entire ternthaf Domination Agreement. If Celanese GmbH incassés durin
any period of the operative term of the Dominatdgreement and if such losses lead to an annuablo€glanese
GmbH at the end of any given fiscal year duringtéren of the Domination Agreement, the Purchaséroei
obligated to make a corresponding cash paymenetan@se GmbH to the extent that the respectiveadhoss is
not fully compensated for by the dissolution offfireeserves accrued at the level of Celanese Guhrithg the terr
of the Domination Agreement. The Purchaser maybte ta reduce or avoid cash payments to CelanedeHZg
off-setting against such loss compensation clain€délanese GmbH any valuable counterclaims against
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Celanese GmbH that the Purchaser may have. IfuhehBser is obligated to make cash payments tm€Esda
GmbH to cover an annual loss, we may not havecseifii funds to make payments on our indebtednessiwhe
and, unless the Purchaser is able to obtain fuods & source other than annual profits of Cela®GséH, the
Purchaser may not be able to satisfy its obligatboiund such shortfall. See Note 23 to the codséid financial
statements.

We and two of our subsidiaries have taken on cemtabligations with respect to the Purchaser’s oldiipn
under the Domination Agreement and intercompany eftedness to Celanese GmbH, which may diminish our
ability to make payments on our indebtedness.

Our subsidiaries, Celanese International Holdingselmbourg S.a r.l. (“CIH"), formerly Celanese Caylu
Holdings Luxembourg S.C.A., and Celanese US, haek agreed to provide the Purchaser with finansithat
the Purchaser is at all times in a position to detefy meet its obligations under, or in connectidth, the
Domination Agreement. In addition, Celanese hasaniaed (i) that the Purchaser will meet its oltiayaunder the
Domination Agreement to compensate Celanese Gmbahfpannual loss incurred by Celanese GmbH duhag
term of the Domination Agreement; and (ii) the napant of all existing intercompany indebtednes€elanese’s
subsidiaries to Celanese GmbH. Further, underettmest of Celanese’s guarantee, in certain limiteclonstances
Celanese GmbH may be entitled to require the imatedepayment of some or all of the intercompaundglitednes
owed by Celanese’s subsidiaries to Celanese GniliHHI and/or Celanese US are obligated to make gaysn
under their obligations to the Purchaser or Celku@sbH, as the case may be, or if the intercompadgbtedness
owed to Celanese GmbH is accelerated, we may wet fi#ficient funds for payments on our indebtednelsen
due.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

See also “Management’s Discussion and Analysidradri€ial Condition and Results of Operationd iguidity
and Capital Resources — Liquidity — Contractuali@dtions.”

Our level of indebtedness could diminish our ahjlito raise additional capital to fund our operatisnlimit our
ability to react to changes in the economy or theemicals industry and prevent us from meeting olligpns
under our indebtedness.

Our total indebtedness is approximately $3.5 bilks of December 31, 2008.
Our debt could have important consequences, inojudi

* increasing vulnerability to general economic arglstry conditions including exacerbating any adwers
business effects that are determined to be matatiadrse effects under our senior credit faci

* requiring a substantial portion of cash flow fropeeations to be dedicated to the payment of praicpd
interest on indebtedness, therefore reducing aiityae use our cash flow to fund operations, ¢alpi
expenditures and future business opportuni

» exposing us to the risk of increased interest rasesertain of our borrowings are at variable rafésterest;

« limiting our ability to obtain additional financinfigr working capital, capital expenditures, product
development, debt service requirements, acquisitéord general corporate or other purposes

« limiting our ability to adjust to changing marketnditions and placing us at a competitive disachgat
compared to our competitors who have less ¢

A breach of a covenant or other provision in angtdiestrument governing our current or future inelness
could result in a default under that instrument, ahgt to cross-default provisions, could resul iefault under our
senior credit facility. Upon the occurrence of et of default under the senior credit facilityetienders could
elect to declare all amounts outstanding to be idiately due and payable and terminate all commitsenextend
further credit. If we were unable to repay thoseants, the lenders could proceed against the eddlatf any,
granted to them to secure the indebtedness. Ietigers under the senior credit facility were toederate the
payment of the indebtedness, there is no guardm¢eur assets or cash flow would be sufficienteteay in full ou
outstanding indebtedness.
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Moreover, the terms of our existing debt do nolyfprohibit us or our subsidiaries from incurringbstantial
additional indebtedness in the future. If new detsluding amounts available under our senior ¢ragieement, is
added to our current debt levels, the related tisdswe now face could intensify. See also “Mamaget’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &wbults of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Reses —
Liquidity — Contractual Obligations.”

Our variable rate indebtedness subjects us to iestrate risk, which could cause our debt servitdigations to
increase significantly and affect our operating rels.

Certain of our borrowings are at variable rategtdrest and expose us to interest rate risk téfrést rates were
to increase, our debt service obligations on ouabée rate indebtedness would increase, net ointipacts of
hedges in place. In April 2007, we, through certiour subsidiaries, entered into a senior craglitement. The
new senior credit agreement consists of $2,280anibf US dollar denominated and €400 million ofr&u
denominated term loans due 2014, a $650 millioolwéwg credit facility terminating in 2013 and aZ@million
credit-linked revolving facility terminating in 2@1Borrowings under the new senior credit agreerheat interest
at a variable interest rate based on LIBOR (fordafars) or EURIBOR (for Euros), as applicable,for,US dollar
denominated loans under certain circumstancessaade, in each case plus an applicable margmaphlicable
margin for the term loans and any loans under toditlinked revolving facility is 1.75%, subjea potential
reductions as defined in the new senior creditergent. The term loans under the new senior crgditesnent are
subject to amortization at 1% of the initial pripai amount per annum, payable quarterly, commenoidgly 2007.
The remaining principal amount of the term loank @ due on April 2, 2014.

An increase in interest rates could have an advensact on our future results of operations andh ¢kmsvs. Set
also “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Abblarket Risk — Interest Rate Risk Management.”

We may not be able to generate sufficient cashdo/ie our indebtedness, and may be forced to tatkesr
actions to satisfy obligations under our indebtedise which may not be successful.

Our ability to satisfy our cash needs depends sh oa hand, receipt of additional capital, inclgdpossible
additional borrowings, and receipt of cash from swivsidiaries by way of distributions, advancesash payments.

Our ability to make scheduled payments on or tmagfce our debt obligations depends on the findncia
condition and operating performance of our subsisawhich is subject to prevailing economic andhpetitive
conditions and to certain financial, business ahérfactors beyond our control. We may not be &blmaintain a
level of cash flows from operating activities saiint to permit us to pay the principal, premiufary, and interest
on our indebtedness.

If our cash flows and capital resources are insigffit to fund our debt service obligations, we rhayforced to
reduce or delay capital expenditures, sell assetk additional capital or restructure or refinangeindebtedness.
These alternative measures may not be successfuhay not permit us to meet our scheduled debicerv
obligations. In the absence of such operating tesuld resources, we could face substantial ligupioblems and
might be required to dispose of material assetgperations to meet our debt service and other atidigs. The
senior credit agreement governing our indebtedressscts our ability to dispose of assets andthisgroceeds
from the disposition. We may not be able to consatenthose dispositions or to obtain the proceedshmie coulc
realize from them and these proceeds may not kguatketo meet any debt service obligations then due

Restrictive covenants in our debt instruments mayit our ability to engage in certain transactiorend may
diminish our ability to make payments on our indeloiness.

The senior credit agreement governing our indelgeslicontains various covenants that limit our tgttidi
engage in specified types of transactions. Theraves contained in the senior credit agreement bioni ability to,
among other things, incur additional indebtednpag,dividends on or make other distributions onepurchase
capital stock or make other restricted payment&eniavestments and sell certain assets. Suchaisiis in our
debt instruments could result in us having to abthé consent of our lenders in order to take gesetions. Recent
disruptions in credit markets may prevent us frarmake it more difficult or more costly for us tbtain such
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consents from our lenders. Our ability to expandhlusiness or to address declines in our businegsha limited if
we are unable to obtain such consents.

In addition, the senior credit agreement requisetoumaintain a maximum first lien senior secumdttage
ratio no greater than 3.90 to 1.00 if there arstaniding borrowings under the revolving creditlfgciOur ability to
meet this financial ratio can be affected by evéetgpond our control, and we may not be able to riéetest at all.

A breach of any of these covenants could resudtdefault under the senior credit agreement. Upen t
occurrence of an event of default under the sesrittit agreement, the lenders could elect to dechrmamounts
outstanding under the senior credit agreement imbeediately due and payable and terminate all cimemts to
extend further credit. If we were unable to regayste amounts, the lenders under the senior crgidiement could
proceed against the collateral granted to theretarg that indebtedness. Our subsidiaries havgeded significar
portion of our assets as collateral under the seméxlit agreement. If the lenders under the semixlit agreement
accelerate the repayment of borrowings, we mayaet sufficient assets to repay amounts borroweeniime
senior credit agreement as well as their otheritetiness, which could have a material adverseteaiffethe value
of our stock.

The terms of our senior credit agreement limit thility of BCP Crystal and its subsidiaries to pdjvidends ot
otherwise transfer their assets to us.

Our operations are conducted through our subs@iamd our ability to pay dividends is dependerthen
earnings and the distribution of funds from oursidiaries. However, the terms of our senior cragieement limit
the ability of BCP Crystal and its subsidiariepty dividends or otherwise transfer their assetsstdccordingly,
our ability to pay dividends on our stock is simidimited.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen

None.
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Item 2. Properties

Description of Property

As of December 31, 2008, we had numerous produetmhmanufacturing facilities throughout the wokide
also own or lease other properties, including efficiildings, warehouses, pipelines, research anelament
facilities and sales offices. We continuously rewand evaluate our facilities as a part of ourteyg to optimize
our business portfolio. The following table setdta list of our principal production and othecifdies throughout

the world as of December 31, 2008.

Site

Corporate Offices
Budapest, Hungar

Dallas, Texas, Ut
Kronberg/Taunus, Germal
Mexico City, Mexico
Mexico City, Mexico®

Advanced Engineered Materials

Auburn Hills, Michigan, US

Bishop, Texas, U:
Florence, Kentucky, U
Kelsterbach, Germar
Oberhausen, Germai®
Fuji City, Japan

Kuantan, Malaysia
Shelby, North Carolina, US

Suzano, Brazi
Ulsan, South Korea

Wilmington, North Carolina, US

Winona, Minnesota, U.
Nanjing, Chine®)
Consumer Specialties
Kunming, China

Lanaken, Belgiun
Nantong, Chini

Narrows, Virginia, US
Ocotlan, Jalisco, Mexic
Spondon, Derby, Ut
Frankfurt am Main, Germarfy)

Zhuhai, China

Industrial Specialties
Boucherville, Quebec, Cana

Leased/Owne

Leasec
Leasec
Leasec
Leasec
Owned

Leased

Owned

Owned

Owned

Leasec

Venture owned by Polyplastics Co., Ltd.,
a cost method investme

Venture owned by Polyplastics Co., Ltd.,
a cost method investme

Owned

Owned

Venture owned by Korea Engineering
Plastics Co., Ltd., an equity method
investmen

Venture owned by Fortron Industries
LLC, an equity method investme
Owned

Leasec

Venture owned by Kunming Cellulose
Fibers Co. Ltd., a cost method investrr
Owned

Venture owned by Nantong Cellulose
Fibers Co. Ltd., a cost method investnr
Owned

Owned

Owned

Venture owned by InfraServ GmbH &
Co. Hoechst KG, an equity method
investmen

Venture owned by Zhuhai Cellulose
Fibers Co. Ltd., a cost method investnr

Owned
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Products/Functions

Administrative offices
Corporate headquarte
Administrative offices
Administrative offices
Administrative offices

Automotive Development
Center

POM, GUR®, Compounding
Compounding

LFRT, POM, Compoundin
GUR®

POM, PBT, LCP,
Compounding

POM, Compoundiny
LCP, PBT, PET,
Compounding
Compounding

POM
PPS

LFRT
GUR®

Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Acetate town

Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Acetate tow, Acetate flak
Sorbates, Sune® sweetene

Acetate tow, Acetate flak

Conventional emulsior
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Site

Calvert City, Kentucky, U®)
Enoree, South Carolina, US

Edmonton, Alberta, Cana«
Frankfurt am Main, Germary
Geleen, Netherlands
Guardo, Spail®)

Meredosia, lllinois, US

Nanjing, Chine®)

Pasadena, Texas, |®
Koper, Slovenid®)
Tarragona, Spaif?

Perstorp, Sweden
Warrington, UK(®)

Acetyl Intermediates

Bay City, Texas, U

Bishop, Texas, U:
Cangrejera, Veracruz, Mexi¢8

Clear Lake, Texas, U
Frankfurt am Main, Germarf
Nanjing, Chinz®)

Pampa, Texas, U®

Pardies, Franc

Roussillon, Franc®

Jubail, Saudi Arabia

Jurong Island, Singapof®

Tarragona, Spaif?

Leased/Owne

Leasec
Owned

Owned

Venture owned by InfraServ GmbH &
Co. Hoechst KG, an equity method
investmen

Owned

Owned
Owned

Leased

Leasec
Owned
Venture owned by Complejo Industrial
Taqgsa AlE, a cost method investment

Owned

Owned

Leasec
Owned
Owned

Owned

Venture owned by InfraServ GmbH &
Co. Hoechst KG, an equity method
investmen

Leasec

Owned

Owned

Leasec

Venture owned by National Methanol
Company (lbn Sina), a cost method
investmen

Leased

Venture owned by Complejo Industrial
Taqgsa AlE, a cost method investm

(1) Site is no longer operational and is currently Heldsale.

(@ Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesatit the Tarragona facility. Celanese owns #stasat the
facility but shares ownership in the land. Cela’s ownership percentage in the land is 1
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Products/Functions

PVOH

Conventional emulsions,
Vinyl acetate ethylene
emulsions

LDPE, EVA
Conventional emulsions,
Vinyl acetate ethylene
emulsions

Vinyl acetate ethylene
emulsions

PVOH, Polyvinyl acetat
Conventional emulsions,
Vinyl acetate ethylene
emulsions

Conventional emulsions,
Vinyl acetate ethylene
emulsions

PVOH

Conventional emulsior
Conventional emulsions,
Vinyl acetate ethylene
emulsions, PVOF
Conventional emulsions,
Vinyl acetate ethylene
emulsions

Conventional emulsions,
Vinyl acetate ethylene
emulsions

VAM

Formaldehyd¢

Acetic anhydride, Ethyl
acetate, VAM

Acetic acid, VAM

Acetaldehyde, VAM, Butyl
acetate

Acetic acid, Acetic anhydrid
Acetic acid, Acetic anhydrid
Ethyl acetate

Acetic acid, VAM

Acetic anhydride

Methyl tertiary-butyl ether,
Methanol

Acetic acid, Butyl acetate,
Ethyl acetate, VAN

VAM
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() Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesadit the Nanjing facility. Celanese owns the tasse this
site, but utilizes the land through the terms tdrag-term land lease

@ Multiple Celanese business segments conduct opesadit the Frankfurt facility
®) Celanese owns the assets on this site, but utifieekand through the terms of a l-term land lease
) Site is no longer operating as of December 31, 2

(") The Company has announced its decision to shut degv@angrejera VAM production unit effective a¢ #nd
of February 200¢

We believe that our current facilities are adequatmeet the requirements of our present and feedse future
operations. We continue to review our capacity ireguents as part of our strategy to maximize oabal
manufacturing efficiency.

See Note 8 to the consolidated financial statenfentsiore information on our cost and equity method
investments.

For information on environmental issues associaii#ltl our properties, see “Business — Environmeatsl
Other Regulation” and “Management’s Discussion Andlysis of Financial Condition and Results of Cgiiems —
Liquidity and Capital Resources — Environmental tdeg.” Additional information with respect to outoperty,
plant and equipment, and leases is contained ie Bl@ind Note 21 to the consolidated financial statgs.

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

We are involved in a number of legal proceedinaasuits and claims incidental to the normal conddcur
business, relating to such matters as produclitigbantitrust, past waste disposal practices rhelase of chemicals
into the environment. While it is impossible afstiime to determine with certainty the ultimateamme of these
proceedings, lawsuits and claims, we believe, bagdtie advice of legal counsel, that adequateigimns have
been made and that the ultimate outcomes will agela material adverse effect on our financialtpmsibut may
have a material adverse effect on our results efaipns or cash flows in any given accountingquerSee Note 23
to the consolidated financial statements for auwdision of legal proceedings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a VVote of Security Hold¢

No matters were submitted to a vote of securitgéd during the fourth quarter of 2008.
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PART Il

Item 5. Market for the Registrar's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters argslier Purchases of
Equity Securities

Market Information

Our Series A common stock has traded on the New $tock Exchange under the symbol “CE” since
January 21, 2005. The closing sale price of ouieS& common stock, as reported by the New Yorklsto
Exchange, on February 6, 2009 was $11.92. TheWolptable sets forth the high and low intradayesairices
per share of our common stock, as reported by the Xork Stock Exchange, for the periods indicated.

Price Range
High Low

2008

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $43.7:  $31.7¢
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $50.9¢  $39.5(
Quarter ended September 30, 2! $47.0z  $24.6¢
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $27.7¢  $ 5.71
2007

Quarter ended March 31, 20 $32.00 $24.5(
Quarter ended June 30, 2C $39.4:  $30.5¢
Quarter ended September 30, 2! $42.4¢  $30.7(
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $44.77  $35.1¢
Holders

No shares of Celanese’s Series B common stoclsswed and outstanding. As of February 6, 2009 tivere
72 holders of record of our Series A common stacki one holder of record of our perpetual prefestedk. By
including persons holding shares in broker accounter street names, however, we estimate ourtsbider base
to be approximately 56,000 as of February 6, 2009.

Dividend Policy

Our Board of Directors adopted a policy of declgrisubject to legally available funds, a quartedgh
dividend on each share of our Series A common sibek annual rate of $0.16 per share unless oardBaf
Directors, in its sole discretion, determines otfige. Pursuant to this policy, we paid quarterljidénds of $0.04
per share on February 1, 2008, May 1, 2008, Augu2008 and November 1, 2008 and similar quartididends
during each quarter of 2007. The annual cash diddkeclared and paid during the years ended Deae®ib@008
and 2007 were $24 million and $25 million, respeslii. Dividends payable to holders of our Seriesofnmon
stock cannot be declared or paid nor can any fbedset aside for the payment thereof, unless we paid or set
aside funds for the payment of all accumulatedwamghid dividends with respect to the shares ofpoeferred stocl
as described below. Our Board of Directors magngttime, modify or revoke our dividend policy omrGeries A
common stock.

We are required under the terms of the preferreckdb pay scheduled quarterly dividends, subjetgally
available funds. For so long as the preferred stenkains outstanding, (1) we will not declare, paget apart func
for the payment of any dividend or other distribativith respect to any junior stock or parity stacid (2) neither
we, nor any of our subsidiaries, will, subject &tain exceptions, redeem, purchase or otherwigeircfor
consideration junior stock or parity stock throwghinking fund or otherwise, in each case unlesbave paid or s
apart funds for the payment of all accumulated amphid dividends with respect to the shares ofeprefl stock an
any parity stock for all preceding dividend perioBarsuant to this policy, we paid quarterly divide of $0.26562
per share on our 4.25% convertible perpetual predestock on February 1, 2008, May 1, 2008, Augu&008 and
November 1, 2008 and similar quarterly dividendsmipeach quarter of 200
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On January 5, 2009, we declared a cash divide®0.@65625 per share on our 4.25% convertible peapet
preferred stock amounting to $3 million and a odisidend of $0.04 per share on its Series A comstonk
amounting to $6 million. Both cash dividends aretf® period November 1, 2008 to January 31, 20@9vwere
paid on February 1, 2009 to holders of record akafiary 15, 2009.

Based on the number of outstanding shares as afritger 31, 2008, the cash dividends to be paid @9 20e
expected to result in annual dividend paymentslam that paid in 2008.

The amount available to us to pay cash dividendssigicted by our senior credit agreement. Anyisieg to
declare and pay dividends in the future will be matlithe discretion of our Board of Directors arilll depend on,
among other things, our results of operations, caghirements, financial condition, contractuatniegons and
other factors that our Board of Directors may deelavant.

Celanese Purchases of its Equity Securities

The table below sets forth information regardingurehases of our Series A common stock duringhteset
months ended December 31, 2008:

Approximate Dollar

Total Number of Value of Shares
Total Number Average Shares Purchased a Remaining that may be
of Shares Price Paid Part of Publicly Purchased Under
Period Purchased® per Share Announced Program the Program
October 1, 200! 44,22 $ 26.71 — $ 122,300,00

(1) Relates to shares employees have elected to hévieeld to cover their minimum withholding requiremefor
personal income taxes related to the vesting aficésd stock units. No shares were purchased durie three
months ended December 31, 2008 under our previamsigpunced stock repurchase p
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Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotima shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be
“filed” with the SEC, nor shall such information liecorporated by reference into any future filingder the
Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange A&B84, each as amended, except to the extenivehapecifically
incorporate it by reference into such filing.

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return

350%
CE S&P 500 54F 00 Chemicals  SEP 500
200% & - Morth  (FZTHR] {25.4%) 1.7 47.3%)
1 = Year (MOS%)  {38.5%) (a1 8% {18.1%:)

(515%)  {36.3%) (2774 {H.8%)

%) gzed% 150% 153%
— [ 22.7%) (180%)

0% 4

150% 4

100%:

50% 1

0% , : , : ; : ; , .
12105 SIS 12T SAGI0E 1006 AT ST 21508 Y2408 12081 1R
|[—-cEe E&P 500 —— 5&P 500 Chemicals —— S&F 500 Specially Chemicals |

Tlris cormparizon is besed om @ retene asswing S100 fupested Jarwary 21, 2006 ir Celarese Conporation Common Steck aud Hie S&P 500
[ndes, the SGP S0 Cliewvicals Tndex and the S5P Specialty Chesndoals Tndex, asswning Bie reiwvestment of all dividends, lougary 21, 20065 i5 Hhe date
e Canmrary's Comnnon Stwek commenced trading on Hee New York Stock Evelumge
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Equity Compensation Plans
Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Cpemsation Plans
The following information is provided as of DecemBé&, 2008 with respect to equity compensationglan

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Number of Securities to be Weighted Average Future Issuance Under
Issued upon Exercise o Exercise Price of Equity Compensation
Outstanding Options, Outstanding Options, Plans (excluding securities
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights reflected in column (a))
@) (b) (©
Equity compensation plans appro\
by security holder — — —
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holder:
Stock options 7,015,75 % 19.3¢ 285,51
Restricted stock unit 1,603,76! — 285,51
Total 8,619,52! 285,51

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In December 2007, we adopted a deferred compensatan whereby we offered certain of our senior
employees and directors the opportunity to defeoréion of their compensation in exchange for arfeitpayment
amount equal to their deferments plus or minusageamounts based upon the market-performancecaffsgd
measurement funds selected by the participant.eftieferred compensation obligations may be coresider
securities of Celanese. Participants were requoedake deferral elections under the plan prialaouary 1 of the
year such deferrals will be withheld from their quensation. We relied on the exemption from redistngprovided
by Section 4(2) of the Securities Act in makingstbffer to a select group of employees, fewer B&iof which
were non-accredited investors under the rules plgeed by the Commission.

Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The balance sheet data shown below as of Decerib@088 and 2007, and the statements of operadiwhs
cash flow data for the years ended December 38,207 and 2006, all of which are set forth belawe, derived
from the consolidated financial statements incluelséwhere in this document and should be readnjuaction
with those financial statements and the notes thefde balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006,and
2004 and as of March 31, 2004 and the statememgeashtions and cash flow data for the year endszéBber 31,
2005, the nine months ended December 31, 2004hanithtee months ended March 31, 2004 shown belaw we
derived from previously issued financial statemgeat§usted for applicable discontinued operations.

The balance sheet, statement of operations andloasdata for periods prior to April 1, 2004 inethables
below represent the results of the Predecessochwhfers to Celanese GmbH, formerly known as Gslai\G,
and its consolidated subsidiaries. The balancet ssta¢ement of operations and cash flow data doiops
subsequent to April 1, 2004 in the tables belowesgnt the results of the Successor, which refe@etanese
Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. fEisalts of the Successor are not comparable toethdts of the
Predecessor due to the difference in the basiseskptation of purchase accounting as comparedtarical cost.
Furthermore, the Successor and the Predecessodliferent accounting policies with respect to aartmatters.
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Successo Predecesso
Nine Months | Three Months
Ended Ended
Year Ended December 31 December 31 March 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2004
(In $ millions, except per share data

Statement of Operations Data
Net sales 6,820 6,44¢ 577¢ 5,27(C 3,20¢ 1,05¢
Other (charges) gains, r (20¢) (58) (20 (62) (78) (28)
Operating profit 44( 74¢ 62C 48€ 17 39
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befase t

and minority interest 434 447 52€ 27¢€ (230 62
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 372 33¢€ 31¢ 214 (292 48
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati (90) 90 87 63 39 30
Net earnings (loss 282 42¢€ 40€ 2717 (259 78
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operatien

basic 244 211 1.9 1.3¢ (2.99 0.97
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operatien

diluted 228 19¢ 18¢ 1.2¢ (2.99 0.97
Statement of Cash Flows Data
Net cash provided by (used il
Operating activitie: 58€ 56€ 751 701 (62 (102
Investing activities (201) 145 (268 (907) (1,81 91
Financing activitie: (499) (714 (108) (149 2,68¢ (43
Balance Sheet Data (at the end of period
Trade working capite®) 68t 827 824 75¢ 743 68¢
Total asset 7,16¢ 8,058 7,89t 7,44% 7,41( 6,61:
Total debt 3,63% 3,55¢ 3,49¢ 3,437 3,387 587
Shareholder equity (deficit) 18z 1,06 787 23t (112 2,622
Other Financial Data:
Depreciation and amortizatic 35C 291 26¢ 267 165 64
Capital expenditure®) 267 30€ 244 20z 134 29
Cash basis dividends paid per common s@ 0.1€ 0.1€ 0.1 0.0¢ — —

(@) Trade working capital is defined as trade accotetsivable from third parties and affiliates neatiéwance for
doubtful accounts, plus inventories, less trad®aets payable to third parties and affiliates. Eraarking

capital is calculated in the table belc

Successo Predecessc
As of December 31 March 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2004
(In $ millions)
Trade receivables, n 631 1,00¢ 1,001 91¢ 86¢ 81C
Inventories 577 63€ 653 65C 603 491
Trade payable (523 (81§ (83() (811 (726 (612)
Trade working capite 68E 827 824  75&  74:Z 68¢

@ In the nine months ended December 31, 2004, CadaBethH declared and paid a dividend of €0.12 (§Qe4
share for the year ended December 31, 2003. Did&lpaid to Celanese and its consolidated subsdiari

eliminate in consolidatior

3 Amounts include accrued capital expenditures. Artdo not include capital expenditures relateceuital
lease obligations or capital expenditures relabetthé relocation of our Ticona plant in Kelsterba8he Note 24

and Note 28 to the consolidated financial statesx
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Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditionnal Results of Operations

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the term “Cedar” refers to Celanese Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, and not its subsidiaries. The terms ‘tBompany,” “we,” “our” and “us” refer to Celaneseand its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The term &@eke US'refers to our subsidiary Celanese US Holdings L&
Delaware limited liability company, formally knovas BCP Crystal US Holdings Corp., a Delaware cogimm,
and not its subsidiaries. The term “Purchaser” neféo our subsidiary, Celanese Europe Holding GnéBo. KG,
formerly known as BCP Crystal Acquisition GmbH & ®&, a German limited partnership, and not
subsidiaries, except where otherwise indicated.

You should read the following discussion and anslgthe financial condition and the results obogtions
together with the consolidated financial statememtd the accompanying notes to the consolidatechéial
statements, which were prepared in accordance agttounting principles generally accepted in thet&diStates of
America (US GAAP").

Investors are cautioned that the forward-lookingtstents contained in this section involve botk aisd
uncertainty. Several important factors could caastual results to differ materially from those aipated by these
statements. Many of these statements are macroetgomo nature and are, therefore, beyond the cdrifo
management. See “Forward-Looking Statements Mayédhoaccurate” below.

Reconciliation of Non-US GAAP Measures: We belibaeusing non-US GAAP financial measures to
supplement US GAAP results is useful to investecailise such use provides a more complete undensgpofithe
factors and trends affecting the business othen tiaclosing US GAAP results alone. In this regavd,disclose ne
debt, which is a non-US GAAP financial measure.déét is defined as total debt less cash and cqslvalents.
We use net debt to evaluate the capital structNeg.debt is not a substitute for any US GAAP firelmoeasure. In
addition, calculations of net debt contained irstreport may not be consistent with that of otrm@mpanies. The
most directly comparable financial measure presgimeaccordance with US GAAP in our financial staents for
net debt is total debt. For a reconciliation of mietht to total debt, see “Financial Highlights” tmatl.

Forward-Looking Statements May Prove Inaccurate

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financ@hdition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”") and eth
parts of this Annual Report contain certain forwbroking statements and information relating tahet are based
on the beliefs of our management as well as assongpiade by, and information currently availalleus. When
used in this document, words such as “anticipdtelieve,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “plan”rd “project”
and similar expressions, as they relate to usreaded to identify forward-looking statements. Séstatements
reflect our current views with respect to futuremets, are not guarantees of future performanceérsodive risks and
uncertainties that are difficult to predict. Furtheertain forward-looking statements are basedwgssumptions as
to future events that may not prove to be accukiizassume no obligation to revise or update anyal-looking

statements for any reason, except as requiredaay la

See the Risk Factors section under Part 1, IterfollA description of risk factors that could sigrahtly affect
our financial results. In addition, the followingctors could cause our actual results to differenaty from those
results, performance or achievements that may peessed or implied by such forward-looking statetmefhese
factors include, among other things:

» changes in general economic, business, politicdiragulatory conditions in the countries or regionghich
we operate

« the length and depth of product and industry bssirogcles particularly in the automotive, electrica
electronics and construction industri

« changes in the price and availability of raw matisriparticularly changes in the demand for, supfiland
market prices of ethylene, methanol, natural gasdapulp, fuel oil and electricity

« the ability to pass increases in raw material grime to customers or otherwise improve marginsuino
price increases
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the ability to maintain plant utilization rates atodmplement planned capacity additions and exipass

the ability to reduce production costs and imprpraductivity by implementing technological improvents
to existing plants

increased price competition and the introductionarhpeting products by other compan
changes in the degree of intellectual property@hdr legal protection afforded to our produ

compliance costs and potential disruption or infetion of production due to accidents or other veseen
events or delays in construction of faciliti

potential liability for remedial actions under exig or future environmental regulatior

potential liability resulting from pending or futufitigation, or from changes in the laws, regulas or
policies of governments or other governmental & in the countries in which we opere

changes in currency exchange rates and interes, iac

various other factors, both referenced and noteafeed in this documer

Many of these factors are macroeconomic in natndeaae, therefore, beyond our control. Should onmaare
of these risks or uncertainties materialize, ousdhanderlying assumptions prove incorrect, ouualkctesults,
performance or achievements may vary materialljnftbose described in this Annual Report as antiegha
believed, estimated, expected, intended, planngdojected. We neither intend nor assume any didig@o update
these forward-looking statements, which speak aslpf their dates.

Overview

During 2008, we made significant strides in stréeging our competitive position. As detailed belove,
advanced our expansion efforts in Asia, succegsfidherated cash and used it to deliver valuedosbareholders,
settled legacy litigation matters, carried out sustainability commitments and fulfilled our role @responsible
corporate citizen.

2008 Highlights:

Opened a customer application development centehamghai, China, to support growth in the regan f
Advanced Engineered Materi’ engineering polymers busine

Our Board of Directors authorized us to repurchgsé $500 million of our Series A common stockring
the year ended December 31, 2008, we repurchaséd,200 shares of our Series A common stock for
$378 million pursuant to this authorizatic

Signed an agreement to establish a 20,000 squars-meegrated technology and marketing facility in
Shanghai, China. The facility will combine the hgadrters for our Asia businesses, customer apjaitat
development and research and development ct

Successfully started up our newly constructed ZDt6@ ultra-high molecular weight polyethylene (‘RS
") facility, 100,000 ton acetic anhydride faciliand 300,000 ton vinyl acetate monomer (“VAM”) fatgi] all
located at our integrated chemical complex in NapjiChina

Our Nutrinova business and BRAIN AG, a leading Bpaan “white” biotech company, identified all-natura
compounds for high intensity sweeteners and swesgtsieghancer:

Introduced EcoVAEM , a new vinyl acetate/ethylene emulsion technolbesigned to facilitate the
manufacture of high quality, e-friendly paints for North America and Asi

Resolved certain legacy litigation matters by entemto a settlement agreement for $107 milliolated to
sales by the polyester staple fibers business,hwaechst AG sold to KoSa, Inc. in 1998. In addifiove
paid€17 million to settle Sorbates antitrust actionshwiite European Commissic
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« Announced plans to build a new Vecthquid crystal polymer (“LCP”) production facilitgo-located at our
integrated chemical complex in Nanjing, China. Gartion for the LCP production facility and stau-
dates will depend on market conditio

» Began construction of the world’s largest polyakplant in Hoechst Industrial Park. The state-c#-Hrt
facility is expected to be operational in 2011 andireplace Ticona's existing production operagdn
Kelsterbach, German

« Received Green Partner certification from Sony Goafpion at our Ticona plant in Shelby, North Carali
The certification recognizes suppliers’ cooperatbeco-friendly products and their ability to meet
established regulations for environment-relategstartes found in components of products that thear t
Sony name

* Announced the shutdown of the VAM production uniQangrejera, Mexico and the assessment of the
potential closure of acetic acid and vinyl acetatmomer (“VAM”") production in Pardies, France and cet
other actions

» Released our 2008 Sustainability Report, whichitbedarr industry-leading commitment to safety, tieaind
the environment across our worldwide operationg fEport also highlights best practices driven by o
employees around the wor

« Reached an agreement with the Frankfurt, Germarnyo#ito receive an advance payment of €322 million
associated with the relocation of our Ticona bussria Kelsterbach, Germany. This advance payméhbevi
in lieu of payments of €200 million and €140 mitiioriginally scheduled to be paid in June 2009 &unte
2010, respectively

During the first half of 2008, the US and Europgdreto experience challenging economic conditibas t
resulted in significant inflation in raw materialdaenergy pricing. Despite the challenges, we \abte to
implement higher pricing on continued strong demand higher volumes associated with our growthegsain
Asia, all of which contributed to growth in netasalduring the period.

During the second half of 2008, recessionary tresteisiming from the US credit crisis quickly spréaadther
regions of the world. This triggered an unexpeceatiiction in consumer and industrial demand thasea our
customers to sharply lower their inventories dutimg last few months of the year. As a result, derfar our
products declined dramatically and we aggressinepaged our global production capacity to aligrwlie
current environment. During this period of econonmmcertainty, we remained focused on executingang-term
strategy to increase the value of Celanese.

2009 Outlook

We expect inventory destocking to diminish in 2009t do not foresee a short-term recovery in tobajl
economic environment. We expect earnings to impfoy@ fourth quarter levels throughout the yeathesimpact
of destocking and the negative effects of lowecast or market and first-in, firgtut inventory accounting decrea

We are taking aggressive actions in response texpected prolonged weak demand environment. These
actions include an assessment of our current metuniiag footprint and reductions of our overalldikcost
structure. Initial fixed cost reductions have beetated and are estimated to result in betweed0$hillion and
$120 million of cost savings annually.

Expansion in China

The Nanjing complex brings world-class scale to siteefor the production of acetic acid, VAM, aceti
anhydride, emulsions, Celstr@rong fiber reinforced thermoplastic (“LFRT”), GUR, Vectra® LCP and
compounding. We believe the Nanjing complex wittfier enhance our capabilities to better meet thevigg
needs of our customers in a number of industriessadAsia.

The acetic acid facility located in our Nanjing,i@d complex achieved normal operations in June 20@i7we
commenced production of vinyl acetate emulsiorth@tomplex during the fourth quarter of 2007. Dgrihe
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first quarter of 2008, we commissioned the stadiupur LFRT unit in Nanjing. Our newly construct2d,000 ton
GUR @ facility, 100,000 ton acetic anhydride facility aB@0,000 ton VAM facility started up during therthi
quarter of 2008. Operations for the compoundingt#d the complex are expected to begin during 2009

In 2008, we announced our plans to build an LCRIpecton facility at our Nanjing complex. Construxctifor
the LCP production facility and start-up dates w#pend on market conditions.

Financial Highlights

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions, except
percentages)
Statement of Operations Data
Net sales 6,82: 6,44¢ 5,77¢
Gross profit 1,25¢ 1,44¢ 1,30¢
Selling, general and administrative exper (540 (51€) (53€)
Other (charges) gains, r (20¢) (58) (20
Operating profit 44C 74¢ 62C
Equity in net earnings of affiliate 54 82 76
Interest expens (2617) (262) (293
Refinancing expense — (25€) (@D}
Dividend income— cost investment 167 11€ 79
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseand minority interest 434 447 52¢€
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 372 33€ 31¢
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati (90) 90 87
Net earning: 282 42¢ 40€
Other Data:
Depreciation and amortizatic 35C 291 26¢
Operating margii® 6.4% 11.¢% 10.7%
Earnings from continuing operations before tax amdority interests as a percentage
of net sale! 6.4% 6.€% 9.1%
(1) Defined as operating profit divided by net sa
As of
__December 31,
2008 2007

(In $ millions)
Balance Sheet Data

Shor-term borrowings and current installments of |-term deb+— third party and affiliate 23¢ 272
Plus: Lon¢term debt 3,30C 3,28¢
Total debt 3,53:  3,55¢
Less: Cash and cash equivale 67€ 82&
Net debi 2,857 2,731

Summary of Consolidated Results — Year Ended Decereb31, 2008 compared with Year Ended
December 31, 2007

The challenging economic environment in the Uni¢ates and Europe during the first half of 2008ilted in
higher raw material and energy costs which enapie increase initiatives across all segmentsiriguhe second
half of 2008, the US credit crisis acceleratedgbenomic slowdown and its spread to other regidiiseoworld.
Despite the halt in demand, we were able to mairtteé majority of our enacted price increases tijinahe
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remainder of 2008. As a result, increased pricgsadmed net sales by 8%. Favorable foreign currémgacts also
had a positive impact on net sales of 3%.

Net sales declined 5% due to decreased volumeseiLoglumes were primarily a result of decreasedatam
stemming from the global economic downturn. As dedndeclined, particularly during the fourth quadé2008,
our customers began destocking to reduce theiniowg levels. In response, we aggressively managedlobal
production capacity to align with the current enmiment. We expect destocking trends to continuelésser extent
into the first quarter of 2009. Decreased volunmesur acetate flake and tow businesses were noifisantly
impacted by the economic downturn. Rather, dectefigke volumes were the result of our strategicisien to
shift our flake production to our China venturesjef we account for as cost investments. The fofiact of this
shift has been realized during 2008 and thus thaltieg trend of diminishing volumes is not expekte continue.

Gross profit declined as higher raw material, epengd freight costs more than offset increase®trsales
during the period. The uncertain economic enviramnnesulted in higher natural gas, ethylene, mathand other
commodity prices during the first nine months & ffear. Our freight costs also increased, primaitlg to
increased rates driven by higher energy prices ltef008, raw material and energy prices declaratiwe expect
that decline to positively impact gross profit digrithe first quarter of 2009.

Other (charges) gains, net increased $50 milliaimd2008 as compared to 2007:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Employee termination benefi (22) (32
Plant/office closure @) (17)
Deferred compensation triggered by Exit Ev — (74)
Insurance recoveries associated with plumbing ¢ — 4
Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakeag 38 40
Resolution of commercial disputes with a ven — 31
Asset impairment (115) 9@
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocati (12 (5)
Sorbates antitrust actiol 8 —
Other 1 @
Total Other (charges) gains, t (108)  (598)

@ Includes $6 million of goodwill impairmel

Other charges increased in 2008 compared to 20 haludes a long-lived asset impairment loss of
$92 million in connection with the potential closwf our acetic acid and VAM production facility Rardies,
France, our VAM production unit in Cangrejera, Maxand certain other facilities. Considerationtas potential
capacity reduction was necessitated by the sigmifichange in the global economic environment amidipated
lower customer demand. Following the initial asees® of this capacity reduction, we determined veeild shut
down the Cangrejera VAM production unit effectitetee end of February 2009.

In addition, we recognized $23 million of long-lvasset impairment losses and $13 million of engsoy
termination benefits in 2008 related to the shutd@fvour Pampa, Texas facility.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ise@&24 million during 2008 primarily due to busise
optimization and finance improvement initiatives.

Operating profit decreased due to lower gross paniil higher other charges and selling, general and
administrative costs. The absence of a $34 milljaim on the sale of our Edmonton, Alberta, Canadaitiy during
2007 also contributed to lower operating profi2B08 as compared to 2007.

Equity in net earnings of affiliates decreased 8@iion during 2008, primarily due to reduced eags from
our Advanced Engineered Materials’ affiliates réagl from higher raw material and energy costs @éecreased
demand.
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Our effective income tax rate for 2008 was 15% carag to 25% in 2007. The effective income tax rate
decreased in 2008 due to: 1) a decrease in thati@uallowance 2) tax credits generated on forgigsdictions
and 3) the US tax impact of foreign operations.

The loss from discontinued operations of $90 mllduring 2008 primarily relates to a legal settlame
agreement we entered into during 2008. Under ttikesent agreement, we agreed to pay $107 millioresolve
certain legacy items. Because the legal proceadiiaged to sales by the polyester staple fibertnbas which
Hoechst AG sold to KoSa, Inc. in 1998, the impddhe settlement is reflected within discontinugek@tions in th
current period. See the “Polyester Staple Antittuiggation” section in Note 23 of the consolidat@tancial
statements.

Summary of Consolidated Results — Year Ended Decereb31, 2007 compared with Year Ended
December 31, 2006

For the year ended December 31, 2007, net salesaised by 12% to $6,444 million compared to theesam
period in 2006 as increases in pricing and faverabhkrency impacts more than offset lower overallines.
Overall pricing contributed to a 6% increase insaes primarily due to a tight global supply oégt, PVOH and
emulsion products, and higher acetate tow and fiaices. Favorable currency impacts (particulaghated to the
Euro) also contributed to a 4% increase in netssahel the acquisition of Acetate Products Limité&dP( ") in 2007
increased net sales by $227 million. Strong volimeeases due to increased market penetration $evaral of
Advanced Engineered Material’s key products andstieeessful startup of our acetic acid unit in NapjChina
helped to partially offset the decreases in volumesir Acetyl Intermediates and Industrial Spd@alsegments
resulting from the temporary unplanned outage efabetic acid unit at our Clear Lake, Texas facilit

Gross profit as a percentage of net sales remaatatively flat for the year ended December 31, 2(#?.4%)
compared to the same period in 2006 (22.7%). Tightsdlecrease was primarily due to lower overaluaes and
higher energy and raw material costs more tharettiifg the higher overall prices and favorable ency impacts
(particularly related to the Euro).

Selling, general and administrative expenses dsecehy $20 million for the year ended Decembe280,7
compared to the same period in 2006. The decreasgrmarily due to the absence of executive sexerand
legal costs associated with the Squeeze-Out ofi§ifi®n and long-term incentive plan expenses dd llion,
both recorded in 2006. Selling, general and aditmatise expenses also decreased $5 million duevter
stock-based compensation expenses during the gdaddéecember 31, 2007. The decreases were paditdet
by $15 million of additional expenses related tmfice improvement initiatives and $6 million rethte the revised
deferred compensation plan expenses.

Other (charges) gains, net increased $48 milliamdw2007 as compared to 2006:

Year Ended

December 31
2007 2006

(In $ millions)
Employee termination benefi (32 12
Plant/office closure (171) 1
Deferred compensation triggered by Exit Ev (74) —
Insurance recoveries associated with plumbing ¢ 4 5
Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakeag 40 —
Resolution of commercial disputes with a ven 31 —
Asset impairment 90 —
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocati (5) —
Other ) I )
Total Other (charges) gains, t (58 (10

@ Includes $6 million of goodwill impairmel
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Other charges for employee termination benefits@adt/office closures include charges related jaour plan
to simplify and optimize our Emulsions and PVOH ibesses to become a leader in technology and itioovand
grow in both new and existing markets and 2) clargiated to the sale of our Pampa, Texas fachitiditionally,
we recorded a $74 million deferred compensatiomggha May 2007 as a result of the triggering ofait Event,
as defined in Note 20 to the consolidated finarstialements. Also included in other charges arenfiflidn in
insurance recoveries we received during the fogugrter of 2007 in partial satisfaction of clairhattwe made
based on losses resulting from the temporary unplduoutage of the acetic acid unit at our Clearl dlexas
facility. In addition, during the fourth quarter 2007, we received $31 million as a one-time paytrireresolution
of commercial disputes with a vendor.

The net $128 million improvement in operating prdfiring the year ended December 31, 2007 as cadpar
2006 is a result of higher net sales, lower sellgeneral and administrative expenses and a $3ibmgain
recorded on the sale of our Edmonton, Alberta, @aracility during 2007, offset by higher other aes, as
discussed above.

Equity in net earnings of affiliates increased 8Pthie year ended December 31, 2007 compared &athe
period in 2006 due primarily to improved performarfiom our InfraServ affiliates.

Interest expense decreased $31 million for the geded December 31, 2007 compared to the samelperio
2006. The decrease was primarily related to lowerést rates on the new senior credit agreemenpared to the
interest rates on the senior discount notes aridrsgubordinated notes, which were repaid in ApB07 in
conjunction with the debt refinancing (see Notdd the consolidated financial statements for mofermation).
These decreases were partially offset by an inergeisiterest expense due to additional China firranactivities ir
2007.

Refinancing expenses incurred during 2007 relagexuit debt refinancing. As a result of the refinagcwe
expensed $207 million of premiums paid on earlyeregtion of debt. In addition, we expensed $33 onllof
unamortized deferred financing costs and premiwgtaed to the former $2,454 million senior creditifity, senior
discount notes and senior subordinated notes afidnfilion of debt issuance and other refinancingenses.

Income tax expense decreased by $93 million to $illbn for the year ended December 31, 2007. The
effective tax rate for continuing operations foe fear ended December 31, 2007 was 25%, whiclksstean the
combined US federal and state statutory rate of. 389 effective tax rate for 2007 was favorably acied by
(1) an increase in unrepatriated low-taxed earningjsiding tax holidays and (2) the tax benefiatetl to German
Tax Reform of $39 million recorded during the yeaded December 31, 2007. These benefits are padfédet by
the accounting treatment of recent tax law chang®&$exico. See Note 19 to the consolidated findrati@ements
for additional information.

Earnings from discontinued operations primarilyatelto Acetyl Intermediates’ sale of its oxo pragwuend
derivatives businesses in February 2007, the shubhaf its Edmonton, Alberta, Canada methanol djmra during
the second quarter of 2007 and its pentaerythfiRit") operations, which were discontinued durihg third
quarter of 2006. As a result, revenues and expentasd to these businesses and operations #eetegf as a
component of discontinued operations.
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Selected Data by Business Segme— Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared with Year Eed
December 31, 2007 and Year Ended December 31, 2@dmpared with Year Ended December 31, 2006

Year Ended December 31

Net sales

Advanced Engineered Materiz
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie

Acetyl Intermediate

Other Activities

Inter-segment Elimination

Net sales

Other (charges) gains, net
Advanced Engineered Materiz
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie

Acetyl Intermediate

Other Activities

Inter-segment Elimination

Other (charges) gains, r

Operating profit

Advanced Engineered Materiz
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie

Acetyl Intermediate

Other Activities

Operating profit

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations beforeax and

minority interests
Advanced Engineered Materit
Consumer Specialtie
Industrial Specialtie
Acetyl Intermediate
Other Activities

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseand

minority interest:

Depreciation and amortization
Advanced Engineered Materiz
Consumer Specialtie

Industrial Specialtie

Acetyl Intermediate

Other Activities

Depreciation and amortizatic
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Year Ended December 31

Change Change

2008 2007 in$ 2007 2006 in$

(In'$ millions)

1,061 1,03( 31 1,03C 91t 11F
1,158 1,111 44 1,111 87¢ 23t
1,40€ 1,34¢ 60 1,34¢ 1,281 65
3,87t 3,61t 26C 3,61t 3,351 264
2 2 — 2 22 (20
(67€) (660) (16) (66C) (667) 7
6,82° 6,44¢ 37¢ 6,44¢ 5/77¢ 66€
29 (@ (29 (4) 6 (10
@ @ 2 4 — (4)
B (23 20 (23 (11 (12
(789 72 (50 72 — 72
4 (B4 68 (64 (5) (59
— (3% 35 (38 — (39
(108)  (58) (50) (58) (10 (48)
32  13% (101) 13% 145 (12
19C  19¢ (9 19¢ 168 34
47 28 19 28 44 (1)
30¢ 61€ (307 61€  45€ 16C
(136) (226) 90 (226) (190) (38
44C 748 (30§  74¢E 62( 12€
69 18¢ (1200 18¢ 201 (12
237 23t 2 23t 18t 50
47 28 19 28 43 (19
434 694 (260 694 51¢ 17%
(353) (69S) 34€ (69S) (422) (277)
434 447  (13) 447 52€  (79)
76 69 7 69 65 4
53 51 2 51 39 12
62 59 3 59 59 —
15C 10€ 44 10€ 101 5
9 6 3 6 5 1
35C 291 59 291 265 22
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Factors Affecting Year Ended December 31, 2008 Segmt Net Sales Compared to Year Ended December :
2007

The tables below set forth the percentage incr@desaease) in net sales attributable to each dfitters
indicated in each of our business segments.

Volume Price Currency  Other Total
(In percentages)
Advanced Engineered Materit 4 3 4 — 3
Consumer Specialtie (6) 7 1 2(0) 4
Industrial Specialtie 10 11 4 1) © 4
Acetyl Intermediate ©)] 7 3 — 7
Total Company @) (5) 8 3 — 6
Factors Affecting Year Ended December 31, 2007 Segmt Net Sales Compared to Year Ended December 31,
2006
Volume Price Currency  Other Total
(In percentages)
Advanced Engineered Materit 9 Q) 5 — 13
Consumer Specialtie 4) 4 1 26(b) 27
Industrial Specialtie Q) 2 5 Q) © 5
Acetyl Intermediate (5) 9 4 — 8
Total Company @) 2 6 4 4 12

@ Includes the effects of the captive insurance comgss
® Includes net sales from the APL acquisiti
© Includes loss of sales related to the AT Pla’ Films business

Summary by Business Segment — Year Ended Decembetr, 2008 Compared with Year Ended December 31,
2007

Advanced Engineered Materials

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2008 2007 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 1,061 1,03( 31
Net sales varianct
Volume (4)%
Price 3%
Currency 4%
Other 0%
Operating profit 32 13z (103)
Operating margil 3.C% 12.9%
Other (charges) gains, r (29) 4 (25)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseand minority interes 69 18¢ (120
Depreciation and amortizatic 76 69

Our Advanced Engineered Materials segment devefppsiuces and supplies a broad portfolio of high
performance technical polymers for applicationumoaotive and electronics products, as well asratbasumer
and industrial applications. Together with our t&tgic affiliates, we are a leading participanttie global technical
polymers industry. The primary products of Advan&egjineered Materials are POM, PPS, LFRT, PBT, PET,
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GUR®and LCP. POM, PPS, LFRT, PBT and PET are usedioad range of products including automotive
components, electronics, appliances and industpiplications. GURR is used in battery separators, conveyor belts,
filtration equipment, coatings and medical devi¢&gnary end markets for LCP are electrical andtedaics.

Net sales increased 3% during 2008 as compare@0in @rimarily as a result of implemented pricingraases
combined with favorable foreign currency impacitgréases in net sales were partially offset by foméumes due
to significant weakness in the US and Europeannaotive and housing industries. Extended plant shwid
enacted by major car manufacturers during the fioguarter of 2008 contributed significantly to th@ume decline

Operating profit declined $101 million primarily elto higher raw material, freight and energy cd3tsw
material costs increased on higher prices whiliglfitecosts increased as a result of increasedhfreses and larger
shipments to Asia. Raw material costs declinedita008 and we expect to realize a benefit fromlthwer prices
early in 2009 as our higher-cost inventory levétsidish. Higher depreciation and amortization exgeand
increased other charges also contributed to lowerating profit. Depreciation and amortization exgeare higher
in 2008 due to the start-up of the GBRnd LFRT units in Asia. Other charges consist prilpaf a $16 million
long-lived asset impairment loss related to theptigl closure of certain Advanced Engineered Malgrfacilities
and $12 million related to the relocation of oucdna plant in Kelsterbach. See “Ticona KelstertRleimt
Relocation” below.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax amabority interests decreased due to decreased tigera
profit and decreased equity in net earnings ofiafifis. Equity in net earnings of affiliates dece $18 million
during 2008, primarily due to reduced earnings fimm Advanced Engineered Materials’ affiliates t8sg from
higher raw material and energy costs and decredesadnd.

Ticona Kelsterbach Plant Relocation

In 2007, we finalized a settlement agreement wighRrankfurt, Germany Airport (“Fraport”) to reldeaour
Kelsterbach, Germany, business, resolving sevesisyof legal disputes related to the planned Fuain&irport
expansion. As a result of the settlement, we valhsition Ticona’s operations from Kelsterbachhe Hoechst
Industrial Park in the Rhine Main area by mid-20Q%er a five-year period, Fraport will pay Ticon#otal of
€670 million to offset the costs associated withttia@sition of the business from its current looatand the closure
of the Kelsterbach plant. In June 2008, we rece2@D million ($311 million) from Fraport under sragreement.
Amounts received from Fraport are accounted fatedisrred proceeds and are included in noncurréetr diabilities
in the consolidated balance sheets.

In February 2009, we announced the Fraport supesvisoard approved the acceleration of the 20092811
payments of €200 million and €140 million, respeely, required by the settlement agreement signeldine 2007.
On February 5, 2009, we received a discounted atafapproximately €322 million, excluding valueeksdl tax of

€59 million.
Below is a summary of the cash flow activity anthficial statement impact associated with the Tiqbaiat
relocation:
Year Ended Total From
December 31, Inception through
2008 2007 December 31, 20C
(In $ millions)
Proceeds received from Frap 311 — 337
Costs expense 12 5 17
Costs capitalize® 20z 40 24z

@ Includes an increase in accrued capital expenditof&17 million and $19 million during the yeargled
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectiv
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Consumer Specialties

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2008 2007 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages)
Net sales 1,15t 1,111 44
Net sales varianci
Volume (6)%
Price 7%
Currency 1%
Other 2%
Operating profit 19C 19¢ 9)
Operating margil 16.2% 17.%
Other (charges) gains, r 2 (4) 2
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseand minority interest 237 23t 2
Depreciation and amortizatic 53 51 2

Our Consumer Specialties segment consists of oatafe Products and Nutrinova businesses. Our Acetat
Products business primarily produces and supptieste tow, which is used in the production o€filproducts. We
also produce acetate flake which is processedsicetate fiber in the form of a tow band. Our Nwvia business
produces and sells Sun@tta high intensity sweetener, and food protectigmedients, such as sorbates, for the
food, beverage and pharmaceuticals industries.

Net sales increased 4% to $1,155 million duringyib@ ended December 31, 2008 driven primarily tginmg
actions in our Acetate Products business and aiti@thl month of sales from our Acetate Productsitéd
(“APL™) acquisition, which was acquired on Janu&dy, 2007, offset by lower volumes. Lower volumes adirect
result of our strategic decision to shift acetéakd production to our China ventures, which amaoted for as co
method investments. The full impact of this shdstbeen realized during 2008 and thus the resutémgl of
diminishing volumes is not expected to continuewkoflake volumes were partially offset by a 5%raase in tow
volumes as we were able to capture a portion oftbeth in global tow demand.

The increase in net sales due to higher salesspdizeng 2008 was offset most significantly by lgknergy
costs, and to a lesser extent, higher raw matenidlfreight costs. Operating profit, as compare207, declined
primarily due to the absence of a $22 million gainthe sale of our Edmonton, Alberta, Canada fsaiii 2007.
Other charges during 2007 includes $3 million deded compensation plan expenses and $5 milliattadr
restructuring charges, offset by insurance recesesf $5 million for partial satisfaction of thedess interruption
losses resulting from the temporary unplanned @utdghe acetic acid unit at our Clear Lake, Tdgadity.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax amgority interests of $237 million increased fro@0Z as
increased dividends from our China ventures mama tiffset the decline in operating profit. Increhdevidends are
the result of increased volumes and higher priagsyell as efficiency improvements.
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Industrial Specialties

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2008 2007 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 1,40€ 1,34¢ 60
Net sales varianct
Volume (10)%
Price 11%
Currency 1%
Other ()%
Operating profit 47 28 19
Operating margil 3.2% 2.1%
Other (charges) gains, r ©)] (23 20
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befasedand minority interes 47 28 19
Depreciation and amortizatic 62 58 3

Our Industrial Specialties segment includes our Bions, PVOH and AT Plastics businesses. Our Emidsi
business is a global leader which produces a hpoadlict portfolio, specializing in vinyl acetatdrgiene emulsion
and is a recognized authority on low VOC (volatilganic compounds), an environmentdhigndly technology. A
a global leader, our PVOH business produces a lpoettblio of performance PVOH chemicals enginedretheet
specific customer requirements. Our emulsions andHP products are used in a wide array of applicetio
including paints and coatings, adhesives, buil@ingd construction, glass fiber, textiles and paf@rPlastics offers
a complete line of low-density polyethylene andcsaléy ethylene vinyl acetate resins and compouAdsPlastics’
products are used in many applications includiegifile packaging films, lamination film productstimelt
adhesives, medical tubing, automotive carpetingsamhar cell encapsulation films.

Net sales increased by 4% during 2008 as incrgarsees and favorable foreign currency impacts ntioa
offset volume reductions. Pricing actions implenaeby all business lines late in 2007 and during82&ontributed
to the increase in net sales. Volumes declinedatiymon decreased demand across all regions dteetglobal
economic downturn combined with the temporary sbwidof our AT Plastics plant late in 2008. The aber
volume decline was partially offset by increasediksions volumes at our Nanjing, China facility, einibegan
operating late in 2008.

Increased net sales were more than offset by higlvematerial and energy costs during 2008. Therfsilléon
increase in operating profit was primarily duedwér other charges and the absence of the $7 mitigs on the
divestiture of our AT Plastics’ Films business B0Z. During 2007, we initiated a plan to simplifydeoptimize our
Emulsions and PVOH businesses to focus on techypalng innovation. Other charges during 2008 inciuale
charge of $3 million for employee termination betsedind accelerated depreciation related to tlain.@Dther
charges during 2007 includes a charge of $14 mifiay employee termination benefits, $3 million &or
impairment of long-lived assets and $5 million ofelerated depreciation expense for our shuttered
United Kingdom plant related to this plan. Otheamgfes in 2007 also include $6 million of goodwiligairment an
receipt of $7 million in insurance recoveries imtfz satisfaction of the business interruptiorskes resulting from
the temporary unplanned outage of the acetic awidatiour Clear Lake, Texas facility.
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Acetyl Intermediate:

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2008 2007 in $
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 3,87¢ 3,61°¢ 26C
Net sales varianct
Volume (3)%
Price 7%
Currency 3%
Other 0%
Operating profit 30¢ 61€ (307)
Operating margil 8.C% 17.(%
Other (charges) gains, r (78) 72 (150
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befasedand minority interes 434 694 (260)
Depreciation and amortizatic 15C 10€ 44

Our Acetyl Intermediates segment produces and mgatetyl products, including acetic acid, VAMetc
anhydride and acetate esters. These products ageeallg used as starting materials for colorardts, adhesives,
coatings, medicines and more. Other chemicals mextlin this segment are organic solvents and irgdiaes for
pharmaceutical, agricultural and chemical products.

Net sales increased by 7% during 2008 primarily tduacreased prices and favorable foreign currémpacts
partially offset by lower volumes. Our formula-bdgeicing arrangements benefited from higher ethgland
methanol costs during the first nine months of 2008rket tightness in the Americas and favorabteifn currenc
impacts in Europe also contributed to the incréasest sales. Reduced volumes offset the increaretisales as t
slowdown of the global economy caused customestote production and diminish current inventory lisye
particularly in Asia during the fourth quarter. \Wxpect the impact of our customers’ destockingdtiites to
continue to a lesser extent during 2009. Ethylenteraethanol prices decreased during the fourthtguaf 2008 on
slowed global demand.

Operating profit declined $307 million primarily agesult of higher ethylene, methanol and energpes,
increased other charges, increased depreciatioampdization and the absence of a $12 million gaithe sale of
our Edmonton facility in 2007. Other charges inseshduring 2008 partially due to $76 million of ¢plived asset
impairment losses recognized in 2008 related tgthiential closure of our acetic acid and VAM protien facility
in Pardies, France, our VAM production unit in Cesjgra, Mexico (which we subsequently decided tad slown
effective at the end of February 2009) and cenéier facilities. Other charges in 2008 also inel&23 million of
long-lived asset impairment and $13 million of sewvee and retention charges related to the shutddwar
Pampa, Texas facility. Also contributing to thereese was the absence of a one-time payment ahfédn
received in 2007 in resolution of commercial digswvith a vendor and a $25 million decrease inrarste
recoveries received in partial satisfaction ofltsses resulting from the temporary outage of tieti@aacid unit at
our Clear Lake, Texas facility. Increased deprémieand amortization expense during 2008 is thelres
accelerated depreciation associated with the shwrtdd our Pampa, Texas facility and a full yeadepreciation fo
our acetic acid plant in Nanjing, China, which tdrup in mid-2007.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax amority interest differs from operating profit prarily as a
result of dividend income from our cost investmeéddtional Methanol Co. (“Ibn Sina”). Increased deind income
of $41 million during 2008 had a positive impactearnings from continuing operations before tax iabrity
interest. Ibn Sina increased their dividends assalt of higher earnings from expanding marginsethanol and
methyl tertiary-butyl ether.
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Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including finance and administrativevites, and
our captive insurance companies.

Net sales remained flat in 2008 as compared to.20@7do not expect third-party revenues from outive
insurance companies to increase significantly enrtear future.

The operating loss for Other Activities improved$8illion during 2008 as compared to 2007 due teelo
other charges, partially offset by higher selliggneral and administrative expenses. Other chaemeased
principally due to the release of reserves relatetie Sorbates antitrust actions settlement aghiion and the
absence of $59 million of deferred compensation plasts which were incurred during 2007. Sellireneral and
administrative expenses increased due to additgpeiding on business optimization and finance awgment
initiatives during 2008.

The loss from continuing operations before tax muibrity interests decreased $346 million durin@&0The
significant decrease was primarily due to the atserf $256 million of refinancing costs incurred2i@07 and the
decrease in the operating loss discussed above.

Summary by Business Segment — Year Ended Decembetr, 2007 Compared with Year Ended December 31,

2006
Advanced Engineered Materials
Year Ended
December 31, Change
2007 2006 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages)
Net sales 1,03( 91t 11k
Net sales varianci
Volume 9%
Price (1)%
Currency 5%
Other 0%
Operating profit 13z 14t (12
Operating margil 12.% 15.8%
Other (charges) gains, r 4 6 (20
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseand minority interest 18¢ 201 (12)
Depreciation and amortizatic 69 65 4

Advanced Engineered Materials’ net sales incre&8é4 for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared t
the same period in 2006 primarily due to volumenghoin all major business lines and favorable auryeimpacts
partially offset by a slight decline in pricing. €all volume for the year increased, principalliven by increased
market penetration, successful implementation of pejects and a continued strong business envieomm
particularly in Europe. Advanced Engineered Matsréxperienced a slight decline in average prigingarily
driven by a larger mix of sales from lower pricedgucts.

Operating profit decreased to $133 million for ylear ended December 31, 2007 compared to $14Hmftir
the same period in 2006 as higher volumes and &@icurrency impacts were more than offset bydrigmergy
costs, increased other charges and slightly lowerage pricing. Other charges increased primarily @ $2 millior
of deferred compensation plan expenses and $5mibif Kelsterbach plant relocation costs, both firexiin 2007.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax amabority interests decreased 6% to $189 milliontfa yeal
ended December 31, 2007 compared to the same pera@®6 primarily due to lower operating profits2007
driven by increased other charges as discussedabov
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Consumer Specialtie

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2007 2006 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 1,111 87¢€ 23t
Net sales varianci
Volume (4)%
Price 4%
Currency 1%
Other 26%
Operating profit 19¢ 16& 34
Operating margil 17.% 18.8%
Other (charges) gains, r 4 — 4
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseand minority interes 23t 18t 50
Depreciation and amortizatic 51 39 12

Consumer Specialties’ net sales increased 27%éyé¢ar ended December 31, 2007 compared to the sam
period in 2006 primarily driven by additional neles from the APL acquisition completed on Jan®dry2007. Ne
sales for APL were $227 million during the year esndecember 31, 2007. Higher pricing for acetatednd flake
products, higher Sunettsweetener volumes and favorable currency impacthéNutrinova business also
contributed to the overall increase in net saleghet Sunet® sweetener volumes reflected the continued growth in
the global beverage and confectionary markets. d hreseases were partially offset by lower aceflatee volumes
and Nutrinova’s exit of non-core lower margin trdaesiness during the fourth quarter of 2006. Thaekse in
acetate flake volumes was due primarily to thetshiproduction of acetate flake to our China veasu

Operating profit increased $34 million for the yeaded December 31, 2007 compared to the samelperio
2006. Higher overall pricing more than offset irages in raw material costs. Higher overall costevwemarily dus
to price increases in wood pulp, acetyls (usedivasmaterials in acetate flake production) and aedtake as well
as expenses associated with the continued integrafiAPL. Other charges during the year ended Déee 31,
2007 includes $3 million of deferred compensatitangxpenses, $5 million of other restructuringrgea and
insurance recoveries of $5 million for partial s&tction of the losses resulting from the tempotarglanned outag
of the acetic acid unit at our Clear Lake, Texadifg. Also included in operating profit for theear ended
December 31, 2007 is a $22 million gain relatethtosale of our Edmonton, Alberta, Canada facility.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax amabority interests increased $50 million to $233liom for
the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the gariod in 2006. The increase was driven prifigifey the
changes in operating profit discussed above andcease of $16 million in dividends received froor China
ventures during the year ended December 31, 20@paeed to the same period in 2006.

Depreciation and amortization increased $12 miltm$51 million for the year ended December 31,7200
compared to the same period in 2006 primarily drikg the acquisition of APL in 2007.
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Industrial Specialties

Year Ended
December 31, Change
2007 2006 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 1,34¢ 1,281 65
Net sales varianci
Volume (1)%
Price 2%
Currency 5%
Other (1)%
Operating profit 28 44 (16)
Operating margil 2.1% 3.4%
Other (charges) gains, r (23 (11 12
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseand minority interes 28 43 (15)
Depreciation and amortizatic 59 59 —

Industrial Specialtieshet sales for the year ended December 31, 200&ased 5% to $1,346 million compal
to the same period in 2006 primarily driven by jricincreases and favorable currency impacts pigroéfset by a
slight decrease in volumes. Higher overall pricipgrticularly in our emulsions and PVOH productasvprimarily
due to market tightness and increasing raw mateossts which allowed for upward movement in pricatgoss all
regions. Lower volumes were primarily driven by thgt supply of VAM, a major raw material usedtime
production of emulsions products. This was a resfullhe temporary unplanned outage of the acetit &gt at our
Clear Lake, Texas facility and other global planaed unplanned production outages in the chemichistry
during the year ended December 31, 2007. The iseriganet sales was partially offset by the absefhcet sales
from the AT Plastics’ Films business, which wasedied during the third quarter of 2007.

Operating profit decreased $16 million to $28 raillifor the year ended December 31, 2007 compargztto
same period in 2006. Higher prices and favorabieeoey impacts were more than offset by the in@éaother
charges. Other charges for the year ended Dece3ih@007 included $14 million of employee terminatbenefits
$3 million for an impairment of long-lived assetsleb5 million of accelerated depreciation expensebir
shuttered United Kingdom plant. These increaseg aeesult of our plan to simplify and optimize &mulsions
and PVOH businesses to become a leader in technaladjinnovation and grow in both new and existimaykets.
Other charges for the year ended December 31, 2B8067ncluded $6 million of goodwill impairment. &lncrease
in other charges was partially offset by insurare®veries of $7 million for partial satisfactiohtbe losses
resulting from the temporary unplanned outage efabetic acid unit at our Clear Lake, Texas facikdditionally,
operating profit decreased by $7 million during ylear ended December 31, 2007 as a result of fseollo the
divestiture of our AT Plastics’ Films business.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax amgority interests decreased $15 million to $28ioml for
the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to e gariod in 2006 principally driven by lower opéng
profits.
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Acetyl Intermediate:

Year Ended
December 31 Change
2007 2006 in$
(In $ millions, except percentages
Net sales 3,61¢ 3,351 264
Net sales varianci
Volume (5)%
Price 9%
Currency 4%
Other 0%
Operating profit 61€ 45¢€ 16C
Operating margil 17.(% 13.6%
Other (charges) gains, r 72 — 72
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseand minority interest 694 51¢ 17¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 10€ 101 5

Acetyl Intermediates’ net sales for the year erdedember 31, 2007 increased 8% to $3,615 millionpared
to the same period in 2006 driven by pricing insemaand favorable currency impacts partially offisetower
volumes. Tight supply of acetyl products causedlopal planned and unplanned production outagéssimndustry
and higher methanol and ethylene prices were tiverdrof the price increases. Lower volumes in 2@@ve the
result of lower product availability due to the fgonary unplanned outage of the acetic acid urduatClear Lake,
Texas facility. However, the decrease in volumesifthe Clear Lake, Texas facility was partiallyseff by the
successful startup of our acetic acid plant in kapjChina and externally procured product.

Operating profit increased to $616 million for year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $45@miki
the same period in 2006. Higher pricing, favoratlaency impacts and an improvement in other cleavgae
partially offset by higher raw material costs. Qtbkarges for the year ended December 31, 200dded!
$4 million of employee termination benefits andrfiiflion of expenses related to accelerated deptieci@xpense,
both associated with the shutdown of our Pampaad glant, and $10 million for deferred compensajitam
expenses. These charges were more than offsetlosniigon related to a one-time payment receivedesolution
of commercial disputes with a vendor and insurarceveries of $28 million for partial satisfactiohthe losses
resulting from the temporary unplanned outage efabetic acid unit at our Clear Lake, Texas facilitcetyl
Intermediates also received $35 million of insumrecoveries from our captive insurance compamiesing to the
unplanned outage of the acetic acid unit at ouadlake, Texas facility. This amount is includedhicetyl
Intermediates’ other charges but is properly elatéd in our consolidated statements of operati@psrating profit
also includes a gain on the sale of our Edmontoititiaof $12 million.

Earnings from continuing operations before tax amgiority interests increased $175 million to $69lion for
the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the gariod in 2006 primarily driven by higher opérgtprofit
and an increase in dividend income from our cogt$tments. Dividend income from Ibn Sina cost itwest
increased $24 million due to increased earningth®year ended December 31, 2007 compared tathe period
in 2006.

Other Activities

Net sales for Other Activities decreased to $2iamlfrom $22 million for the year ended December Z107
compared to the same period in 2006. This decnwaseprincipally driven by the decrease in thirdtpaevenues
from our captive insurance companies.

Operating loss increased to $228 million for tharyended December 31, 2007 compared to $190 mihitime
same period in 2006. This increase was princighilyen by an increase in other charges more thisetihg a
decrease in selling, general and administrativeeses. Other charges increased primarily due tar§lion of
deferred compensation plan costs expensed in Z#ihg, general and administrative expenses deecefor the
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year ended December 31, 2007 primarily due to liserace of executive severance and legal costsiassbwith
the Squeeze-Out of $23 million and long-term insenplan expenses of $20 million recorded in 2006.

Loss from continuing operations before tax and mipdnterests increased $277 million to $699 roiflifor the
year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the samoel in 2006. The increase was primarily driverthry
increase in operating loss discussed above an@tigfinancing expenses incurred in 2007, partiaffget by lowe
interest expense. During the year ended Decemh&08Y, we incurred $256 million of refinancing erges
associated with the April 2, 2007 debt refinancimgerest expense decreased $31 million duringyéae ended
December 31, 2007 compared to the same perioddé gmarily related to lower interest rates on rtiegv senior
credit agreement compared to the interest ratekeoaenior discount notes and senior subordinaiessnwhich
were repaid in April 2007 in conjunction with theld refinancing. In addition, during the year en®etember 31,
2007, we incurred $26 million of mark-to-marketdam the cross currency swap and the Euro denoedirtietm
loan that had been used as a hedge of our netineasin our European subsidiaries.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary source of liquidity is cash generatexhf operations, available cash and cash equivaderts
dividends from our portfolio of strategic investnterin addition, we have a $650 million revolvingdit facility
and a $228 million credit-linked revolving facilitg assist, if required, in meeting our working it@meeds and
other contractual obligations. In excess of 20 &agarticipate in our revolving credit facilityaeh with a
commitment of not more than 10% of the $650 millc@mmitment. Further, Lehman Brothers Holdings,,ladict
filed for protection under Chapter 11 of the Unitetdtes Bankruptcy Code in September 2008, is testdger under
our revolving credit facility and we do not haveyarther material direct exposure to Lehman Brotiaklings,
Inc.

While our contractual obligations, commitments dett service requirements over the next severabyeea
significant, we continue to believe we will haveadable resources to meet our liquidity requirersgirtcluding
debt service, for the remainder of 2009. If outhcthew from operations is insufficient to fund odebt service and
other obligations, we may be required to use atieans available to us such as increasing our bargswreducing
or delaying capital expenditures, seeking addificapital or seeking to restructure or refinanceindebtedness.
There can be no assurance, however, that we witirage to generate cash flows at or above curexai$ or that
we will be able to maintain our ability to borrowder our revolving credit facilities.

On a stand-alone basis, Celanese Corporation hamteyial assets other than the stock of our sigsgd and
no independent external operations of our own.uh swe generally will depend on the cash flow af o
subsidiaries to meet our obligations under ourgsrefl stock, our Series A common stock and ouosenédit
agreement.

Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 286@8%676 million, which was a decrease of $149ionill
from December 31, 2007. Cash and cash equivalsrié@ecember 31, 2007 were $825 million, which waas
increase of $34 million from December 31, 2006. Belew for details on the change in cash and cqslvalents
from December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2008 anditherge in cash and cash equivalents from Dece&iher
2006 to December 31, 2007.

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash flow provided by operating activities increh$20 million to a cash inflow of $586 million @8 from :
cash inflow of $566 million for the same period2@07. Operating cash flows were favorably impattggositive
trade working capital changes ($202 million), lowash taxes paid ($83 million) and the absenceljpéments to
cash for discontinued operations. Adjustments ghdar discontinued operations of $84 million dgr2007 related
primarily to working capital changes of the oxo gwots and derivatives businesses and the shut dbour
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada methanol facility. Otisgtthe increase in cash flows were an increasefrcash
interest paid ($78 million), cash spent on legdlements ($134 million) and decreased operatinditpduring the
period.

Cash flow provided by operating activities decréasea cash inflow of $566 million in 2007 compatedh
cash inflow of $751 million for the same period2@06. The decrease in operating cash flows wasapilyndue to
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adjustments to cash for discontinued operationsaaridcrease in working capital, partially offsgtdn increase in
earnings from continuing operations. Earnings faamtinuing operations increased to $336 millionimiyithe year
ended December 31, 2007 compared with $319 mifbothe same period in 2006.

Net Cash Provided by/Used in Investing Activities

Net cash from investing activities decreased frocash inflow of $143 million in 2007 to a cash ¢auf of
$201 million in 2008. Net cash from investing aitiés decreased primarily due to cash spent ihese¢int of our
cross currency swaps of $93 million (see Note 2héoconsolidated financial statements) and theradesof
proceeds from the sale of our oxo products andratiwves businesses during 2007. These amountsaoffset by ne
cash received on the sale of marketable secuf#Eekl million) and the excess of cash received ffaaport over
amounts spent in connection with the Ticona Kellsteh plant relocation.

Net cash from investing activities improved to atcaflow of $143 million in 2007 compared to altastflow
of $268 million in 2006. The increase in cash inflvas primarily due to the proceeds from the séleuo oxo
products and derivatives businesses partially blfge¢he cash outflow for the APL acquisition. Atlgdinally, our
cash outflow for capital expenditures during tharyended December 31, 2007 was $44 million higherpared to
the same period in 2006. During the year ended mbee 31, 2006, we increased restricted cash byn§Hian
related to the anticipated payment to minority shatders for their remaining Celanese GmbH, forypn€elanese
AG, shares. During the year ended December 31,,280d result of the completion of the Squeeze(€aéd Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements) and #yem@nt to minority shareholders for their remainCejanese
GmbH shares, restricted cash decreased $46 million.

Our cash outflow for capital expenditures were $&itHion, $288 million and $244 million for the yeaended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectivelyudixg amounts related to the relocation of ourohiz plant in
Kelsterbach. Capital expenditures were primarilgitezl to major replacements of equipment, capaoipansions,
major investments to reduce future operating castsenvironmental, health and safety initiativespi@l
expenditures in 2008, 2007 and 2006 included dostihe expansion of our Nanjing, China site intoirstegrated
chemical complex. Cash outflows for capital expands are expected to be approximately $175 miilio2009,
excluding amounts related to the relocation of Giaona plant in Kelsterbach.

On February 5, 2009, we received approximately €8Rfion of cash from Fraport in connection witheth
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation, excluding eatulded tax of €59 million. We anticipate relatadicoutflows
for capital expenditures in 2009 will range fronb$3o $370 million.

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

Net cash from financing activities increased tashcoutflow of $499 million in 2008 compared tosslt
outflow of $714 million during 2007. The increasinerily relates to the absence of cash outflowrsbaitable to
the debt refinancing in 2007. Also contributinghe increase, cash spent to repurchase share2Wasifion less
during 2008 than during 2007. Decreased cash reddor stock option exercises of $51 million pdlyiaffset the
increase.

Net cash from financing activities decreased tashutflow of $714 million in 2007 compared tossit
outflow of $108 million in the same period in 200te decrease primarily relates to the repurchfshares of our
Series A common stock and the debt refinancingsaaidsed in Note 17 and Note 14 to the consolid@edcial
statements, respectively. This decrease was pantidset by $69 million of proceeds received frame exercise of
stock options. Primarily as a result of the defiheancing, we incurred a net cash outflow of $11ifiom related to
repayments of our debt and $240 million for varicefinancing expenses during the year ended Deae&ih@007
Furthermore, we paid a total of $403 million tousghase shares of our Series A common stock dthimgear
ended December 31, 2007.

In addition, exchange rate effects on cash and eqsivalents decreased to an unfavorable curreffieyt of
$35 million in 2008 compared to a favorable impzfc$39 million in 2007 and a favorable impact o6$8illion in
2006.
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Debt and Other Obligations

As of December 31, 2008, we had total debt of $3y88lion and cash and cash equivalents of $67&anil
resulting in net debt of $2,857 million, a $126 il increase over December 31, 2007. Decreasddafas
$149 million and noncash increases in debt of $hdion primarily resulting from new capital leaséligations
were partially offset by net cash paydowns on @i$98 million and favorable foreign currency imtsof
$27 million.

Senior Credit Facilities

Our senior credit agreement consists of $2,280anibf US dollar-denominated and €400 million ofr&u
denominated term loans due 2014, a $650 millioolkéng credit facility terminating in 2013 and aZ@million
creditdinked revolving facility terminating in 2014. A$ Becember 31, 2008, there were no outstandingldngs
or letters of credit issued under the revolvingldréacility; accordingly, $650 million remained aable for
borrowing. As of December 31, 2008, there werei®dion of letters of credit issued under the ctditiked
revolving facility and $137 million remained avdila for borrowing. Our senior credit agreement feggius to
maintain a maximum first lien senior secured legereatio not greater than 3.90 to 1.00 if therecartstanding
borrowings under the revolving credit facility. Tfiest lien senior secured leverage ratio is calted as the ratio of
consolidated first lien senior secured debt to iegmbefore interest, taxes, depreciation and anatidn, subject to
adjustments identified in the credit agreement.$ee 14 to the consolidated financial statememtaéditional
information regarding our senior credit facilities.

Commitments Relating to Share Capital

Our Board of Directors adopted a policy of declgrisubject to legally available funds, a quartedgh
dividend on each share of our Series A common sibek annual rate of $0.16 per share unless oardBaf
Directors in its sole discretion determines othsewiFor the years ended December 31, 2008, 200208&] we
paid $24 million, $25 million and $26 million, re=gively, in cash dividends on our Series A comrsimrtk. On
January 5, 2009, we declared a $6 million castddivil which was paid on February 1, 2009.

Holders of our perpetual preferred stock are etitb receive, when, as and if declared by our é@oér
Directors, out of funds legally available, quanyerash dividends at the rate of 4.25% per annurBp65625 per
share of liquidation preference. Dividends on thefgrred stock are cumulative from the date ofahissuance. Th
preferred stock is convertible, at the option @& tiolder, at any time into approximately 1.26 shafeour Series A
common stock, subject to adjustments, per $25dd0dation preference of the preferred stock. Fenars ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, we paid $10amiinnually of cash dividends on our preferredist@n
January 5, 2009, we declared a $3 million castddivil on our convertible perpetual preferred statkch was pai
on February 1, 2009.

Based upon the number of outstanding shares asadrbber 31, 2008, the cash dividends to be p&609
are expected to result in annual dividend paym&mgar to that paid in 2008.
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Contractual Debt and Cash Obligations
The following table sets forth our fixed contradtdabt and cash obligations as of December 31,.2008

Expiration per Period

Less Thar After 5
Fixed Contractual Debt and Cash Obligation Total 1 Year Years 2 & 3 Years 4 & £ Years
(In $ millions)

Term loans facility 2,79 28 57 57 2,652
Interest payments on de(@) 1,12¢ 204 36¢ 252 302
Capital lease obligatior 211 11 41 23 13€
Other deb® 53C 194 91 58 187
Fixed contractual debt obligatio 4,66: 437 55¢ 391  3,27i
Operating lease 14C 45 48 25 22
Unconditional purchase obligatio 2,291 527 717 39¢ 64¢
FIN 48 obligations, including interest and penal() 21¢ — — — 21¢
Other contractual obligatior 165 47 35 18 65
Fixed contractual debt and cash obligati 7,477 1,05¢ 1,35¢ 832  4,23(

(@) Future interest expense is calculated using tleeimagffect on January 2, 20(
@ Does not include a $2 million reduction due to pase accounting

() Due to uncertainties in the timing of the effectbagtlement of tax positions with the respectivena
authorities, we are unable to determine the tinoihgayments related to our Financial Accountingh8tads
Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, anriptetation of FASB
Statement No. 100FIN 48”) obligations, including interest and pédtiess. These amounts are therefore reflected
in “After 5 Year?”.

Other Debt. Other debt of $530 million is primarily made ufdfiged rate pollution control and industrial
revenue bonds, short-term borrowings from affilatempanies and other bank obligations.

Unconditional Purchase ObligationsUnconditional Purchase Obligations include takpay contracts. We (
not expect to incur any material losses under thea&ractual arrangements. In addition, these aotgmay includ
variable price components.

Other Contractual Obligations.Other Contractual Obligations primarily includesnmitted capital spending
and fines associated with the US antitrust settitgrdescribed in Note 23 to the consolidated finalnstatements.

Contractual Guarantees and Commitments
As of December 31, 2008, we have contractual gteearand commitments as follows:

Expiration per Period

Less Thar After 5

Contractual Guarantees and Commitment Total 1 Year Years 2 & 3 Years 4 & £ Years
(In $ millions)

Financial guarantee 26 8 16 2 —

Standby letters of crec 91 91 — — —

Contractual guarantees and commitm 117 99 16 2 —

We are secondarily liable under a lease agreemigichwve assigned to a third party. The lease expire
April 30, 2012. The lease liability for the peridm January 1, 2009 to April 30, 2012 is estimdtetle
approximately $26 million.
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Standby letters of credit of $91 million outstarglas of December 31, 2008 are irrevocable obligataf an
issuing bank that ensure payment to third partighé event that certain subsidiaries fail to panfn accordance
with specified contractual obligations. The likadd is remote that material payments will be rezpliiunder these
agreements.

Other Obligations

Deferred Compensationin April 2007, certain participants in our 200dfeired compensation plan elected to
participate in a revised program, which includethlmash awards and restricted stock units. Underdbised
program, participants relinquished their cash awaifcup to $30 million that would have contingerghcrued from
2007-2009 under the original plan. See additioisdubsion of the revised program in Note 20 tocihesolidated
financial statements. Based on current participatiche revised program, the awards aggregatpgooaimately
$27 million plus notional earnings and will be rgn@zed as expense through December 31, 2010. Wens&g
$8 million and $6 million during the years endedccBmber 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, relatedetoevised
program.

In December 2008, we entered into time-vesting eagrds of $22 million with Celanese’s executiviocefs
and certain other key employees. Each award of wasts 30% on October 14, 2009, 30% on Octobe2d¥) and
40% on October 14, 2011. In its sole discretioa,dbmpensation committee of the Board of Directoay at any
time convert all or a portion of the cash awardncaward of time-vesting restricted stock units.

Pension and Other Postretirement Obligation®@ur contributions for pension and postretirentesriefits are
preliminarily estimated to be $40 million and $38lion, respectively, in 2009.

Domination Agreement.The domination and profit and loss transfer ague# (the “Domination Agreement”)
was approved at the Celanese GmbH, formerly knav@aanese AG, extraordinary shareholders’ meeting
July 31, 2004. The Domination Agreement betweerm@ee GmbH and the Purchaser became effective on
October 1, 2004 and cannot be terminated by theh@ser in the ordinary course of business untite3aper 30,
2009. Our subsidiaries, Celanese International idgklLuxembourg S.a r.l. (“CIH"), formerly CelaneSaylux
Holdings Luxembourg S.C.A., and Celanese US, hack agreed to provide the Purchaser with finanting
strengthen the Purchaser’s ability to fulfill itsligations under, or in connection with, the Dontioa Agreement
and to ensure that the Purchaser will performfaliscobligations under, or in connection with, themination
Agreement when such obligations become due, inatydvithout limitation, the obligation to compers&telanese
GmbH for any statutory annual loss incurred by Get® GmbH during the term of the Domination Agresmié
CIH and/or Celanese US are obligated to make patgnerder such guarantees or other security tothehBser,
we may not have sufficient funds for payments onindebtedness when due. We have not had to corafeens
Celanese GmbH for an annual loss for any periothdwrhich the Domination Agreement has been inotffe

Purchases of Treasury Stock

In February 2008, our Board of Directors authoritezlrepurchase of up to $400 million of our Sefes
common stock. This authorization was increased@d3$nillion in October 2008. The authorization give
management discretion in determining the conditiomder which shares may be repurchased. This reasec
program does not have an expiration date. Duriegyfar ended December 31, 2008, we repurchased
9,763,200 shares of our Series A common stock avarage purchase price of $38.68 per share fuahdf
approximately $378 million in connection with tkagthorization.

These purchases reduced the number of sharesralitgjaand the repurchased shares may be usedfby us
compensation programs utilizing our stock and otlmeporate purposes. We account for treasury sisitlg the
cost method and include treasury stock as a conmpaf&hareholders’ equity.

Plumbing Actions

We are involved in a number of legal proceedings @daims incidental to the normal conduct of ousibass.
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, there were rese®$64 million and $65 million, respectivelylated to
plumbing action litigation. Although it is impos##at this time to determine with certainty theémbte outcome of
these matters, we believe, based on the adviegaf tounsel, that adequate provisions have bede arad that the
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ultimate outcome will not have a material adverf$ect on our financial position, but could have atarial adverse
effect on our results of operations or cash flowany given accounting period.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have not entered into any material off-balaf@etsarrangements.
Market Risks

Please see “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosin@ut Market Risk” under Item 7A of this Form 10fd¢
additional information about our Market Risks.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements are baseatieselection and application of significant acamm
policies. The preparation of consolidated finanstatements in conformity with US GAAP requires mgement to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities, disclosdirentingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the constditiéinancial statements and the reported amodnts/enues,
expenses and allocated charges during the repgéingd. Actual results could differ from thoseimsttes.
However, we are not currently aware of any reasigriddely events or circumstances that would resultnaterially
different results.

We believe the following accounting polices andneates are critical to understanding the finan@aborting
risks present in the current economic environmEnése matters, and the judgments and uncertaaffiesting
them, are also essential to understanding our tepand future operating results. See Note 2 tednsolidated
financial statements for a more comprehensive dson of our significant accounting policies.

Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

We assess the recoverability of long-lived assatsluding goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibdessets,
whenever events or circumstances indicate thatdhging value of the long-lived asset may notd®werable.
Examples of a change in events or circumstancésdacbut are not limited to, a decrease in theketasrice of a
long-lived asset, a history of cash flow losseatesl to the use of the loriged asset or a significant adverse che
in the extent or manner in which a long-lived asséieing used. To assess the recoverability af-lored assets,
excluding goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibdessets, we compare the carrying amount of the ligag-asset or
group of long-lived assets to the future net urmlisted cash flows expected to be generated bytielived asset
or group of long-lived assets. If such long-livesdets are considered impaired, the impairment rezed is
measured as the amount by which the carrying amafuthe long-lived assets exceeds the fair valuta@iong-
lived assets.

We assess the recoverability of the carrying valfusur goodwill and other indefinite-lived intantghbassets
annually during the third quarter of our fiscal yaaing June 30 balances or whenever events ogekan
circumstances indicate that the carrying amouth@fasset may not be fully recoverable. Recovétali goodwill
and other indefinite-lived intangible assets is suead using a discounted cash flow model. We pieadlgl engage
a third-party valuation consultant to assist usliis process.

The development of future net undiscounted cash fimjections and the discounted cash flow projerti
require management projections related to salepaofidability trends, other future results of optéons and
discount rates. These projections, which requgeificant judgment, are consistent with projectioresuse to
manage our operations internally. To the extertt¢hanges in the current business environmenttrgsatjusted
management projections, impairment losses may ooduture periods.

Income Taxes

We regularly review our deferred tax assets foovecability and establish a valuation allowanceechiasn
historical taxable income, projected future taxabt®mme, applicable tax strategies, and the exgdaténg of the
reversals of existing temporary differences. A agihn allowance is provided when it is more likéian not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assetsmwdtlbe realized. Such evaluations require sigaifienanagement
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judgments. Valuation allowances have been estadlighimarily on net operating loss carryforwardd ather
deferred tax assets in the US, the United Kingdoth@anada.

We record accruals for income taxes and associatie st that may become payable in future yeaesrasult
of audits by tax authorities. We recognize tax fiegnheshen it is more likely than not (likelihood gfeater than
50%), based on technical merits, that the posititibe sustained upon examination. Tax positidre tneet the
more-likely-than-not threshold are measured usipgolability weighted approach as the largest arnofitax
benefit that is greater than 50% likely of beinglized upon settlement. Whether the more-likelyathat
recognition threshold is met for a tax positiom isatter of judgment based on the individual facid circumstanc:
of that position evaluated in light of all availal@#vidence. The actual outcome of the future tassequence could
differ from our estimate due to changes in futireurnstances and may have a material impact ocansolidated
results of operations, financial position or caskws.

Benefit Obligations

We have pension and other postretirement bengiitsptovering substantially all employees who meet
eligibility requirements. With respect to its USadjfied defined benefit pension plan, minimum fumgli
requirements are determined by the Employee Retintihmcome Security Act based on years of service
and/or compensation. Various assumptions are s icalculation of the actuarial valuation of émployee
benefit plans. These assumptions include the weibatverage discount rate, compensation levels ceghéong-
term rates of return on plan assets and trendsatithcare costs. In addition to the above menti@ssumptions,
actuarial consultants use subjective factors sachitthdrawal and mortality rates to estimate thiquoted benefit
obligation. The actuarial assumptions used magdiffaterially from actual results due to changiragkat and
economic conditions, higher or lower withdrawaksabr longer or shorter life spans of participafitese
differences may result in a significant impacthie amount of pension expense recorded in futuiegser

The amounts recognized in the consolidated finhistiements related to pension and other postneéint
benefits are determined on an actuarial basisgAifstant assumption used in determining our pamnsixpense is
the expected long-term rate of return on plan asset of December 31, 2008, we assumed an explkectgderm
rate of return on plan assets of 8.5% for the USified defined benefit pension plan, which represe
approximately 83% and 78% of our pension plan asmed liabilities, respectively. On average, thei@aeturn on
these plan assets over the long-term (15 to 2Gybas exceeded 9.0%.

We estimate a 25 basis point decline in the expdotegterm rate of return for the US qualified definechéfit
pension plan to increase pension expense by anatetl $5 million in 2008. Another estimate thaeef§ our
pension and other postretirement benefit expengeidiscount rate used in the annual actuarialatains of
pension and other postretirement benefit plan akibgs. At the end of each year, we determine pipecgriate
discount rate, used to determine the present wdlfigure cash flows currently expected to be resflito settle the
pension and other postretirement benefit obligatidine discount rate is generally based on the wirlhighguality
corporate fixed-income securities. As of Decemider2®08, we increased the discount rate to 6.50% 8.30% as
of December 31, 2007 for the US plans. We estirtietea 50 basis point decline in our discount vatedecrease
our annual pension expenses by an estimated $ibmiéind increase our benefit obligations by apjpnately
$144 million for our US pension plan. In additithe same basis point decline in our discount rélteaiso increase
our annual expenses and benefit obligations bytless$1 million and $8 million respectively, fouroUS
postretirement medical plans. We estimate that lbass point decline in the discount rate for tbe-S pension
and postretirement medical plans will increase jpenand other postretirement benefit annual expehge
approximately $1 million and less than $1 millioespectively, and will increase our benefit obligas by
approximately $30 million and $2 million, respeetiy.

Other postretirement benefit plans provide medical life insurance benefits to retirees who meaimuim
age and service requirements. The key determimditie accumulated postretirement benefit obligaf&\PBO")
are the discount rate and the healthcare cost te#adThe healthcare cost trend rate has a signifieffect on the
reported amounts of APBO and related expense.@mple, increasing or decreasing the healthcaretieoxl rate
by one percentage point in each year would resulie APBO as of December 31, 2008, and the 2008
postretirement benefit cost to change by approxa3 million and $(3) million, respectively. SHete 15 to the
consolidated financial statements for addition&drimation.
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Accounting for Commitments and Contingenci

We are subject to a number of legal proceedingssués, claims, and investigations, incidentalhe hormal
conduct of our business, relating to and inclugingduct liability, patent and intellectual propertpmmercial,
contract, antitrust, past waste disposal practiedsase of chemicals into the environment and eympént matters,
which are handled and defended in the ordinarysmaf business. We routinely assess the likelited@ihy advers
judgments or outcomes to these matters as wedlrages of probable and reasonably estimable loBsasonabl
estimates involve judgments made by us after cenisig a broad range of information including: nioations,
demands, settlements which have been receiveddnmgulatory authority or private party, estimgiesformed by
independent consultants and outside counsel, élailacts, identification of other potentially resysible parties
and their ability to contribute, as well as priaperience. With respect to environmental liabistié is our policy to
accrue through fifteen years, unless we have govent orders or other agreements that extend befjfteeh years
A determination of the amount of loss contingereyuired, if any, is assessed in accordance withB=8tatement
of Financial Accounting Standards No.Gontingencies and Commitmerdasd recorded if probable and estimable
after careful analysis of each individual mattére Tequired reserves may change in the futureaoew
developments in each matter and as additionalrmition becomes available.

Financial Reporting Changes

See Note 3 to the consolidated financial statenfeniaformation regarding recent accounting
pronouncements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

Market Risks

Our financial market risk consists principally ofp@sure to currency exchange rates, interest eaes
commodity prices. Exchange rate and interest isks are managed with a variety of techniquesputiog use of
derivatives. We have in place policies of hedgiggiast changes in currency exchange rates, intextest and
commodity prices as described below. Contractetgh exposures are primarily accounted for undeeient of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 128counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirdivities
(“SFAS No. 133") amended by SFAS No. 12&counting for Certain Derivative Instruments aner@ain Hedging
Activitiesand SFAS No. 148 mendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instrusreamd Hedging Activities.

Interest Rate Risk Management

We use interest rate swap agreements to managméhest rate risk of our total debt portfolio aethted
overall cost of borrowing. To reduce the inter@sé risk inherent in our variable rate debt, wéadtiinterest rate
swap agreements to convert a portion of our vagigdtle debt to a fixed rate obligation. These egerate swap
agreements are designated as cash flow hedges.

In March 2007, in anticipation of the April 2007kdeefinancing, we entered into various US dollad &uro
interest rate swap agreements, which became eféeati April 2, 2007, with notional amounts of $biBion and
€150 million, respectively. The notional amount e t51.6 billion US dollar interest rate swaps daseel by
$400 million effective January 2, 2008 and decrddseanother $200 million effective January 2, 20D8 offset
the declines, we entered into US dollar interetst svaps with a combined notional amount of $400aniwhich
became effective on January 2, 2008 and an additld8 dollar interest rate swap with a notional amaf
$200 million which will become effective April 20R9.

As of December 31, 2008, we had $2.3 billion, €48Hion and CNY 1.5 billion of variable rate delaf, which
$1.6 billion and €150 million is hedged with intsteate swaps, which leaves $674 million, €304iariland CNY
1.5 billion of variable rate debt subject to inttreate exposure. Accordingly, a 1% increase ierast rates would
increase annual interest expense by approximat&yn$llion.

See Note 22 to the consolidated financial statesnfentfurther discussion of our interest rate risknagement
and the related impact on our financial positiod egsults of operations.

59




Table of Contents

Foreign Exchange Risk Managemel

The primary business objective of this hedging peagis to maintain an approximately balanced parsitin
foreign currencies so that exchange gains anddasselting from exchange rate changes, net dleetlax effects,
are minimized. It is our policy to minimize currgnexposures and to conduct operations either witlmational
currencies or using the protection of hedge stiased\ccordingly, we enter into foreign currencyvards and
swaps to minimize our exposure to foreign currefhagtuations. From time to time we may also hedgeaurrency
exposure related to forecasted transactions. Fdra@mtracts are not designated as hedges under BBAB33.

The following table indicates the total US dollguesalents of net foreign exchange exposure relatédhort)
long foreign exchange forward contracts outstangijngurrency. All of the contracts included in tabdle below
will have approximately offsetting effects from aat underlying payables, receivables, intercomgdaags or other
assets or liabilities subject to foreign excharejegasurement.

2009 Maturity
(In $ millions)

Currency
Euro 14t
British pound sterling (11%)
Mexican pes( 80
Singapore dolla 26
Canadian dolla 21
Japanese ye 9
Brazilian real @)
Swedish kron:i 6
Hungarian forin (5)
Other 3

Total 157

Additionally, a portion of our assets, liabilitiegvenues and expenses are denominated in cursestbier than
the US dollar, principally the Euro. Fluctuationsthie value of these currencies against the U&dgarticularly
the value of the Euro, can have a direct and natenpact on the business and financial results eample, a
decline in the value of the Euro versus the USada#sults in a decline in the US dollar value of sales and
earnings denominated in Euros due to translatifacesf. Likewise, an increase in the value of theoBugrsus the
US dollar would result in an opposite effect.

To protect the foreign currency exposure of a meg$tment in a foreign operation, we entered inbGs
currency swaps with certain financial institution2004. The cross currency swaps and the Eurordigrabed
portion of the senior term loan were designated lasdge of a net investment of a foreign operatida.
dedesignated the net investment hedge due to Bteefnancing in April 2007 and redesignated thess currency
swaps and new senior EURO term loan in July 20G&7a Aesult, we recorded $26 million of mark-to-nedosses
related to the cross currency swaps and the neierdearo term loan during this period.

Under the terms of the cross currency swap arraagemnwe paid approximately €13 million in interast
received approximately $16 million in interest amd 15 and December 15 of each year. The fair waltiee net
obligation under the cross currency swaps was dedun current Other liabilities in the consolidatelance sheets
as of December 31, 2007. Upon maturity of the coossency swap arrangements in June 2008, we owed
€276 million ($426 million) and were owed $333 nali. In settlement of the obligation, we paid $98iar (net of
interest of $3 million) in June 2008.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, we deaktsid €385 million of the €400 million eudenominates
portion of the term loan, previously designate@d &agdge of a net investment of a foreign operafoior to this
dedesignation, we had been using external deratmtracts to offset foreign currency exposures on
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intercompany loans. The foreign currency exposeselting from dedesignation of €385 million of thedge of a
net investment of a foreign operation is expecteoffset the foreign currency exposure on certaiarcompany
loans, decreasing the need for external derivativeracts and reducing our exposure to externaiteoparties. The
remaining €15 million euro-denominated portiontod term loan continues to be designated as a h#dgaet
investment of a foreign operation.

See Note 22 to the consolidated financial statesmfentfurther discussion of our foreign exchang ri
management and the related impact on our finapoisition and results of operations.

Commodity Risk Management

We have exposure to the prices of commoditiessipibcurement of certain raw materials. We mantsge i
exposure primarily through the use of long-termpdyagreements and derivative instruments. We sefjubssess
our practice of purchasing a portion of its comntypdéquirements forward and utilization of othewnaaterial
hedging instruments, in addition to forward pur@heasntracts, in accordance with changes in maxkaditions.
Forward purchases and swap contracts for raw ratgeie principally settled through actual delivefghe physice
commodity. For qualifying contracts, we have elddteapply the normal purchases and normal salespéion of
SFAS No. 133, as amended, as it was probable @&dbption and throughout the term of the contthat they
would not settle net and would result in physiaaiwery. As such, realized gains and losses oretheatracts are
included in the cost of the commodity upon thelsetent of the contract.

In addition, we occasionally enter into financialidatives to hedge a component of a raw materiehergy
source. Typically, these types of transactions atognalify for hedge accounting. These instrumanégsmarked to
market at each reporting period and gains (lossesincluded in Cost of sales in the consolidatatements of
operations. We recognized no gain or loss fromethgses of contracts during the year ended DeceBihe2008
and less than $1 million during each of the yeaded December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectivelyfAs o
December 31, 2008, we did not have any open fie&derivative contracts for commaodities.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Dz

Our consolidated financial statements and suppléamgdata are included in pages F-2 through of Almisual
Report on Form 10-K. See accompanying Item 15. liitchand Financial Statement Schedules and Indéheto
consolidated financial statements on page F-1.
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Quarterly Financial Information
CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Three Months Ended
March 31, June 30  September 3C  December 31

2008 2008 2008 2008
(Unaudited)
(In $ millions, except per share data)

Net sales 1,84¢ 1,86¢ 1,82z 1,28¢

Other (charges) gains, r (16) (7) 1) (84)

Operating profit (loss 234 207 151 (152
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befareand

minority interests 21¢ 247 152 (183

Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 14E 203 164 (140

Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati — (69) (6) (15)

Net earnings (loss 14E 134 15¢€ (15%)

Earnings (loss) per sha— basic 0.9z 0.87 1.0t (1.09)

Earnings (loss) per sha— diluted 0.87 0.8C 0.97 (1.09)

Three Months Ended
March 31,  June 30 September 3C December 31
2007 2007 2007 2007
(Unaudited)
(In $ millions, except per share data

Net sales 1,55¢ 1,55¢ 1,57: 1,76(

Other (charges) gains, r D (105) 12 60

Operating profit 20¢€ 71 147 324
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befareand

minority interest: 171 (16§) 131 313

Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 122 (229 13C 20¢

Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati 79 7 2 6

Net earnings (loss 201 (117 12¢ 214

Earnings (loss) per sha— basic 1.2t (0.76) 0.84 1.3¢

Earnings (loss) per sha— diluted 1.1t (0.76) 0.7¢ 1.27

For a discussion of material events affecting genfnce in each quarter, see Item 7. ManagemergsuBsion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations. All amounts in the table above havelpeeperly
adjusted for the effects of discontinued operations
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcégnting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedure

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including the Chief Executive ¢ffiand
Chief Financial Officer, we have evaluated the @ffeeness of our disclosure controls and procedpuesuant to
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(b) as of the end of thmgeovered by this report. Based on that evabumatas of
December 31, 2008, the Chief Executive Officer @héef Financial Officer have concluded that thelseldsure
controls and procedures are effective.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

None.

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAN CIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal controls over finahci
reporting for the Company. Internal control overaficial reporting is a process to provide reas@nas$urance
regarding the reliability of our financial repouifior external purposes in accordance with accagnirinciples
generally accepted in the United States of Ametigarnal control over financial reporting includasintaining
records that in reasonable detail accurately ainlg f&flect our transactions; providing reasonadssurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary for pregaddtour consolidated financial statements; pdowg reasonable
assurance that receipts and expenditures of comgmsgts are made in accordance with managemeuwtiaation;
and providing reasonable assurance that unautloaizguisition, use or disposition of company asthetscould
have a material effect on our consolidated findrst@tements would be prevented or detected anelytibasis.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting is not intended to pde/absolute
assurance that a misstatement of our consolidataddial statements would be prevented or detected.

Management conducted an evaluation of the effantise of our internal control over financial repagtbased
on the framework in Internal Control — Integratadfiework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Basethisnevaluation, management concluded that the @oyip
internal control over financial reporting was etfee as of December 31, 2008. KPMG LLP has auditéei
assessment of our internal control over finan@gabrting; their report is included below.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Celanese Corporation:

We have audited Celanese Corporation and subsdidthe “Company”) internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2008, based on aitmtiablished iinternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission (COSO). The Companyanagemeil
is responsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting and for its assesahof the
effectiveness of internal control over financighoging, included in the accompanying report of agement on
internal control over financial reporting. Our respibility is to express an opinion on the Comparigternal
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBoa
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether effective internal control over financieporting was maintained in all material respects. &udit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dugincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design aedating effectiveness of internal control basedhenassessed
risk. Our audit also included performing such othiercedures as we considered necessary in thengstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable Basisur opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingathe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfeez A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (Iajpeto the maintenance of records that, in reasiendetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (2) idmveasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as ngctsparmit preparation of financial statementadcordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréwdipts and expenditures of the company are beadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management amdtdis of the company; and (3) provide reasonasdeirance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the consolidatedrcial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjecheorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesdlitions, or that the degree of compliance wWithpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Celanese Corporation and subsiesamaintained, in all material respects, effedinernal
control over financial reporting as of December Z108, based on criteria establishedhiernal Control —
Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrise Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the consolidated balance shedglafnese Corporation and subsidiaries as of Deeefih 2008
and 2007, and the related consolidated stateménfsenations, shareholders’ equity and comprehenisiscome
(loss), and cash flows for each of the years irtlihee-year period ended December 31, 2008, anckport dated
February 12, 2009 expressed an unqualified opiaoiothose consolidated financial statements.

/sl KPMG LLP
Dallas, Texas

February 12, 2009
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Iltem 9B. Other Information
None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govente

The information required by this Item 10 is incargted herein by reference from the section captione
“Corporate Governance”, “Our Management Team,” ‘@gttion 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” of the Company'’s definitive proxy statnt for the 2009 annual meeting of stockholdeisetfiled
not later than March 23, 2009 with the Securitied BExchange Commission pursuant to Regulation ldenthe
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tb@9Proxy Statement”).

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information required by this Item 11 is incorgied by reference from the section captioned “Hitee
Compensation” of the 2009 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners atnbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

The information required by this Iltem 12 is incargted by reference from the section captioned ‘1Stoc
Ownership Information” of the 2009 Proxy Statemditite information required by Item 201(d) of RegidatS-Kis
submitted in a separate section of this Form 1&de Iltem 5 —Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related
Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edatyurities above.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions aRitector Independenct

The information required by this Item 13 is incar@ed by reference from the section captioned ‘d@ert
Relationships and Related Party Transactions” ®2009 Proxy Statement.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Service

The information required by this Item 14 is incaqted by reference from the section captiorRditification o
Independent Auditors — Audit and Related Feeshef2009 Proxy Statement.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedu

1. Financial StatementsThe reports of our independent registered pultiéoanting firm and our consolidat
financial statements are listed below and begipage F-1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Page Number
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfding F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operati F-3
Consolidated Balance She: F-4
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Lo F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Fl F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem F-7

2. Financial Statement Schedule.

The financial statement schedule required by thigiis included as an Exhibit to this Annual Reort
Form 10-K.

3. Exhibit List.

65




Table of Contents

See Index to Exhibits following our consolidateddncial statements contained in this Annual Report
Form 10-K.

PLEASE NOTE: It is inappropriate for readers to assume ther@oy of, or rely upon any covenants,
representations or warranties that may be containagreements or other documents filed as Exhibjtsr
incorporated by reference in, this Annual Reporty Auch covenants, representations or warrantigshane been
qualified or superseded by disclosures containegparate schedules or exhibits not filed witmepiporated by
reference in this Annual Report, may reflect theipa’ negotiated risk allocation in the particuleansaction, may
be qualified by materiality standards that diffearh those applicable for securities law purposed,raay not be
true as of the date of this Annual Report or ameptiate and may be subject to waivers by anyl of #he parties.
Where exhibits and schedules to agreements filégicorporated by reference as Exhibits hereto aténtluded in
these exhibits, such exhibits and schedules tceatgats are not included or incorporated by referdmeein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas
duly caused the report to be signed on its behlyathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CELANESE CORPORATION

By: /s/ David N. Weidmai

Name: David N. Weidman

Title: Chairman of the Board (
Directors and Chief Executive
Officer

Date: February 12, 2009

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each permsbose signature appears below constitutes

and appoints Steven M. Sterin, his true and laafidrney-in-fact with power of substitution andulstitution to
sign in his name, place and stead, in any ancaphdities, to do any and all things and executeazyall

instruments that such attorney may deem necessagvisable under the Securities Exchange Act 8#41&nd any
rules, regulations and requirements of the US Sesiand Exchange Commission in connection withAnnual
Report on Form 10-K and any and all amendmentgdeais fully for all intents and purposes as hehingg could
do in person, and hereby ratifies and confirms a#timtney-in-fact, acting alone, and his substituteubstitutes,

may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereo

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed by th
following persons in the capacities and on theslatdicated.

Signature

/s!/ David N. Weidmau

David N. Weidman

/sl Steven M. Steri

Steven M. Sterii

/sl Miguel A. Desdir

Miguel A. Desdin

/sl James E. Barle

James E. Barle

/s David F. Hoffmeiste

David F. Hoffmeiste

/sl Martin G. McGuinr

Martin G. McGuinn

Title

Date

Chairman of the Board of Directors, Chief February 12, 20C

Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

Vice President, Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)
Director

Director

Director
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Signature

/s/ Paul H. ¢ Neill

Paul H. C Neill

/sl Mark C. Roh

Mark C. Rohr

/s/ Daniel S. Sande

Daniel S. Sandel

/sl Farah M. Walter

Farah M. Walter:

/s/ John K. Wulfi

John K. Wulff
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Celanese Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of Celanese Corporation and subsidighies
“Company”) as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, aaddlated consolidated statements of operatiomsebblders’
equity and comprehensive income (loss), and castsffor each of the years in the three-year pegiutkbd
December 31, 2008. These consolidated financitdrsents are the responsibility of the Company’sagament.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢hesnsolidated financial statements based on alitsau

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighargio
(United States). Those standards require that e g@hd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of materisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢esa basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtrifinancial statements. An audit also includeessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbfirancial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteeaferred to above present fairly, in all matenéspects, the
financial position of Celanese Corporation and &liages as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, andethdts of
their operations and their cash flows for eachhefytears in the three-year period ended Decemh&(0BB, in
conformity with US generally accepted accountiniggples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boar
(United States), the Company’s internal controlrdireancial reporting as of December 31, 2008, Has® criteria
established imnternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidns
the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our reportdd&edruary 12, 2009 expressed an unqualified opiaiothe
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting.

As discussed in Note 22 to the consolidated fir@ratatements, the Company adopted Statement ahé&ia
Accounting Standards No. 157air Value Measurementduring the year ended December 31, 2008.

As discussed in Note 19 to the consolidated fir@ratatements, the Company adopted Financial Adgayn
Standards Board Interpretation No. A8counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxeduring the year ended
December 31, 2007.

As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated fir@ratatements, the Company adopted Statement ahé&ied
Accounting Standards No. 19Bmployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiod ®&ther Postretirement
Plans, during the year ended December 31, 2006.

As discussed in Note 20 to the consolidated fir@ratatements, the Company adopted Statement ahé&ied
Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 20&are-Based Paymentluring the year ended December 31, 2006.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 12, 2009
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions, except for share and per shart
data)
Net sales 6,82% 6,44 5,77¢
Cost of sale: (5,567 (4,999 (4,469
Gross profit 1,25¢ 1,44t 1,30¢
Selling, general and administrative exper (540 (516 (53€)
Amortization of intangible assets (primarily cus&mnelationships (76) (72 (66)
Research and development exper (80) (73 (65)
Other (charges) gains, r (10¢) (58) (20
Foreign exchange gain (loss), | 4 2 ©)]
Gain (loss) on disposition of businesses and agset (8) 20 (9)
Operating profit 44C 74¢ 62C
Equity in net earnings of affiliate 54 82 76
Interest expens (2617) (262) (293
Refinancing expense — (25€) @
Interest incom 31 44 37
Dividend income— cost investment 167 11€ 79
Other income (expense), r 3 (25) 8
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseand
minority interests 434 447 52¢€
Income tax (provision) benet (63) (110 (203)
Minority interests 1 (D) (4)
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatic 372 33¢€ 31¢
Earnings (loss) from operation of discontinued afiens (220 40 13C
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operat 6 52 5
Income tax (provision) benefit, discontinued opiers 24 2 (48)
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operati (90 a0 87
Net earnings (loss 282 42€ 40€
Cumulative preferred stock divide! (10 (10 (10
Net earnings (loss) available to common sharehs 272 41€ 39€
Earnings (loss) per common sh— basic:
Continuing operation 2.44 2.11 1.9
Discontinued operatior (0.67) 0.5¢ 0.5t
Net earnings (los<— basic 1.8: 2.6¢ 2.5C
Earnings (loss) per common sh— diluted:
Continuing operation 2.2¢ 1.9¢ 1.8¢
Discontinued operatior (0.55) 0.5 0.5C
Net earnings (los<— diluted 1.7 2.4¢ 2.3€
Weighted average shar— basic 148,350,27 154,475,02 158,597,42
Weighted average shar— diluted 163,471,87 171,227,99 171,807,59

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialbstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31
2008 2007
(In $ millions, except
share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assel
Cash and cash equivalel 67€ 82t
Trade receivables — third party and affiliates (@fedllowance for doubtful accounts —
2008: $25; 2007: $1¢ 631 1,00¢
Non-trade receivable 32¢ 437
Inventories 577 63€
Deferred income taxe 24 70
Marketable securities, at fair val 6 46
Other asset 42 40
Total current asse 2,28¢ 3,06¢
Investments in affiliate 78¢ 814
Property, plant and equipment (net of accumulatgatetiatior— 2008: $1,141; 2007: $83: 2,47z 2,362
Deferred income taxe 27 10
Marketable securities, at fair val 94 20¢
Other asset 357 30¢
Goodwill 77¢ 86€
Intangible assets, n 364 42F
Total asset 7,16€ 8,05¢

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities

Shor-term borrowings and current installments of I-term debt— third party and affiliate 233 272
Trade payable— third party and affiliate 523 81¢
Other liabilities 574 88¢
Deferred income taxe 15 30
Income taxes payab 24 23
Total current liabilities 1,36¢ 2,031
Long-term debi 3,30(¢ 3,28¢
Deferred income taxe 12z 26E
Uncertain tax position 21¢ 22C
Benefit obligation:s 1,167 69¢
Other liabilities 80¢€ 49t
Minority interests 2 5

Commitments and contingenci
Shareholder’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 sharthorized (2008 and 2007: 9,600,000
issued and outstandin — —
Series A common stock, $0.0001 par value, 400,@00sbares authorized (2008: 164,107,394
issued and 143,505,708 outstanding; 2007: 162,84is3ued and 152,102,801 outstand — —
Series B common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,0008ares authorized (2008 and 2007:
0 shares issued and outstandi — —

Treasury stock, at co— (2008: 20,601,686 shares; 2007: 10,838,486 sh (781) (403
Additional paic-in capital 49E 46¢
Retained earninc 1,047 79¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (579) 197
Total shareholde’ equity 182 1,062
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity 7,16¢€ 8,05¢

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddiabstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Preferred stock
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Issuance of preferred sto

Balance as of the end of the per

Series A common stock

Balance as of the beginning of the per
Issuance of Series A common st
Stock option exercise

Purchases of treasury stc

Stock award:

Balance as of the end of the per

Treasury stock
Balance as of the beginning of the per
Purchases of treasury stock, including related

Balance as of the end of the per

Additional paid-in capital

Balance as of the beginning of the per
Indemnification of demerger liabilit
Stoclk-based compensation, net of -
Stock option exercises, net of t
Restricted stock unit withholdir

Balance as of the end of the per

Retained earnings

Balance as of the beginning of the per
Net earnings (loss

Series A common stock dividen
Preferred stock dividenc

Adoption of FIN 48 (Note 18

Balance as of the end of the per

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), n
Balance as of the beginning of the per

Unrealized gain (loss) on securit

Foreign currency translatic

Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate sw

Pension and postretirement bene

Adjustment to initially apply FASB Statement No.8l%et of tax

Balance as of the end of the per
Total shareholders’ equity

Comprehensive income (loss)

Net earnings (loss

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Unrealized gain (loss) on securit
Foreign currency translatic
Unrealized gain (loss) on interest rate sw
Pension and postretirement bene

Total comprehensive income (loss), net of

(LOSS)

2008

2007

2006

Shares
Outstanding

Amount

Shares
Outstanding  Amount

Shares
Outstanding  Amount

(In $ millions, except share data’

9,600,001 —  9,600,00! —  9,600,00! —
9,600,001 — 9,600,00i —  9,600,00i —
152,102,80 —  158,668,66 — 158,562,16 —
— — 7,40( — — —
1,056,36: — 426522 — 106,50t —
(9,763,20)  — (10,838,48) = = =
109,73 — — — — —
143,505,70 —  152,102,80 — 158,668,66 —
10,838,48 (403 — — _ _
9,763,200 (37§ 10,838,448 (403 — —
20,601,68  (781) 10,838,48 (402 — —
46¢ 362 337

2 4 3

15 15 20

1C 88 2

®) — —

49t 46¢ 362

79¢ 394 24

282 42¢ 40€

(24) (25) (26)

(10) (10) (10)

. 14 .

1,047 79¢ 394

197 31 (126)

(23) 17 13

(130) 70 5

(79) (41) 2

(544) 12¢ 26¢

— — (132)

57¢ 197 31

182 1,062 787

282 42¢ 40€

(23) 17 13

(130) 70 5

(79) (41) 2

(544) 12¢ 26¢

(494) 592 69E

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddialbstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Operating activities

Net earnings (loss 282 42€  40¢€
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) tocash provided by operating activitit
Other (charges) gains, net of amounts t 111 30 (39
Depreciation, amortization and accret 36C 311 32¢
Deferred income taxes, r (69 23 12t
(Gain) loss on disposition of businesses and gaset 1 (74) (8)
Refinancing expens — 25€ —
Other, ne 35 1) 61
Operating cash provided by (used in) discontinysetations 3 (84 10
Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Trade receivable— third party and affiliates, n 33¢ (69 9)
Inventories 21 (27 19
Other asset 53 66 (5)
Trade payable— third party and affiliate (265) 11) (22
Other liabilities (285  (280) (11%)
Net cash provided by operating activit 58€ 56€ 751
Investing activities
Capital expenditures on property, plant and equigt (274 (28¢) (249
Acquisitions and related fees, net of cash acqt — (269) —
Proceeds from sale of businesses and asse 9 71t 23
Proceeds from Ticona Kelsterbach plant reloce 311 — 26
Capital expenditures related to Ticona Kelsterljzlant relocatior (18%) 1) —
Proceeds from sale of marketable secur 20z 69 95
Purchases of marketable securi (92) (59) (65
Changes in restricted ca — 46 (42
Settlement of cross currency swap agreernr (93 — —
Investing cash provided by (used in) discontinuperations — — (18
Other, ne (80) (50) (43
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi (207) 14 (26¢)
Financing activities
Shor-term borrowings (repayments), r (64) 30 13
Proceeds from lor-term deb 13 2,90¢ 38
Repayments of lor-term debr (47) (3,059 (125
Refinancing cost — (2400 —
Purchases of treasury stock, including related (37¢) (405 —
Stock option exercise 18 69 2
Series A common stock dividen (29 (25 (26)
Preferred stock dividenc (20 (10) (10
Other, ne (7) 14 —
Net cash used in financing activiti (499) (714 (109
Exchange rate effects on cash and cash equivs (35) 39 26
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (149) 34 401
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 82& 791  39C
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe 67€ 828 791

See the accompanying notes to the consolidateddiakstatements.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Description of the Company

Celanese Corporation and its subsidiaries (collelstithe “Company”) is a leading global integratdatmical
and advanced materials company. The Company'’s ésssinvolves processing chemical raw materiald) asc
methanol, carbon monoxide and ethylene, and ngpuoalucts, including wood pulp, into value-addedrofcals,
thermoplastic polymers and other chemical-basedymts.

Definitions

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the term “Cedae” refers to Celanese Corporation, a Delaware
corporation, and not its subsidiaries. The termldBese US” refers to the Company’s subsidiary, @=da US
Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability comparfgrmerly known as BCP Crystal US Holdings Corp., a
Delaware corporation, and not its subsidiaries. fEne “Purchaser” refers to the Company’s subsjdi@elanese
Europe Holding GmbH & Co. KG, formerly known as BCPRystal Acquisition GmbH & Co. KG, a German lindt
partnership, and not its subsidiaries, except wh#rerwise indicated. The term “Original Sharehottieefers,
collectively, to Blackstone Capital Partners (Cawgiriatd. 1, Blackstone Capital Partners (Cayman) Ptd
Blackstone Capital Partners (Cayman) Ltd. 3 and@#ital Investors Sidecar Fund, L.P. The term “Advi refers
to Blackstone Management Partners, an affiliat€haf Blackstone Group.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements containgti;mAnnual Report were prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in thetdthStates of America (“US GAAP”) for all periodsepented.
The consolidated financial statements and othanfifal information included in this Annual Repamless
otherwise specified, have been presented to sehasitow the effects of discontinued operations.

2. Summary of Accounting Policies
« Consolidation principles

The consolidated financial statements have bequaped in accordance with US GAAP for all periods
presented and include the accounts of the Compathyt@majority owned subsidiaries over which trarpany
exercises control. All significant intercompany @agots and transactions have been eliminated inotidasion.

« Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statesi@ntonformity with US GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities, disclosdrentingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the constitiéinancial statements and the reported amodnts/enues,
expenses and allocated charges during the repgréingd. Significant estimates pertain to impairtsesf goodwill,
intangible assets and other long-lived assetshaise price allocations, restructuring costs andrqtharges) gains,
net, income taxes, pension and other postretirebvemfits, asset retirement obligations, envirortaldiabilities
and loss contingencies, among others. Actual iesoltld differ from those estimates.

» Cash and cash equivalents
All highly liquid investments with original matuigts of three months or less are considered cashaeots.
* Inventories

Inventories, including stores and supplies, artedtat the lower of cost or market. Cost for inoeiais is
determined using the first-in, first-out (“FIFO™)athod. Cost includes raw materials, direct labat mwanufacturing
overhead. Cost for stores and supplies is primdetgrmined by the average cost method.

* Investments in marketable securities

The Company classifies its investments in debteaqdty securities as “available-for-sale” and repdinose
investments at their fair market values in the otidated balance sheets as Marketable Securitiéairaalue.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Unrealized gains or losses, net of the relateetfect on available-for-sale securities, are exetuttom earnings
and are reported as a component of Accumulated ottmprehensive income (loss), net until realiZéte cost of
securities sold is determined by using the speitifatification method.

A decline in the market value of any available-$ate security below cost that is deemed to be <tizer-
temporary results in a reduction in the carryingant to fair value. The impairment is charged tmesys and a
new cost basis for the security is establishedd@termine whether impairment is other-than-tempoitae
Company considers whether it has the ability atehinto hold the investment until a market priceorery and
evidence indicating the cost of the investmenée&overable outweighs evidence to the contrary. éhdd
considered in this assessment includes the redsotige impairment, the severity and duration & itmpairment,
changes in value subsequent to year end and foeelgasrformance of the investee.

* Investments in affiliates

Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 18he Equity Method of Accounting for Investments in
Common Stockstipulates that the equity method should be ts@dcount for investments whereby an investor has
“the ability to exercise significant influence ow@perating and financial policies of an investdrit does not
exercise control. APB Opinion No. 18 generally édass an investor to have the ability to exercigaificant
influence when it owns 20% or more of the votingcktof an investee. Financial Accounting Stand&uolard
(“FASB") Interpretation No. 35Criteria for Applying the Equity Method of Accowugifor Investments in Common
Stock, which was issued to clarify the criteria for appt the equity method of accounting to 50% or lessed
companies, lists circumstances under which, de2pié ownership, an investor may not be able toaser
significant influence. Certain investments whemre @ompany owns greater than a 20% ownership antbtan
exercise significant influence or control are asted for under the cost method (Note 8).

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of its investments whenever events anges in
circumstances indicate a loss in value that isrdtien a temporary decline. A loss in value of quity-method or
cost-method investment which is other than a tearyadecline will be recognized as the differencevieen the
carrying amount of the investment and its fair ealu

The Company’s estimates of fair value are deterchivesed on a discounted cash flow model. The Coynpan
periodically engages third-party valuation consutao assist with this process.

* Property, plant and equipment, net

Land is recorded at historical cost. Buildings, hiaery and equipment, including capitalized interaad
property under capital lease agreements, are red@tlcost less accumulated depreciation. Depieisst
calculated on a straight-line basis over the foif@pestimated useful lives of depreciable assets:

Land Improvement 20 year
Buildings and Building Improvemen 30 year
Machinery and Equipmel 20 year

Leasehold improvements are amortized over ten y@atse remaining life of the respective lease,clvbver is
shorter.

Accelerated depreciation is recorded when the estichuseful life is shortened. Ordinary repair and
maintenance costs, including costs for planned maénce turnarounds, that do not extend the ubkfuf the
asset are charged to earnings as incurred. Fyiisedimted assets are retained in property and defiten accounts
until sold or otherwise disposed. In the case sposals, assets and related depreciation are renfimre the
accounts, and the net amounts, less proceeds fspogal, are included in earnings.

The Company also leases property, plant and equipumeler operating and capital leases. Rent exgfense
operating leases, which may have escalating reataknt holidays over the term of the lease, éorded on a
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

straightline basis over the lease term. Amortization ofitsdyease assets is included as a component oédiggion
expense.

Assets acquired in business combinations are redaatltheir fair values and depreciated over tsetas
remaining useful lives or the Company’s policy yahichever is shorter.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingramount of its property, plant and equipmenendver
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleatdhrying amount of an asset or asset group miglyeno
recoverable. An impairment loss would be asses$ephwstimated undiscounted future cash flows fifwan t
operation and disposition of the asset group a®tlean the carrying amount of the asset groupetAgsups have
identifiable cash flows and are largely independdmther asset groups. Measurement of an impairfoss is
based on the excess of the carrying amount ofdbet group over its fair value. Fair value is meagdwsing
discounted cash flows or independent appraisalgppopriate. Impairment losses are recorded inedégion
expense or Other (charges) gains, net dependitigediacts and circumstances.

» Goodwill and other intangible assets

Trademarks and trade names, customer-related ibtaragsets and other intangibles with finite liaes
amortized on a straight-line basis over their eatéd useful lives. The weighted average amortingigriod is
8 years. The excess of the purchase price ovevdhie of net identifiable assets and liabilitiéso acquired
business (“goodwill”) and other indefinite-livedtémgible assets are not amortized, but ratherddstempairment,
at least annually. The Company tests for goodwidl endefinite-lived intangible asset impairmentidgrthe third
quarter of its fiscal year using June 30 balances.

The Company assesses the recoverability of thgingrvalue of goodwill at least annually or whenegeents
or changes in circumstances indicate that the iceyamount of the goodwill of a reporting unit magt be fully
recoverable. Recoverability is measured at thertgmpunit level based on the provisions of Statetvd Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 14@podwill and Other Intangible Asset$he Company’s estimates of fair
value are determined based on a discounted casinftzdel. The Company periodically engages thirdypar
valuation consultants to assist with this prockapairment losses are recorded in other operatipgrese or Other
(charges) gains, net depending on the facts andmBstances.

The Company assesses recoverability of other inieflived intangible assets at least annually bemever
events or changes in circumstances indicate tleatdtlrying amount of the indefinite-lived intangitasset may not
be fully recoverable. Recoverability is measuredtmpmparison of the carrying value of the indedidived
intangible asset over its fair value. Any excesthefcarrying value of the indefinite-lived intablgi asset over its
fair value is recognized as an impairment loss. Chmpany’s estimates of fair value are determirgskt on a
discounted cash flow model. The Company periodicatigages third-party valuation consultants tosaggih this
process. Impairment losses are recorded in othenatipg expense or Other (charges) gains, net damgon the
facts and circumstances.

The Company assesses the recoverability of finiedlintangible assets in the same manner as éqepty,
plant and equipment as described above. Impairtossés are recorded in amortization expense orr@tharges)
gains, net depending on the facts and circumstances

 Financial instruments

On January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the pomasif SFAS No. 15Fair Value Measurements
(“SFAS No. 157") for financial assets and liabd#i On January 1, 2009, the Company applied thagiwas of
SFAS No. 157 for non-recurring fair value measunetsief non-financial assets and liabilities, suslyaodwiill,
indefinite-lived intangible assets, property, plant equipment and asset retirement obligations.aboption of
SFAS No. 157 for non-recurring fair value measunetmef non-financial assets and liabilities did have a
material impact on the Company’s financial positigsults of operations or cash flows. SFAS No. d&fihes fair
value, and increases disclosures surrounding &irevcalculations.
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The Company manages its exposures to currency egehrates, interest rates and commodity pricesitira
risk management program that includes the userdfat®ve financial instruments (Note 22). The Compaoes not
use derivative financial instruments for speculatiading purposes. The fair value of all derivativstruments is
recorded as assets or liabilities at the balaneetgtate. Changes in the fair value of these imstnis are reported
income or Accumulated other comprehensive incomssj| net, depending on the use of the derivatidenehether
it qualifies for hedge accounting treatment untéiergrovisions of SFAS No. 13B¢ccounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activiti, as amended (“SFAS No. 133").

Gains and losses on derivative instruments qualjfas cash flow hedges are recorded in Accumutzttest
comprehensive income (loss), net, to the extenhéuges are effective, until the underlying tratisas are
recognized in income. To the extent effective, gand losses on derivative and non-derivativeunsénts used as
hedges of the Company’s net investment in forejggrations are recorded in Accumulated other congursilie
income (loss), net as part of the cumulative ti@imh adjustment. The ineffective portions of cietv hedges and
hedges of net investment in foreign operationanif, are recognized in income immediately. Denixatnstruments
not designated as hedges are marked to markest ahthof each accounting period with the chandeiirvalue
recorded in income.

» Concentrations of credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the eeémonpayment by customers and counterparties. The
creditworthiness of customers and counterpartissiligect to continuing review, including the useraster netting
agreements, where the Company deems approprisgeCd@impany minimizes concentrations of credit isktigh
its global orientation in diverse businesses withrge number of diverse customers and supplieraddtlition, credi
risks arising from derivative instruments is n@trsficant because the counterparties to these actstare primarily
major international financial institutions and adesser extent, major chemical companies. Wheyeoppate, the
Company has diversified its selection of countdipsr Generally, collateral is not required fronsteumers and
counterparties and allowances are provided foripeisks inherent in receivables.

« Deferred financing costs

The Company capitalizes direct costs incurred taioldebt financings and amortizes these costgusin
method that approximates the effective interest na¢thod over the terms of the related debt. Upen t
extinguishment of the related debt, any unamortcaggtalized debt financing costs are immediat&lyemsed.

* Environmental liabilities

The Company manufactures and sells a diverse fickamical products throughout the world. Accordinghe
Company’s operations are subject to various hazagidental to the production of industrial chentscimcluding
the use, handling, processing, storage and tratadjwor of hazardous materials. The Company recegrizsses and
accrues liabilities relating to environmental migtti€ available information indicates that it isopable that a liabilit
has been incurred and the amount of loss can Benmahly estimated. Depending on the nature ofitbgthe
Company accrues through fifteen years, unless timegany has government orders or other agreemettextend
beyond fifteen years. If the event of loss is reithrobable nor reasonably estimable, but is reddgmpossible, the
Company provides appropriate disclosure in themtmiehe consolidated financial statements if ihiogency is
considered material. The Company estimates envieotethliabilities on a case-by-case basis usingrtbst current
status of available facts, existing technologysprely enacted laws and regulations and prior éapee in
remediation of contaminated sites. Recoveries virenmental costs from other parties are recordeassets when
their receipt is deemed probable.

An environmental reserve related to cleanup ofrdarainated site might include, for example, a psimri for
one or more of the following types of costs: siteastigation and testing costs, cleanup costss cekited to soil
and water contamination resulting from tank rupguaad post-remediation monitoring costs. Thesevesalo not
take into account any claims or recoveries fromuiasce. There are no pending insurance claimsipr a
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

environmental liability that are expected to beeniat. The measurement of environmental liabiliieebased on the
Company’s periodic estimate of what it will costperform each of the elements of the remediatiéortefThe
Company utilizes third parties to assist in the aggament and development of cost estimates foités. hanges
environmental regulations or other factors affeg@mvironmental liabilities are reflected in theasolidated
financial statements in the period in which theguwqNote 16).

* Legal fees

The Company accrues for legal fees related todorngency matters when the costs associated with
defending these matters can be reasonably estiraatbdre probable of occurring. All other legalsfaee expensed
as incurred.

« Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when title andofisdss have been transferred to the customer rgiyat
the time of shipment of products, and provided tbat basic criteria are met: (1) persuasive evigenf an
arrangement exists; (2) delivery has occurred nmices have been rendered; (3) the fee is fixedeterminable; ar
(4) collectibility is reasonably assured. Shouldmges in conditions cause the Company to deterreirenue
recognition criteria are not met for certain tragigms, revenue recognition would be delayed wutih time that th
transactions become realizable and fully earnegmieats received in advance of meeting the aboventey
recognition criteria are recorded as deferred regen

* Research and development
The costs of research and development are chasgad expense in the period in which they are imclrr
* Insurance loss reserves

The Company has two wholly owned insurance compgatiiee “Captives”) that are used as a form of self
insurance for property, liability and workers comgation risks. One of the Captives also insuresicethird-party
risks. The liabilities recorded by the Captivestelto the estimated risk of loss which is basethanagement
estimates and actuarial valuations, and unearrexdipms, which represent the portion of the thirdyppremiums
written applicable to the unexpired terms of thégies in-force. Liabilities are recognized for kmo claims when
sufficient information has been developed to ingidavolvement of a specific policy and the Compaag
reasonably estimate its liability. In addition Hiities have been established to cover additiexplosure on both
known and unasserted claims. Estimates of thditiabiare reviewed and updated regularly. It isgible that actui
results could differ significantly from the recocdiéabilities. Premiums written are recognized égenue based on
the terms of the policies. Capitalization of thep@zes is determined by regulatory guidelines.

* Reinsurance receivables

The Captives enter into reinsurance arrangememeitece their risk of loss. The reinsurance arrareggs do
not relieve the Captives from their obligationgtdicyholders. Failure of the reinsurers to horaitt obligations
could result in losses to the Captives. The Captaxaluate the financial condition of their reirssrand monitor
concentrations of credit risk to minimize their espre to significant losses from reinsurer insobves and to
establish allowances for amounts deemed non-citilect

¢ Income taxes

The provision for income taxes has been determirsaty the asset and liability approach of accognftim
income taxes. Under this approach, deferred indaxes reflect the net tax effects of temporaryedéhces betwer
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitiesfiftancial reporting purposes and the amounts useth€ome tax
purposes and net operating loss and tax credi éamwvards. The amount of deferred taxes on thesgorary
differences is determined using the tax ratesdtaexpected to apply to the period when the &sset
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CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

realized or the liability is settled, as applicagidased on tax rates and laws in the respectivpitesdiction enacted
as of the balance sheet date.

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets favezability and establishes a valuation allowanasell on
historical taxable income, projected future taxab®me, applicable tax strategies, and the exgdateng of the
reversals of existing temporary differences. A atibn allowance is provided when it is more likéian not that
some portion or all of the deferred tax assetsmwatlbe realized.

The Company adopted the provisions of FASB Integtien No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes — an interpretation of FASB Statement No("FIfl 48”) on January 1, 2007. The Company considers 1
factors when evaluating and estimating its taxfm®s and tax benefits, which may require periatigistments ar
which may not accurately anticipate actual outcaries positions are recognized only when it is mik&ly than
not (likelihood of greater than 50%), based on iméxdl merits, that the positions will be sustaingbn examinatiol
Tax positions that meet the more-likely-thaot-threshold are measured using a probability teiyapproach as t
largest amount of tax benefit that is greater $@¥b likely of being realized upon settlement. Wieetthe more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold is met fotaa position is a matter of judgment based on tidévidual facts
and circumstances of that position evaluated int laf all available evidence.

 Minority interests

Minority interests in the equity and results of mgi®ns of the entities consolidated by the Compameyshown
as a separate line item in the consolidated firrdistatements. The entities included in the codatdid financial
statements that have minority interests are agviatl

Ownership Percentage
as of December 31,

2008 2007
Celanese Polisinteza d.o. 76% 76%
Synthesegasanlage Ruhr Gm 50% 50%

The Company has a 60% voting interest and the t@hppoint a majority of the board of managemént o
Synthesegasanlage Ruhr GmbH, which results in tmepany controlling this entity and, accordinglye tiompany
is consolidating this entity in its consolidatedancial statements.

« Accounting for purchasing agent agreements

A subsidiary of the Company acts as a purchasiegtagn behalf of the Company, as well as thirdipsriThe
entity arranges sale and purchase agreementsifanederials on a commission basis. Accordingly,dbemission
earned on these third-party sales are classifiedraduction to Selling, general and administragixpenses.

« Functional and reporting currencies

For the Company’s international operations wheeeftimctional currency is other than the US dobasets and
liabilities are translated using period-end exclearages, while the statement of operations amametsranslated
using the average exchange rates for the respgmived. Differences arising from the translatidrassets and
liabilities in comparison with the translation bitprevious periods or from initial recognition ithgrthe period are
included as a separate component of Accumulatest otmprehensive income (loss), net.

* Reclassifications
The Company has reclassified certain prior perimdunts to conform to the current year presentation.
3. Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. Nefhcontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an amendment of ARB N@:SHAS No. 160”) to establish accounting and reijpgrstandards for
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the noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary andtfe deconsolidation of a subsidiary. It clarifieat a noncontrollin
interest in a subsidiary is an ownership intereshé consolidated entity that should be reportedcity in the
consolidated financial statements and establisls&sgée method of accounting for changes in a gaemvnership
interest in a subsidiary that does not result icodsolidation. The Company adopted SFAS No. 160amuiary 1,
2009. This standard had no material impact on tgany’s financial position, results of operatieangash flows.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141R3jness Combinatiof$SFAS No. 141(R)").
SFAS No. 141(R) establishes principles and requérémfor how an acquirer recognizes and measuiiés in
financial statements the identifiable assets aequihe liabilities assumed, the goodwill acquised any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree. This statetredso establishes disclosure requirements to erthblevaluation
of the nature of the financial effect of the busseombination. SFAS No. 141(R) is effective fotbalsiness
combinations for which the acquisition date is omfber the beginning of the first fiscal year affiecember 15,
2008, with the exception of the accounting for @dilon allowances on deferred taxes and acquired tax
contingencies. SFAS No. 141(R) amends SFAS No. A6&unting for Income Taxesuch that adjustments made
to valuation allowances on deferred taxes and aeduax contingencies associated with acquisittbasclosed
prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 141(R) wbalso apply the provisions of SFAS No. 141(R). Twnpany
adopted SFAS No. 141(R) on January 1, 2009. Beggnini 2009, the Company will record adjustments to
preacquisition tax contingencies as a componeimtonime tax expense in the consolidated statemespefations.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1Bisclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedgin
Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement No(“SFAS No. 161”). SFAS No. 161 requires enhanced
disclosures about a company’s derivative and hedaitivities. These enhanced disclosures will disc(a) how
and why a company uses derivative instrumentd@i) derivative instruments and related hedged it@ras
accounted for under FASB Statement No. 133 aneliéded interpretations and (c) how derivativerimsients and
related hedged items affect a company’s finanaaltfon, results of operations and cash flows. Thenpany
adopted SFAS No. 161 on January 1, 2009. This atdrithd no impact on the Compasginancial position, resul
of operations or cash flows.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Positi6RSP”) FAS No. 142-3Determination of the Useful Life
of Intangible Asset§FSP FAS No. 142-3"). FSP FAS No. 142-3 amenddletors that should be considered in
developing renewal or extension assumptions usdétermine the useful life of a recognized intafegésset under
SFAS No. 142Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset3he intent of this FSP is to improve the consisyebetween
the useful life of a recognized intangible asset te period of expected cash flows used to medkaerair value ¢
the asset under SFAS No. 141 (revised 20Bi@$iness Combinationsand other US GAAP. The Company adopted
FSP FAS No. 142-3 on January 1, 2009. This stanudcho material impact on the Company’s finanggslition,
results of operations or cash flows.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1&8¢ Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Eiptes,
(“SFAS No. 162"), which became effective NovembBr 2008. SFAS No. 162 identifies the sources obanting
principles and the framework for selecting the giptes to be used in the preparation of finandiaesnents of
nongovernmental entities that are presented inocorify with US GAAP. This standard had no impactioa
Company’s financial position, results of operationgash flows.

In September 2008, the EITF issued EITF No. OBeijity Method Investment Accounting Considerations
(“EITF 08-6"). EITF 08-6 addresses the effect oi8&No0. 141(R) and SFAS No. 160 on the equity meibfod
accounting. The Company adopted EITF 08-6 on JgrLig2009. This standard had no impact on the Coyipa
financial position, results of operations or caskvg.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS No. 197e3¢rmining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset \Whe
the Market for That Asset Is Not Actf’ESP FAS No. 157-3")to provide guidance on determining the fair valé
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financial instruments in inactive markets. FSP P& 157-3became effective for the Company upon issuances
standard had no impact on the Company’s finandaitjon, results of operations or cash flows.

4. Acquisitions, Ventures, Divestitures and Asset Sad
Acquisitions

On January 31, 2007, the Company completed thesitiqn of the cellulose acetate flake, tow andhfil
business of Acetate Products Limited (“APL"), a sidliary of Corsadi B.V. The purchase price for titamsaction
was approximately £57 million ($112 million), indition to direct acquisition costs of approximat&ly million
($7 million). As contemplated prior to the closiofithe acquisition, the Company closed the acqutived
production plant at Little Heath, United KingdomSeptember 2007. In accordance with the Compapgesor
services agreement dated January 26, 2005, as athehd Company paid the Advisor $1 million in ceation
with the acquisition. The acquired business isudet in the Company’s Consumer Specialties segment.

On April 6, 2004, the Company acquired 84% of CetanGmbH. During 2005, the Company acquired an
additional 14% of Celanese GmbH. On May 30, 20@8aftese GmbH's shareholders approved a transfeeto
Purchaser of all shares owned by minority sharefrsldgainst payment of cash compensation in thelained
€66.99 per share (the “Squeeze-Out”). As a resuh®kffective registration of the Squeeze-Ouhan¢ommercial
register in Germany in December 2006, the Companguieed the remaining 2% of Celanese GmbH in Jgnuar
2007. The Company’s current ownership percentageianese GmbH is 100%.

Ventures

In March 2007, the Company entered into a strategithership with Accsys Technologies PLC (“Accdys”
and its subsidiary, Titan Wood, to become the estekisupplier of acetyl products to Titan Wood'shieology
licensees for use in wood acetylation. In connectiith this partnership, in May 2007, the Compaogared
8,115,883 shares of Accsys’ common stock reprasgiaipproximately 5.45% of the total voting shareAasys
for €22 million ($30 million). The investment wagated as an available-for-sale security and waaded in
Marketable securities on the Company’s consolidat#ddnce sheets. On November 20, 2007, the Congoathy
Accsys announced that they agreed to amend thginéss arrangements so that each company wouldahave
nonexclusive “at-will” trading and supply relatidmg to give both companies greater flexibility. part of this
amendment, the Company subsequently sold all shizses of Accsys stock for approximately €20 onilli
($30 million), which resulted in a cumulative laxs$3 million.

Divestitures

In July 2008, the Company sold its 55.46% inteire&erivados Macroquimicos S.A. de C.V. (‘“DEMACSA")
for proceeds of $3 million. DEMACSA produces cedisg ethers at an industrial complex in Zacapu, bachn,
Mexico and is included in the Company’s Acetyl mediates segment. In June 2008, the Company red@nad
impairment loss of $1 million to Cost of saleslie tonsolidated statements of operations. As dtyésel proceeds
from the sale approximated the carrying value oMMESA on the date of the sale. The Company condutle
sale of DEMACSA is not a discontinued operation tlueertain forms of continuing involvement betweke
Company and DEMACSA subsequent to the sale.

In August 2007, the Company sold its Films busire#sST Plastics, located in Edmonton and Westlock,
Alberta, Canada, to British Polythene Industrie€RIBPI”) for $12 million. The Films business maaafures
products for the agricultural, horticultural anchstruction industries. The Company recorded adosthe sale of
$7 million during the year ended December 31, 20bi2 Company maintained ownership of the Polymasiness
of AT Plastics, which concentrates on the develagraad supply of specialty resins and compoundsPAsEtics is
included in the Company’s Industrial Specialtiegrsent. The Company concluded that the sale of ilhesF
business of AT Plastics is not a discontinued dperalue to the level of continuing cash flows bed¢w the Films
business and AT Plastics’ Polymers business subsédpithe sale. Under the terms of the purchase
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agreement, the Company entered into a two yeas agieeement to continue selling product to BPIugtoAugust
20009.

In December 2006, the Company sold its preferregtést in Pemeas GmbH, a venture formed in ApGi42®
advance the commercialization of the Company’s éedlitechnology to BASF AG. The Company receivetl n
proceeds from the sale of €9 million and recogniaegin of €8 million ($11 million). This amountirgcluded in
Other income (expense), net in the consolidataérsients of operations.

In connection with the Company’s strategy to optienits portfolio and divest non-core operations, th
Company announced on December 13, 2006 its agreemsell its Acetyl Intermediates segment’s oxodurcts
and derivatives businesses, including European@xbH (“EOXQ"), a 50/50 venture between Celanese Bmb
and Degussa AG (“Degussa”), to Advent Internatipfala purchase price of €480 million ($636 mitljcsubject to
final agreement adjustments and the successfutiseenf the Company’s option to purchase Degess@% interes
in EOXO. On February 23, 2007, the option was dégettand the Company acquired Degussa’s interélsein
venture for a purchase price of €30 million ($3%iom), in addition to €22 million ($29 million) pd to extinguish
EOXQO'’s debt upon closing of the transaction. Thenany completed the sale of its oxo products amiyateses
businesses, including the acquired 50% intereBOXO, on February 28, 2007. The sale included #oeamd
derivatives businesses at the Oberhausen, GerraadBay City, Texas facilities as well as portiofgs Bishop,
Texas facility. Also included were EOXQO's faciliiavithin the Oberhausen and Marl, Germany plarts. former
oxo products and derivatives businesses acquiréediignt International was renamed Oxea. Taking atoount
agreed deductions by the buyer for pension and etn@loyee benefits and various costs for separatitivities,
the Company received proceeds of approximately ##ldn ($585 million) at closing. The transactioesulted in
the recognition of a $47 million pre-tax gain, reded to Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinuedaens, which
includes certain working capital and other adjusttagin 2007. Due to certain lease-back arrangesrtsativeen the
Company and the buyer and related environmentaatibns of the Company, approximately $51 millafrthe
transaction proceeds attributable to the fair valuine underlying land at Bay City ($1 million)&®berhausen
(€36 million) is included in deferred proceeds onourrent Other liabilities, and divested land vathook value of
$14 million (€10 million at Oberhausen and $1 roifliat Bay City) remains in Property, plant and pment, net in
the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Subsequent to closing, the Company and Oxea hatagrcsite service and product supply arrangemditis.
site services include, but are not limited to, adstrative, utilities, health and safety, wasteavateatment and
maintenance activities for terms which range ufifteen years. Product supply agreements contatialiterms of
up to fifteen years. The Company has no contraetbidity through these agreements or any othengaments to
significantly influence the operating or finangmllicies of Oxea. The Company concluded, basedemature and
limited projected magnitude of the continuing besis relationship between the Company and Oxealj\kstiture
of the oxo products and derivatives businesseslgt@iaccounted for as a discontinued operation.

Third-party net sales include $5 million and $33liom for the years ended December 31, 2007 an@é 200
respectively, that would have been eliminated upmrsolidation were the divestiture not accountedfoa
discontinued operation. These amounts relate &s$adm the continuing operations of the Comparhéodivested
businesses.

In accordance with the Company’s sponsor servigeseanent dated January 26, 2005, as amended, the
Company paid the Advisor $6 million in connectioithithe sale of the oxo products and derivativesirimsses.

During the third quarter of 2006, the Company digtwed its pentaerythritol (“PE”) operations, winiwere
included in the Acetyl Intermediates segment. Dyitlre second quarter of 2007, the Company discoedirits
Edmonton, Alberta, Canada methanol operations, wviere included in the Acetyl Intermediates segmasta
result, the earnings (loss) from operations rel&tetie Edmonton methanol and PE operations am@uated for as
discontinued operations.
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Asset Sales

In May 2008, shareholders of the Company’s Koplyéhia legal entity voted to approve the April 8300
decision by the Company to permanently shut dowsdmulsions production site. The decision to sfawtn the
site resulted in employee severance of less thaniffibn, which is included in Other (charges) gainet, in the
consolidated statements of operations during tle geded December 31, 2008. Currently, the fadgiigle and th
existing fixed assets, including machinery and popgnt, buildings and land are being marketed fla. Sde Kopel
Slovenia legal entity is included in the Compariydustrial Specialties segment.

In December 2007, the Company sold the assets Btiinonton, Alberta, Canada facility to a realtesta
developer for approximately $35 million. As parttbé agreement, the Company will retain certainrenmental
liabilities associated with the site. The Compaagedognized $16 million of asset retirement oblayet which wer
transferred to the buyer. As a result of the shke Company recorded a gain of $37 million forylear ended
December 31, 2007, of which a gain of $34 millioaswecorded to Gain (loss) on disposition of bissiae and
assets, net in the consolidated statements of tipera

In July 2007, the Company reached an agreementBaititock & Brown, a worldwide investment firm which
specializes in real estate and utilities developntersell the Company’s Pampa, Texas, facilitye Gompany
ceased operations at the site in December 2008e®s received upon certain milestone events wiltdated as
deferred proceeds and included in noncurrent Qidigitities in the Company’s consolidated balanbeets until the
transaction is complete (expected to be in 2010Yedined in the sales agreement. These operatreriacluded in
the Company'’s Acetyl Intermediates segment. Dutlireggsecond half of 2008, the Company determineihtiaof
the milestone events, which are outside of the Gomis control, were unlikely to be achieved. Ther(pany
performed a discounted cash flow analysis whichlted in a $23 million long-lived asset impairméogs recorded
to Other (charges) gains, net, in the consolidatattments of operations during the year endedrbleee31, 2008
(Note 18).

5. Securities Available for Sale

The Company’s captive insurance companies and @emslated trusts hold available-for-sale secgifa
capitalization and funding requirements, respebtivEhe Company recorded a net realized gain (lo6$0 million,
$1 million and $(1) million recorded to Other incerfexpense), net in the consolidated statemerdgpearftions for
the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 28f}&gctively.
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The amortized cost, gross unrealized gain, grossalined loss and fair values for available-foressécurities
by major security type were as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain Loss Value

(In $ millions)

As of December 31, 200
Debt securitie:

US governmen 35 17 — 52
US corporat 3 — — 3
Total debt securitie 38 17 — 55
Equity securitie: 55 — (13 42
Money market deposits and other securi 3 — — 3
Total 96 17 (13) 10C

As of December 31, 2007
Debt securitie:

US governmen 67 5 — 72
US corporate 33 — (1) 32
Total debt securitie 10C 5 @ 104
Equity securitie: 78 26 — 104
Money market deposits and other securi 1 — — 1
Mortgage-backed securitie 46 — — 46
Total 22F 31 (1) 25t

Fixed maturities as of December 31, 2008 by contedanaturity are shown below. Actual maturitiesiicbh
differ from contractual maturities because borraveay have the right to call or prepay obligatiomish or without
call or prepayment penalties.

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

(In $ millions)
Within one yea 6 6
From one to five yeat — —
From six to ten yeal — —
Greater than ten yea 35 52
Total 41 58

Proceeds received from fixed maturities that mauithin one year are expected to be reinvestedddtitiona
securities upon such maturity.
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6. Receivables, Ne

As of

December 31

2008 2007

(In $ millions)

Trade receivable— third party and affiliate 65€ 1,02i
Allowance for doubtful accoun— third party and affiliate (29 (18
Trade receivable— third party and affiliates, nt 631 1,00¢

Non-trade receivable:

Reinsurance receivabl 33 35
Income taxes receivab 88 73
Derivatives 54 29
Other 152 30C
Receivables, ne 95¢€ 1,44¢

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company bagiigmificant concentrations of credit risk sinbe t
Company’s customer base is dispersed across mHayedt industries and geographies.

7. Inventories

As of

December 31,
2008 2007

(In $ millions)
Finished good 434 50C
Work-in-process 24 29
Raw materials and suppli 11¢€ 107
Inventories 577 63€

During December 2008, the Company recorded a $lldomcharge to reduce its inventories to the loweér
cost or market.
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8. Investments
Equity Method
The Company’s equity investments and ownershipeasts are as follows:

Share of Earnings (Loss'
Ownership Percentage Carrying Value Year Ended
as of December 31 as of December 31 December 31
Segment 2008 2007 2008 2007 200€ 2007 2006
(In percentages) (In $ millions)

European Oxo Gmbl®) Acetyl Intermediate — — — - — 2 10
Erfei, A.l.E. Acetyl Intermediate 45.C 45.C 1 1 — 2 —
Advanced Engineere
Fortron Industries LLC Materials 50.C 50.C 77 73 4 16 14
Korea Engineerin Advanced Engineere
Plastics Co., Ltd. Materials 50.C 50.C 14k 17¢ 12 14 13
Advanced Engineere
Polyplastics Co., Ltd Materials 45.C 45.C  18¢ 17C 19 25 26
Advanced Engineere
Una SA Materials 50.C 50.C 2 — 2 — —
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf Kt Other Activities 39.C 39.C 28 30 4 5 4
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K Other Activities 31.z2 31z 137 154 1C 18 14
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack K Other Activities 28.2 28.2 22 23 4 4 1
Sherbrooke Capital Health and
Wellness, L.P@) Consumer Specialtie 10.C 10.C 4 4 1 _— 1
Total 605 62F 4 83 83

(1) The Company divested this investment in FebruaB72blote 4). The share of earnings (loss) for this
investment is included in Earnings (loss) from apien of discontinued operations on the consolidlate
statements of operatior

@ The Company accounts for its 10% ownership intereSherbrooke Capital Health and Wellness, L.Fleurthe
equity method of accounting because the Compaaplesto exercise significant influenc

Year Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Affiliates totals:

Net earningt 121 204 197
Compan’s share

Net earning®) 54 83 83

Dividends and other distributiol 64 57 10¢

(1) Amount does not include a $1 million and a $3 mwiilliquidating dividend from Clear Lake Methanokthars
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 20Qtecteely.
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The total assets and liabilities associated withGompany’s equity method investments are as fallow

As of
December 31
2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Total asset 3,16  2,91¢
Total liabilities 1,85 1,57¢
Cost Method
The Company’s investments accounted for underalerethod of accounting are as follows:
Ownership Percentage Carrying Value as of
as of December 31, December 31,
Segment 2008 2007 2008 2007
(In percentages) (In $ millions)
National Methanol Compan*lbn Siné’)  Acetyl Intermediate 25 25 54 54
Kunming Cellulose Fibers Co. Ltc Consumer Specialtie 30 30 14 15
Nantong Cellulose Fibers Co. Lt Consumer Specialtie 31 31 77 77
Zhuhai Cellulose Fibers Co. Lt Consumer Specialtie 30 30 14 15
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Wiesbaden K Other Activities 8 8 6 6
Other 19 22
Total 184 18¢

Certain cost investments where the Company owretgréhan a 20% ownership interest are accounted fo
under the cost method of accounting because thep@ayncannot exercise significant influence oves¢hentities.
The Company determined that it cannot exercisdfgignt influence over these entities due to lapaernment
investment in and influence over these entitiesitdtions on the Company'’s involvement in the dayday
operations and the present inability of the ertit@eprovide timely financial information preparnedaccordance
with US GAAP.

During 2007, the Company wrote-off its remainirigrillion ($1 million) cost investment in EuropeRipeline
Development Company B.V. (“EPDC”) and expensed &liam ($9 million), included in Other income (expse),
net, associated with contingent liabilities thatdrme payable due to the Company’s decision tatlegipipeline
development project. In June 2008, the outstandamgingent liabilities were resolved and the Conypaatognized
a gain of €2 million ($2 million), included in Othincome (expense), net, in the consolidated stagsof
operations to remove the remaining accrual. Thestnent in EPDC related to the construction ofpelpie systen
solely dedicated to the transportation of propylemgich was to connect Rotterdam via Antwerp, Ne#mels, with
the Company’s Oberhausen and Marl production faslin Germany. However, on February 15, 2007, EPD
shareholders voted to cease the pipeline projeatigimally envisaged and go into liquidation. TBempany was a
12.5% shareholder of EPDC.

During 2007, the Company fully impaired its $5 moifi cost investment in Elemica Corporation (“Eleafijc
Elemica is a network for the global chemical industeveloped by 22 of the leading chemical compaini¢he
world for the benefit of the entire industry. Ther@pany is a 1.83% shareholder of Elemica througpri¢gferred
share holdings. As part of Elemica’s planned chp#arganization in 2007, its board of directors paoposed to
convert all outstanding preferred stock into shafeSlemica’s common stock. Based on the Compaayéysis of
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Elemica’s proposed capital reorganization, pastiags performance and business prospects, the Ggmpa
concluded that its cost investment in Elemica wagsaired. The impairment was included in Other ineom
(expense), net in the consolidated statementsafatipns.

9. Property, Plant and Equipment, Net

As of
December 31
2008 2007

(In $ millions)
Land 61 69
Land improvement 44 45
Buildings 362 353
Machinery and equipme 2,70z  2,40¢
Construction in progres 444 32¢
Property, plant and equipment, gr 3,61: 3,20
Less: accumulated depreciati (1,24 (839
Property, plant and equipment, | 247 2,362

Assets under capital leases amounted to $233 mégiia $112 million, less accumulated amortizatibn o
$38 million and $7 million, as of December 31, 2@0#I 2007, respectively. Interest costs capitalizect
$6 million, $9 million and $6 million during the ses ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, resggct
Depreciation expense was $255 million, $209 millkord $191 million during the years ended DecemleB08,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

At December 31, 2008, the Company had assets tielthfe with a net book value of $2 million.
During 2008, certain long-lived assets were imgh{féote 18).

10. Goodwill

Advanced

Engineerec Consumer Industrial Acetyl

Materials Specialties  Specialties Intermediates  Total

(In $ millions)
Goodwill as of December 31, 20! 25€ 24C 52 327 87t
Acquisitions 1 19 — 3 23
Adjustments to preacquisition tax uncertain (12 (15) — ()] (47)
Sale of businesst — — (D) (42 (43
Adoption of FIN 481 15 6 (@) (22) 2
Goodwill impairmeni@ — — (6) — (6)
Exchange rate chang 17 14 3 26 60
Goodwill as of December 31, 201 271 264 47 27¢ 86€
Adjustments to preacquisition tax uncertain 9 2 (12 (30 (49
Exchange rate chang (10 (14) (1) (13) (38)
Goodwill as of December 31, 20 25¢ 252 34 23E 77¢

(1) See Note 19 for additional discussion of FIN

F-21




Table of Contents

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

@ In connection with the Company’s annual goodwilpmrment test, the Company recorded an impairment o
$6 million in the polyvinyl alcohol (“PVOH") repartg unit. The PVOH reporting unit is included ireth
Industrial Specialties segme

In connection with the Company’s annual goodwilpairment test, the Company did not record an inmpeirt
loss for goodwill during the nine months ended 8etiter 30, 2008. In addition, based on the sigmifieaverse
change in the US and global business climate, tmpgany performed a goodwill impairment test duting three
months ended December 31, 2008. Based on thegeduttis goodwill impairment test, the Company dad recort
an impairment loss for goodwiill.

11. Intangible Assets, Nef

Customer- Covenants
Trademarks Related not to
and Intangible Developed  Compete
Trade name: License: Assets Technology and Other  Total

(In $ millions)
Gross Asset Value

As of December 31, 20( 79 — 52% 13 12 627
Acquisitions 2 — 10 — — 12
Divestitures (@)} — a7 (@)} — (29
Exchange rate chang 5 — 46 — — 51

As of December 31, 20( 85 — 562 12 12 671
Acquisitions®) — 28 — — — 28
Divestitures — — — — — —
Exchange rate chang 3 1 (25) — — (27)

As of December 31, 20( 82 29 537 12 12 672

Accumulated Amortization

As of December 31, 20( Q) — (149 (8) (6) (164
Current period amortizatic — — (68) @ B3 (72
Divestitures 1 — 5 — — 6
Exchange rate chang — — (16) — — (16)

As of December 31, 20( — — (22¢) 9) (9) (246
Current period amortizatic — 3 (72) @ Q) (76
Exchange rate chang — — 14 — — 14

As of December 31, 20( — (©)] (28E) (10 (10) (30¢)
Intangible assets, net as of December 31, 82 26 252 2 2 364

@) Acquisition of a sole and exclusive license to ptteand patent applications related to acetic ddid.license
will be amortized over 10 yeal

Estimated amortization expense for the succeedieditcal years is approximately $73 million in(2)
$64 million in 2010, $59 million in 2011, $45 mdh in 2012 and $29 million in 2013. The Companyaslemarks
and trade names have an indefinite life. Accordingb amortization is recorded on these intangaiskeets. As a
result of the Company’s annual impairment testrmiefinite-lived intangible assets, the Companyrditirecord an
impairment loss for indefinite-lived intangible assduring the year ended December 31, 2008.
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12. Current Other Liabilities

Salaries and benefi

Environmental (Note 1¢€
Restructuring (Note 1¢

Insurance

Sorbates litigation (Note 2:

Asset retirement obligatior
Derivatives

Current portion of benefit obligatior
Interest

Other

Current Other liabilitie!

13. Noncurrent Other Liabilities

Environmental (Note 1€

Insurance

Deferred revenu

Deferred proceeds (Note 4, Note .
Asset retirement obligatior
Derivatives

Other

Noncurrent Other liabilitie

Changes in asset retirement obligations are aswell

As of
December 31,
2008 2007
(In $ millions)

107 157
19 19
32 40
34 41

1 17C

9 16

65 12¢
57 56
56 60
_194 20
574 s8¢

December 31,

Balance at beginning of ye
Additions

Accretion

Payment:

Divestitures

Purchase accounting adjustme
Revisions to cash flow estimat
Exchange rate chang

Balance at end of ye

2008 2007
(In $ millions)
79 96
85 78
56 71
37C 93
40 31
76 37
_10¢ 89
_80¢ 49t
Year Ended

December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions)

47 B9 54

6@ — 10
3 5 3
© (6 2
— (1o —
— 3 —
1 2 (7
2 4 1

49 47 59

(1) Relates to the sale of the Edmonton, Alberta, Camdaht (Note 4)
@ Primarily relates to long-lived assets impairedimnigithe year ended December 31, 2008 (Note 18)hwhic
management no longer considers to have an indetateniife.
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Included in the asset retirement obligations faheaf the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 GO@l i2
$10 million related to a business acquired in 200%& Company has a corresponding receivable feramount
included in noncurrent Other assets as of Dece®ibe2008.

The Company has identified but not recognized assieément obligations related to certain of it&s#ng
operating facilities. Examples of these types digaltions include demolition, decommissioning, aisal and
restoration activities. Legal obligations existimnnection with the retirement of these assets gpmsure of the
facilities or abandonment of the existing operatiddowever, the Company currently plans on contiguiperation
at these facilities indefinitely and therefore asenable estimate of fair value cannot be detené¢his time. In
the event the Company considers plans to abandosase operations at these sites, an asset ratiretvigyation
will be reassessed at that time. If certain opegdfiacilities were to close, the related assetewtént obligations
could significantly affect the Company’s resultsopkrations and cash flows.

14. Debt

As of
December 31,
2008 2007
(In $ millions)

Short-term borrowings and current installments of lon¢-term debt — third party and

affiliates
Current installments of loi-term debt 81 44
Shor-term borrowings, principally comprised of amounte do affiliates 152 22¢

Shor-term borrowings and current installments of |-term deb— third party and affiliate 238 272
Long-term debt
Senior Credit Facilities: Term Loan facility duel( 2,79¢ 2,85t
Term notes 7.125%, due 20 14 14
Pollution control and industrial revenue bondsgiiest rates ranging from 5.7% to 6.7%, due at

various dates through 20: 181 181
Obligations under capital leases and other seduwsa@wings due at various dates through 2 211 11C
Other bank obligations, interest rates ranging frtb88% to 7.05%, due at various dates through

2014 181 16€
Subtotal 3,381 3,32¢

Less: Current installments of lo-term debt 81 44

Long-term debt 3,30C  3,28¢

Senior Credit Facilities

The Company'’s senior credit agreement consist2 &8P million of US dollar-denominated and €400liwril
of Euro-denominated term loans due 2014, a $65@omilevolving credit facility terminating in 201&hd a
$228 million credit-linked revolving facility termating in 2014. Borrowings under the senior craditeement bear
interest at a variable interest rate based on LIBfORUS dollars) or EURIBOR (for Euros), as applite, or, for
US dollar-denominated loans under certain circuntsts, a base rate, in each case plus an applivaotgn. The
applicable margin for the term loans and any laarder the credit-linked revolving facility is 1.75%ubject to
potential reductions as defined in the senior ¢tragieement. As of December 31, 2008, the appkcatalrgin was
1.5% and continues to be subject to potential &ieists as defined in the senior credit agreemeérd.t&rm loans
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under the senior credit agreement are subject totaration at 1% of the initial principal amountr@num,
payable quarterly. The remaining principal amourihe term loans is due on April 2, 2014.

As of December 31, 2008, there were no outstandémgpwings or letters of credit issued under th@hang
credit facility; accordingly, $650 million remainedailable for borrowing. As of December 31, 200@re were
$91 million of letters of credit issued under thmedsit-linked revolving facility and $137 million meained available
for borrowing.

The senior credit agreement is guaranteed by Cetafeldings LLC, a subsidiary of Celanese Corporatan
certain domestic subsidiaries of Celanese US, sisddured by a lien on substantially all asse@atdinese US and
such guarantors, subject to certain agreed exceptmursuant to the Guarantee and Collateral Ageegndated as
of April 2, 2007, by and among Celanese Holding€l. Celanese US, certain subsidiaries of CelanesandS
Deutsche Bank AG, New York Branch, as Administrathgent and as Collateral Agent.

Our senior credit agreement requires us to maiamaximum first lien senior secured leverage natib
greater than 3.90 to 1.00 if there are outstandorgowings under the revolving credit facility. Tfiest lien senior
secured leverage ratio is calculated as the réomsolidated first lien senior secured debt tomiegs before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortizationjestitbo adjustments identified in the credit agreemThe Compar
is in compliance with all of the covenants relatedts debt agreements as of December 31, 2008.

Debt Refinancing

In April 2007, the Company, through certain ofdtgsidiaries, entered into a new senior crediteagesnt.
Proceeds from the new senior credit agreementthiegevith available cash, were used to retire them@any’s
$2,454 million amended and restated (January 288%pr credit facilities, which consisted of $1,688lion in
term loans due 2011, a $600 million revolving créacility terminating in 2009 and a $228 millioredit-linked
revolving facility terminating in 2009, and to metiall of the Company’s 9.625% senior subordinatetgs due 2014
and 10.375% senior subordinated notes due 2014%#m@or Subordinated Notes”) and 10% senior diatowtes
due 2014 and 10.5% senior discount notes due 28&4'$enior Discount Notes”) as discussed below.

Substantially all of the Senior Discount Notes &esahior Subordinated Notes were tendered in thedfirarter
of 2007. The remaining outstanding Senior Discimties and Senior Subordinated Notes not tendered in
conjunction with the Tender Offers were redeemethkeyCompany in May 2007 through optional redenmptio
allowed in the indentures.

As a result of the refinancing, the Company inadipeemiums paid on early redemption of debt, acatde
amortization and other refinancing expenses. Thepoments of refinancing expenses are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions)
Premium paid on early redemption of d — 207
Accelerated amortization of premiums and deferneaicing costs on early redemption and

prepayment of del — 33 1
Debt issuance costs and ot — 16 =
Refinancing expenst — 25¢ 1

In connection with the refinancing, the Companyorded deferred financing costs of $39 million rethto the
new senior credit agreement, which are includetbimcurrent Other assets on the consolidated bakdrests and
are being amortized over the term of the new sestiEdit agreement. The deferred financing costsisbof
$23 million of costs incurred to acquire the newisecredit agreement and $16 million of debt issasts existing
prior to the refinancing.

F-25




Table of Contents

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 art] #6Company recorded amortization of deferred
financing costs, which is classified in Interespense, of $7 million, $8 million and $13 millioreapectively. As of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, the Caynpad $32 million and $39 million of net deferffathncing

costs.
Principal payments scheduled to be made on the @oygpdebt, including short-term borrowings, are as
follows:
(In $ millions)
2009 23:
2010 10C
2011 89
2012 65
2013 73
Thereatftel 2,97:
Total 3,63¢

15. Benefit Obligations

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. E&#loyers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension
and Other Postretirement Plans an amendment of Fat&®ments No. 87, 88, 106, and 13Z(RFAS No. 158"),
on December 31, 2006 which caused the Companytgnéze the unfunded status of its benefit plar$ldf3
million in the December 31, 2006 consolidated bedagheet, with a corresponding adjustment to Acdated othe
comprehensive income (loss), net. The Company’stamtvof SFAS No. 158 had no impact to the consaéd
statements of operations for the year ended Dece®ih&006.

Pension obligations. Pension obligations are established for benpéit@ble in the form of retirement,
disability and surviving dependent pensions. Theefies offered vary according to the legal, fisaatl economic
conditions of each country. The commitments refsath participation in defined contribution and defd benefit
plans, primarily in the US. Benefits are dependenyears of service and the employee’s compensation
Supplemental retirement benefits provided to certanployees are nonqualified for US tax purposepagte trus!
have been established for some nonqualified pR@ssion costs under the Company’s retirement @leans
actuarially determined.

The Company sponsors defined benefit pension fiteNsrth America, Europe and Asia. As of Decembkr 3
2008, the Company’s US qualified pension plan regmés approximately 83% and 78% of the Companyisipa
plan assets and liabilities, respectively. Indeandrusts or insurance companies administer therityaof these
plans. The US qualified defined benefit plan’s atteturn on assets for the year ended Decemb&0BB was a
loss of 18% versus an expected long-term ratesstasturn assumption of 8.5%. The overall perforeezof the
portfolio suffered due to the significant declineshe global equity markets. The returns on eqntgestments for
this plan were negative while the returns on fikembme investments were positive.

The Company sponsors various defined contributlansin North America, Europe and Asia coveringaiar
employees. Employees may contribute to these gladghe Company will match these contributionsarying
amounts. The Company’s matching contribution todéfned contribution plans are based on specffmdentages
of employee contributions and aggregated $13 mill12 million and $11 million for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Company participates in multiemployer definedédit pension plans in Europe covering certain
employees. The Company’s contributions to the remdployer defined benefit pension plans are basespeaified
percentages of employee contributions and aggrégatenillion, for each of the years ended Decendtie2008,
2007 and 2006.

Other postretirement obligationsCertain retired employees receive postretirerheatthcare and life
insurance benefits under plans sponsored by thep@oyn which has the right to modify or terminatesth plans at
any time. The cost for coverage is shared betweeCbompany and the retiree. The cost of providatigae
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health care and life insurance benefits is actliadetermined and accrued over the service pesfdtie active
employee group. The Compasypolicy is to fund benefits as claims and premiamespaid. The US plan was clo
to new participants effective January 1, 2006.

The following tables set forth the benefit obligais, the fair value of the plan assets and theddrséatus of tf
Company’s pension and postretirement benefit pland;the amounts recognized in the Company’s cmtatet
financial statements:

Postretirement Benefits

Pension Benefits as of
as of December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2008 2007

(In $ millions)
Change in projected benefit obligatior

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of per 3,26¢ 3,34 30¢ 345
Service cos 31 38 2 2
Interest cos 19t 187 17 19
Participant contribution — 1 22 17
Plan amendmen — 4 2 —
Actuarial gains@) (107) 123 (@149 18)
Special termination benefi — — — —
Divestitures — — — —
Settlement: (29 (40) — —
Benefits paic (222) (215 (59) (66)
Federal subsidy on Medicare Par — — 6 6
Curtailments (@) Q) (¥ Q)
Foreign currency exchange rate char (68) 69 (6) 4
Other — 1 — —
Projected benefit obligation at end of per 3,07: 3,26¢ 27¢ 30€
Change in plan asset
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of pe 2,87t 2,802 — —
Actual return on plan asse (44¢) 20¢ — —
Employer contribution 48 48 35 49
Participant contribution — 1 23 17
Settlement: (22 (28) — —
Benefits paic (222) (215 (58) (66)
Foreign currency exchange rate char (672) 57 — —
Other — 1 — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of pe 2,17( 2,87 — —
Funded status and net amounts recognize
Plan assets less than benefit obliga (903%) (389 (279 (306)
Unrecognized prior service cc 1 3 1 Q)
Unrecognized actuarial (gain) lo 502 (53) (80 (1)
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balaheets (400) (43%) (359 (379
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance shseconsist of:
Noncurrent Other asse 8 7 — —
Current Other liabilitie: (22 21) (3% (39
Pension obligation (88¢) (375) (240 (272)
Accrued benefit liability (903%) (385 (279 (306)
Net actuarial (gain) los 502 (53) (80) (72)
Prior service (benefit) co 1 3 1 1)
Other comprehensive (income) 1@ 50z (50) (79 (72
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balaheets (400) (43%) (354 (379

@) Primarily relates to change in discount ra

F-27




Table of Contents

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

@ Amount shown net of tax in the consolidated statgmef shareholders’ equity and comprehensive icom
(loss). See Note 19 for the related tax associatddthe pension and postretirement benefit obidgest.

A summary of pension plans with projected bendfiigations in excess of plan assets is shown below:

As of
December 31,
2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Projected benefit obligatic 2,92¢  3,14¢
Fair value of plan asse 2,012 2,75(

Included in the above table are pension plans agtdtumulated benefit obligations in excess of pksets as
detailed below:

As of
December 31,
2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Accumulated benefit obligatic 2,797 61¢
Fair value of plan asse 1,98t  30¢

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defirmezhefit pension plans was $2,967 million and $3Mllion
as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The following table sets forth the Company’s netigmic pension cost:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006 200¢ 2007 200€
(In$ millions) - -
Components of net periodic benefit cos
Service cos 31 38 40 1 2 2
Interest cos 19t 187  18¢ 17 19 20
Expected return on plan ass (218) (21€) (207) — — —
Amortization of prior service co: — — 1 — — —
Recognized actuarial (gain) lo 1 1 2 (4) 2 —
Curtailment (gain) los 2 @ 1 — (D) @
Settlement (gain) los 3 (12 — —
Special termination benefi — — 3 = = =
Net periodic benefit cot 10 3 _ 23 14 18 21

Amortization of the actuarial (gain) loss into petiodic cost in 2009 is expected to be $1 milkow
$(5) million for pension benefits and postretiremnleenefits, respectively.

Included in the pension obligations above are aatitiabilities relating to supplemental retiremplans for
certain employees amounting to $224 million and®2lion as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, resyelgt
Pension expense relating to these plans includedtiperiodic benefit cost totaled $15 million, $h#lion and
$15 million for the years ended December 31, 2@08,7 and 2006, respectively. To fund these obbgati
nonqualified trusts were established which holdketable securities valued at $97 million and $12ilian as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively. In aadith holding marketable securities, the nonquaditrusts hold
investments in insurance contracts of $67 milliad &74 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2005heetively,
which are included in noncurrent Other assetsénctinsolidated balance sheets.
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Valuation

The Company uses the corridor approach in the tialuaf the defined benefit plans and other posaetent
benefits. The corridor approach defers all actligains and losses resulting from variances betvaetuimal results
and economic estimates or actuarial assumptiongdéfmed benefit pension plans, these unrecogrgaéus and
losses are amortized when the net gains and lessegd 10% of the greater of the market-relatedevaf plan
assets or the projected benefit obligation at #giriming of the year. For other postretirement Benemortization
occurs when the net gains and losses exceed 188¢ atcumulated postretirement benefit obligaticihe
beginning of the year. The amount in excess ottrador is amortized over the average remainingise period tc
retirement date for active plan participants or régired participants, the average remainingdipectancy.

The following tables set forth the principal weigtitaverage assumptions used:

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
as of as of
December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2008 2007

(In percentages)
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine bene

obligations
Discount rate
US plans 6.5(C 6.3(C 6.4C 6.0C
International plan 5.84 5.42 6.11 5.31
Combined 6.41 6.1¢ 6.37 5.9¢
Rate of compensation increa
US plans 4.0C 4.0C N/A N/A
International plan 3.24 3.1t N/A N/A
Combined 3.9C 3.6¢€ N/A N/A
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2008 2007 2006
(In percentages)

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine neast
Discount rate

US plans 6.3C 5.8t 5.6 6.0 5.8¢ 5.6¢
International plan 54z 470 454 531 48C 4.9i
Combined 6.1€ 5.8¢ 5.4€ 5.9: 5.7¢ 5.57
Expected return on plan asse¢
US plans 8.5(C 85C 85C N/A N/A N/A
International plan 5.6¢ 6.5¢ 6.3C N/A N/A N/A
Combinec 8.0t 8.2C 8.17 N/A N/A NA
Rate of compensation increa
US plans 4.0C 4.0C 4.0C N/A NA N/A
International plan 3.1t 3.1& 3.2€ N/A N/A N/A
Combined 3.6€ 3.7 3.81 N/A NA NA

The expected rate of return assumptions for plastasre based mainly on historical performanceaet
over a long period of time (15 to 20 years) encossjvey many business and economic cycles. Adjussnaptvard
and
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downward, may be made to those historical retwneftect future capital market expectations; thegeectations
are typically derived from expert advice from theéstment community and surveys of peer companyngsons.

The Company determines its assumption for the disicates to be used for the purposes of compuaimgal
service and interest costs for its US plans basdt@yields of high quality corporate/governmeonds with a
duration appropriate to the duration of the plaligattions.

The Company determines its discount rates in thre Eone using the iBoxx Euro Corporate AA Bond omdi
with appropriate adjustments for the duration ef pten obligations. In other international locasipthe Company
determines its discount rates based on the yidlgh quality government bonds with a duration ragpiate to the
duration of the plan obligations.

On January 1, 2008, the Company’s health caretimrst assumption for US postretirement medical’plaat
periodic benefit cost was 9% for the first two yedeclining 0.5% per year to an ultimate rate of &% January 1,
2007, the health care cost trend rate was 8.5%eq@rdeclining 1% per year to an ultimate rate%f 5

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signifeffect on the amounts reported for the health plans.
A one-percentage-point increase or decrease iagbemed health care cost trend rate would impattgimement
obligations by $3 million and $(3) million, respeelly. The effect of a one percent increase orelse in the
assumed health care cost trend rate would havgsaHan $1 million impact on service and interest.c

Plan Assets
The following tables set forth the target assetcation for the Company’s pension plans and thetass
allocation:
Weighted
Average Percentage o
Target Plan Assets as o
Allocation December 31
Asset Category— US 2009 2008 2007
Equity securitie: 72% 56% 68%
Debt securitie: 28% 44% 30%
Real estate and oth — — 2%
Total 10(% 10(% 10(%
Weighted
Average Percentage of
Target Plan Assets as of
Allocation December 31,
Asset Category —International 2009 2008 2007
Equity securitie: 21% 17% 3%
Debt securitie: 4% 7% 48%
Real estate and oth 5% 11% 13%
Total 10(% 10(% 10(%

The financial objectives of the qualified pensidans are established in conjunction with a compnsive
review of each plan’s liability structure. The Caang’s asset allocation policy is based on a detakset/liability
analysis. In developing investment policy and fitiahgoals, consideration is given to the plan’sxdgraphics, the
returns and risks associated with alternative itment strategies, and the current and projected expense and
funding ratios of the plan. The investment policyshalso comply with local statutory requiremergslatermined
by each country. A formal asset/liability mix stuofythe plan is undertaken every 3 to 5 years ceneler there he
been a material change in plan demographics, destefcture or funding status and investment markie¢
Company has adopted a long-term investment hosmch that the risk and duration of investment Issse
weighed against the long-term
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potential for appreciation of assets. Although ¢heainnot be complete assurance that these objguetillde
realized, it is believed that the likelihood foethrealization is reasonably high, based uporaset allocation
chosen and the historical and expected performahite asset classes utilized by the plans. Thentns for
investments to be broadly diversified across adastes, investment styles, investment managersiaped and
emerging markets, business sectors and securit@sler to moderate portfolio volatility and riskvestments may
be in separate accounts, commingled trusts, méunds and other pooled asset portfolios providey #il conformn
to fiduciary standards.

External investment managers are hired to managpehsion assets. An investment consultant asgtstshe
screening process for each new manager hired. iBgdong-term, the investment portfolio is expedizéarn
returns that exceed a composite of market inditasare weighted to match each plan’s target aflseation.
Long-term is considered 3 to 5 years; howeverdmoces of underperformance are analyzed. The fontéiurn
should also (over the long term) meet or exceedeahen used for actuarial calculations in ordemiaimize future
pension contributions and escalation in pensiorepse.

Employer contributions for pension benefits andifmisement benefits are preliminarily estimatedéo
$40 million and $35 million, respectively, in 200Ehe table below reflects pension benefits expettdit paid
from the plan or from the Company’s assets. Thérptiement benefits represent the Company’s shiattee
benefit cost.

Postretirement

Benefit
Pension Expectec
Benefit Federal

Payments(®) Payments Subsidy
(In $ millions)

2009 21t 35 11
2010 21C 28 7
2011 20¢ 24 7
2012 20¢ 21 8
2013 211 19 8
20142018 1,10¢ 96 14

1) Payments are expected to be made primarily from gésets
Other Obligations

The following table represents additional benddibilities and other similar obligations:

As of
December 31,
2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Long-term disability 33 36
Other 5 13
Total 38 49

16. Environmental
General

The Company is subject to environmental laws agdlegions worldwide which impose limitations on the
discharge of pollutants into the air and water estéblish standards for the treatment, storagelespdsal of solid
and hazardous wastes. The Company believes tkahisubstantial compliance with all applicableieonmental
laws and regulations. The Company is also subgectthined environmental obligations specifiedaniqus
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contractual agreements arising from the divestitdirgertain businesses by the Company or one gfé@decessor
companies.

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 art] #8Company’s expenditures, including expendgur
for legal compliance, internal environmental irtittas and remediation of active, orphan, divestadl dS
Superfund sites (as defined below) were $78 mill&88 million and $71 million, respectively. The@pany’s
capital project-related environmental expenditdoeshe years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 angl \®eee
$13 million, $14 million and $5 million, respectlyeEnvironmental reserves for remediation matteese
$98 million and $115 million as of December 31, 2@Md 2007, respectively, which represents the Goiylp best
estimate of its liability.

Remediation

Due to its industrial history and through retaimeatractual and legal obligations, the Companythas
obligation to remediate specific areas on its oitegssas well as on divested, orphan or US Supersited. In
addition, as part of the demerger agreement betttee@ompany and Hoechst, a specified portion @f th
responsibility for environmental liabilities fromraumber of Hoechst divestitures was transferretiédCompany.
The Company provides for such obligations whenetrent of loss is probable and reasonably estimable.

For the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 arf] #@®total remediation efforts charged to Cogtadés in
the consolidated statements of operations wereiidm$4 million and $6 million, respectively. EnCompany
believes that environmental remediation costs mdtl have a material adverse effect on the finapmaltion of the
Company, but may have a material adverse effeth@mnesults of operations or cash flows in any igi@ecounting
period.

The Company did not record any insurance recoveglased to these matters for the reported peribldsre ar
no receivables for insurance recoveries as of Dbeedil, 2008 and 2007, however, as of Decembe2®8, there
is an $8 million receivable from a former owneraof acquired business.

German InfraServs

On January 1, 1997, coinciding with a reorganizatibthe Hoechst businesses in Germany, real estatece
companies (“InfraServs”) were created to own dlyeitte land and property and to provide variousitécal and
administrative services at each of the manufaajuonations. The Company has manufacturing operat the
InfraServ location in Frankfurt am Main-Hoechst,r@any and holds interests in the companies which amd
operate the former Hoechst sites in Gendorf, Knelpaad Wiesbaden.

InfraServs are liable for any residual contaminatimd other pollution because they own the reakesin
which the individual facilities operate. In additidcHoechst, and its legal successors, as the refpp@party under
German public law, is liable to third parties fdremvironmental damage that occurred while it wiilé the owner ¢
the plants and real estate. The contribution agee¢srentered into in 1997 between Hoechst andeipective
operating companies, as part of the divestituthese companies, provide that the operating corapanil
indemnify Hoechst, and its legal successors, agamsdronmental liabilities resulting from the tedarred
businesses. Additionally, the InfraServs have ajteendemnify Hoechst, and its legal successaainst any
environmental liability arising out of or in connien with environmental pollution of any site. Likése, in certain
circumstances the Company could be responsiblééoelimination of residual contamination on a fates that
were not transferred to InfraServ companies, ircvitiase Hoechst, and its legal successors, mugbuese the
Company for two-thirds of any costs so incurred.

The InfraServ partnership agreements provide #sabetween the partners, each partner is resperigitény
contamination caused predominantly by such partkey.liability, which cannot be attributed to arfriaServ
partner and for which no third party is responsildeequired to be borne by the InfraServ partniprdn view of
this potential obligation to eliminate residual tamination, the InfraServs, primarily relating wuéy and cost
affiliates which are not consolidated by the Comypdrave reserves of $84 million and $88 millioroés
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
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If an InfraServ partner defaults on its respecingemnification obligations to eliminate residuahtamination
the owners of the remaining participation in thidBerv companies have agreed to fund such lissilisubject to a
number of limitations. To the extent that any lidigis are not satisfied by either the InfraServsheir owners, thes
liabilities are to be borne by the Company in adeoce with the demerger agreement. However, Hoeghdtits
legal successors, will reimburse the Company fartiwrds of any such costs. Likewise, in certain einstances tt
Company could be responsible for the eliminationesidual contamination on several sites that wetdransferre:
to InfraServ companies, in which case Hoechst,irdgal successors, must also reimburse the Coyripa two-
thirds of any costs so incurred. The German InfreSSare owned partially by the Company, as notéavibeand the
remaining ownership is held by various other conggarirhe Company’s ownership interest and enviroriaie
liability participation percentages for such lidiéls which cannot be attributed to an InfraSerstier were as
follows as of December 31, 2008:

Company Ownership % Liability %

InfraServ GmbH & Co. Gendorf K 39.(% 10.(%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Knapsack K 28.2% 22.(%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Hoechst K 31.2% 40.(%
InfraServ GmbH & Co. Wiesbaden K 7.% 0.C%
InfraServ Verwaltungs Gmb| 100.(% 0.C%

US Superfund Sites

In the US, the Company may be subject to substaritiens brought by US federal or state regula@ggncies
or private individuals pursuant to statutory auityoor common law. In particular, the Company hasogential
liability under the US Federal Comprehensive Enuinental Response, Compensation and Liability A&9#0, as
amended, and related state laws (collectively refeto as “Superfund”) for investigation and cleaicosts at
approximately 50 sites. At most of these sites, enaus companies, including certain companies caimgrithe
Company, or one of its predecessor companies, heee notified that the Environmental Protection Agge state
governing bodies or private individuals considettsaompanies to be potentially responsible pa(tleRP”) under
Superfund or related laws. The proceedings reldtirthese sites are in various stages. The clepragess has not
been completed at most sites and the status @fisheance coverage for most of these proceedingsdsrtain.
Consequently, the Company cannot accurately deterits ultimate liability for investigation or cleap costs at
these sites. As of December 31, 2008 and 200G dinepany had provisions totaling $11 million and $iilion,
respectively, for US Superfund sites and utiliz&ddillion, $1 million and $1 million of these reses during the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 ctashe. Additional provisions and adjustments netzxl
during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2002@d@l approximately offset these expenditures.

As events progress at each site for which it has Imamed a PRP, the Company accrues, as appropriate
liability for site cleanup. Such liabilities incledall costs that are probable and can be reasorabigated. In
establishing these liabilities, the Company considts shipment of waste to a site, its percentddetal waste
shipped to the site, the types of wastes involtkeg conclusions of any studies, the magnitude gpiramedial
actions that may be necessary and the number abdityi of other PRPs. Often the Company will jouith other
PRPs to sign joint defense agreements that wilesetmong PRPs, each party’s percentage allocafionsts at the
site. Although the ultimate liability may differdm the estimate, the Company routinely reviewdittimglities and
revises the estimate, as appropriate, based andbkecurrent information available.

Hoechst Liabilities

In connection with the Hoechst demerger, the Companeed to indemnify Hoechst, and its legal susmess
for the first €250 million of future remediatiorabilities for environmental damages arising fromsp@cified
divested Hoechst entities. As of December 31, 20482007, reserves of $27 million and $27 milli@spectively,
for these matters are included as a componenedbtal environmental reserves. As of Decembel8028 and
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2007, the Company, has made total cumulative paisTai$48 million and $46 million, respectively.dfich future
liabilities exceed €250 million, Hoechst, and &gal successors, will bear such excess up to aticacd

€500 million. Thereafter, the Company will bear dhad and Hoechst, and its legal successors, wdlrtiwo-thirds
of any further environmental remediation liabilitiaVhere the Company is unable to reasonably datertine
probability of loss or estimate such loss undes thilemnification, the Company has not recognizediiabilities
relative to this indemnification.

17. Shareholders Equity
Preferred Stock

The Company has $240 million aggregate liquidagimference of outstanding 4.25% convertible perdetu
preferred stock. Holders of the preferred stockemtitled to receive, when, as and if, declaretheyCompany’s
Board of Directors, out of funds legally availabdesh dividends at the rate of 4.25% per annurigoidation
preference, payable quarterly in arrears, commgnmmMay 1, 2005. Dividends on the preferred stmek
cumulative from the date of initial issuance. Aceuated but unpaid dividends accumulate at an amatlof
4.25%. The preferred stock is convertible, at thigom of the holder, at any time into approximatel26 shares of
Series A common stock, subject to adjustments$p8r00 liquidation preference of preferred stoct apon
conversion will be recorded in the consolidatedesteents of shareholders’ equity and comprehenss@e (loss).

During 2008 and 2007, the Company declared and$fidnillion of cash dividends in each period @n it
4.25% convertible perpetual preferred stock.

Dividends

During 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors add policy of declaring, subject to legally avhiéa
funds, a quarterly cash dividend on each shareeo€ompany’s Series A common stock at an annualofat
$0.16 per share unless the Company’s Board of @irecin its sole discretion, determines otherwisether, such
dividends payable to holders of the Company’s Sekieommon stock cannot be declared or paid noacgrfunds
be set aside for the payment thereof, unless timep@ny has paid or set aside funds for the paynfeadt o
accumulated and unpaid dividends with respectdcttares of the Company’s preferred stock, asitbescabove.
Additionally, the amount available to pay cash diénds is restricted by our senior credit agreement.

During 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Company declarddpaid $24 million, $25 million and $26 million,
respectively, of cash dividends to holders of gsi& A common stock.

Treasury Stock

In conjunction with the April 2007 debt refinanciigote 14), the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary CIH, repurchased 2,021,775 shares olitstanding Series A common stock in a modifiedtth
Auction” tender offer from public shareholders, aiexpired on April 3, 2007, at a purchase pric83{.50 per
share. The total price paid for these shares wasi#ion. The Company also separately purchadedugh its
wholly-owned subsidiary CIH, 329,011 shares of@wnpany’s Series A common stock at $30.50 per dhame
the investment funds associated with The Blacks@mip L.P. The total price paid for these sharas w
$10 million.

In June 2007, the Company’s Board of Directors autled the repurchase of up to $330 million ofSeries A
common stock. During 2007, the Company repurch8s#l7,700 shares of its Series A common stock atvamgt
purchase price of $38.88 per share for a totaB80$million pursuant to this authorization. The Gramy complete
repurchasing shares related to this authorizatisimg July 2007.

In February 2008, the Company’s Board of Directarthorized the repurchase of up to $400 milliothef
Company'’s Series A common stock. This authorizatvas increased to $500 million in October 2008. The
authorization gives management discretion in dateng the conditions under which shares may benamsed.

F-34




Table of Contents

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Coyngourchased 9,763,200 shares of its Series A constocl
at an average purchase price of $38.68 per shaeetfal of $378 million pursuant to this authatian.

These purchases reduced the number of sharesrulitgfaand the repurchased shares may be used by the
Company for compensation programs utilizing the @any’s stock and other corporate purposes. The @oynp
accounts for treasury stock using the cost metinadrecludes treasury stock as a component of Shhtets’
equity.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Net

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss),wigich is displayed in the consolidated statemehts
shareholders’ equity, represents net earnings)(fas the results of certain shareholders’ eqeiiignges not
reflected in the consolidated statements of opmmatiSuch items include unrealized gain (loss) arketable
securities, foreign currency translation, certadngion and postretirement benefit obligations améalized gain
(loss) on interest rate swaps.

The after-tax components of Accumulated other ca@m@nsive income (loss), net are as follows:

Accumulated

Unrealized Unrealized Other
Gain (Loss) or Foreign Pension and Gain (Loss, Comprehensive

Marketable Currency  Postretirement on Interest Income

Securities Translation Benefits Rate Swap: (Loss), Net
(In $ millions)

Balance as of December 31, 2( 4 12 (13¢) 2 (12¢)
Curren-period chang: 13 5 137 2 157
Balance as of December 31, 2( 9 17 1 4 31
Curren-period chang: 17 70 12C (41) 16€
Balance as of December 31, 2( 26 87 121 (37) 197
Curren-period chang (23) ® (130) (544) (79 (776
Balance as of December 31, 2( 3 (43) (423) (11€) (579)

@ Includes a net reclassification adjustment of (@flion to the consolidated statements of operati
18. Other (Charges) Gains, Net

Other (charges) gains, net includes provisionsdstructuring and other expenses and income intautside
the normal course of operations. Restructuring isions represent costs related to severance aed lo¢imefit
programs related to major activities undertakefutmlamentally redesign the business operationsegdsas costs
incurred in connection with decisions to exit narategic businesses. These measures are basedvai fo
management decisions, establishment of agreeméhtemployees’ representatives or individual agreets with
affected employees, as well as the public annouanéof the restructuring plan. The related reserg#isct certain
estimates, including those pertaining to separatasts, settlements of contractual obligations@hér closure
costs. The Company reassesses the reserve requisstmeomplete each individual plan under existing
restructuring programs at the end of each repopergpd. Actual experience may be different fromasth estimates.
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The components of Other (charges) gains, net aialag/s:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Employee termination benefi (2) (32 12
Plant/office closure M 1y 1
Deferred compensation triggered by Exit Event (N2 — (79 —
Insurance recoveries associated with plumbing ¢ — 4 5
Insurance recoveries associated with Clear Lakead éNote 29 38 40 —
Resolution of commercial disputes with a ven — 3 —
Asset impairment s 9O —
Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation (Note 12 (5 —
Sorbates antitrust actions (Note . 8 — —
Other 1 (2) (4)

Total Other (charges) gains, t (10€) (58) (10

@ Includes $6 million of goodwill impairment (Note )
2008

Other (charges) gains, net for asset impairmextades long-lived asset impairment losses of $9Rami
related to the potential closure of the Compangétia acid and vinyl acetate monomer (“VAMdjoduction facility
in Pardies, France, the VAM production unit in Caajgra, Mexico (which the Company subsequentlydkstio
shut down effective at the end of February 2009) @artain other facilities. Of the $92 million reded in
December 2008, $76 million relates to the Acetyimediates segment and $16 million relates t&theanced
Engineered Materials segment. Consideration ofgbiential capacity reduction was necessitatedbysignificant
change in the global economic environment and ipatied lower customer demand.

Additionally, the Company recognized $23 millionlofigdived asset impairment losses related to the shur
of the Company’s Pampa, Texas facility (Acetyl imtediates segment).

Other (charges) gains, net for employee termindigmefits includes severance and retention charfges
$13 million related to the sale of the Company’sPa, Texas facility and $8 million of severance egténtion
charges related to other business optimizationsplardertaken by the Company.

2007

Other (charges) gains, net for employee termindigmefits and plant/office closures include chargésted to
the Company’s plan to simplify and optimize its Hsions and PVOH businesses (Industrial Speciatggsnent) to
become a leader in technology and innovation and gn both new and existing markets. Other (chgrgagms, net
for employee termination benefits and plant/offit@sures also includes charges related to theoalee Companye
Pampa, Texas facility. In addition, the Companyrded an impairment of lonigsed assets of $3 million during t
year ended December 31, 20

In December 2007, the Company received a one-tagepnt in resolution of commercial disputes with a
vendor.

2006

Other (charges) gains, net includes charges retateeverance associated with the relocation giarate
offices of $4 million, severance payments in cotio@cwith the lockout settlement at the Meredo8imois plant of
$5 million and severance and relocation expendatertkto restructuring at AT Plastics (IndustripeSialties
segment) of $4 million.

F-36




Table of Contents

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

These charges were offset by $5 million of incoelated to insurance recoveries associated with Ipitugn
cases.

The changes in the restructuring reserves by bssisegment are as follows:

Advanced

Engineerec Consumer Industrial Acetyl

Materials ~ Specialties Specialties Intermediates Other Total
(In $ millions)

Employee Termination Benefits

Restructuring reserve as of December 31, : 4 13 5 8 — 30
Restructuring addition — 13 9 18 2 42
Cash payment 2 (22 (3) 11y — (39
Currency translation adjustme — 1 1 1 8

Restructuring reserve as of December 31, : 2 5 12 16 2 37
Restructuring addition 2 2 2 14 8 23
Cash paymenti 2 (6) (6) 9) 4 (27
Currency translation adjustme — — (2 (1) (1) (4)

Restructuring reserve as of December 31, : 2 1 6 20 — 29

Plant/Office Closures

Restructuring reserve as of December 31, : 1 — — 2 2 5
Restructuring addition — 1 1 — — 2
Cash payment — ) — — Q) ?3)
Currency translation adjustme — 4 — — — 4

Restructuring reserve as of December 31, : 1 3 1 2 1 8
Restructuring addition — — — — — —
Cash payment — Q) (@) (@) Q) 4)
Currency translation adjustme — 2) — — — (1)

Restructuring reserve as of December 31, ? 1 1 — 1 — 3
Total Restructuring reserves as of December 318 3 2 6 21 — 32

19. Income Taxes
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations befaseand minority interests by jurisdiction are akofes:

Year Ended
December 31
2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions)

us 13 (111) 11e
Foreign 29¢ 55€ 41C
Total 434 441 52
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The income tax provision (benefit) consists of fillowing:

Year Ended
December 31
2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Current:

us 62 (99 38
Foreign _92 16 _29
Total current 154 154 67

Deferred:

us (37 17 80
Foreign (59 (1) _56
Total deferrec (91) (49 13¢
Income tax provisiol _ 63 11C 20¢

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying anmooht
assets and liabilities for financial reporting pasps and the amounts used for income tax purp8agsficant
components of the consolidated deferred tax aasetdiabilities were as follows:

As of
December 31
2008 2007

(In $ millions)
Pension and postretirement obligatis 304 22¢
Accrued expense 19t 92
Inventory 8 2
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwe 27¢ 214
Other 192 33
Subtotal 97¢ 57C
Valuation allowanc®) (652) (311
Deferred tax asse 32€ 25¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 322 384
Investment: 41 26
Interest — 7
Other 49 57
Deferred tax liabilitie: 412 474
Net deferred tax assets (liabilitie (86) (215

@) Includes deferred tax asset valuation allowanciesgily for the Company’s deferred tax assets U8, the
United Kingdom and China, as well as other forgigisdictions. These valuation allowances relatmprily to
net operating loss carryforward benefits and otte¢deferred tax assets, all of which may not aéizable.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, the valuatiowance increased by $341 million, consisting of
(1) charges to income tax expense of $11 milliarcfmtinuing operations and discontinued operati(®jsan
increase of $223 million allocated to accumulatdteocomprehensive income, (3) an increase of $flibm

F-38




Table of Contents

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

related to CTA, (4) an increase of $16 million tethto additional paid in capital and (5) $50 roifliof other
increases related to preacquisition deferred tagtasFIN 48 and other adjustments to deferredstaxe

A reconciliation of the significant differences Wween the US federal statutory tax rate of 35% aedc:ffective
income tax rate on income from continuing operaiisnas follows:

Year Ended
December 31
2006 2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Income tax provision computed at US federal stayutax rate 15z 15€ 184
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting fr
Change in valuation allowan: (5) 9 4
Equity income and dividenc a7 8 5
Expenses not resulting in tax bene 18 19 15
US tax effect of foreign earnings and divide! 5 27 28
Other foreign tax rate differentis() (84) (98) (59
Legislative change 3 (21 —
State income taxes and otl 1 10 _26

Income tax provisiol 63 11C 202

@ Includes impact of earnings from China and Singaoibject to tax holidays which expire between 2008
2013.

Federal and state income taxes have not been pwoid accumulated but undistributed earnings & BRlion
as of December 31, 2008, as such earnings havepleearmnently reinvested in the business. The détation of
the amount of the unrecognized deferred tax lighiglated to the undistributed earnings is notfpcable.

The effective tax rate for continuing operationstfee year ended December 31, 2008 was 15% compared
25% for the year ended December 31, 2007. Theteffetax rate for 2008 was favorably impacted Hy:gn
increase in unrepatriated low-taxed earnings, diolyitax holidays, (2) tax credits generated irifgm jurisdictions
and (3) the US tax impact of foreign operations.

The Company operates under tax holidays in vamoustries which are effective through December 2013
China, one of the Comparsyentities has a tax holiday that provides forra percent tax rate in 2007 and 2008.
2009 through 2011, the Company’s tax rate will B&5of the statutory rate, or 12.5% based on th& 3@utory
rate of 25%. In Singapore, one of the Company’giesthas a tax holiday that provides for a zen@@et tax rate
through 2010. For 2011 through 2013, the CompataxXsate will be 50% of the statutory rate, or 9&6dd on the
current statutory rate of 18%. The impact of theseholidays decreased foreign taxes $22 milliorttie year ende
December 31, 2008.

The Corporate Tax Reform Act of 2008 was signethieyGerman Federal President in August 2007. The Ac
reduced the Company’s combined corporate stattdoryate from 40% to 30% while imposing limitatioms the
deductibility of certain expenses, including ins#rexpense. The Company recognized a tax benedppmioximatel
$39 million in 2007 related to the statutory ragduction on its German net deferred tax liabilities

Mexico enacted the 2008 Fiscal Reform Bill on Oetob, 2007. Effective January 1, 2008, the billeadpd the
existing asset-based tax and established a du@hietax system consisting of a new minimum flat(tae “IETU”)
and the existing regular income tax system. ThelEystem taxes companies on cash basis net incamsisting
only of certain specified items of revenue and exspge at a rate of 16.5%, 17% and 17.5% for 20089 20
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and 2010 forward, respectively. In general, comgmniust pay the higher of the income tax or thdJEdlthough
unlike the previous asset tax, the IETU is not itedsle against future income tax liabilities. Then@pany has
determined that it will primarily be subject to tHETU in future periods, and as such it has recdtde expense of
approximately $20 million in 2007 for the defertaat effects of the new IETU system.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company had US fedetabperating loss carryforwards of approximately
$298 million which will begin to expire in 2021. @fis amount, $53 million relates to the preacdioisiperiod and
is subject to limitation. Of the remaining $245 lioih, $153 million is subject to limitation as astét of the change
in stock ownership in May 2006. This limitationnist expected to have a material impact on utilaratf the net
operating loss carryforwards.

The Company also had foreign net operating losyfmawards as of December 31, 2008 of approximately
$435 million for China, Germany, Mexico and otherefign jurisdictions with various expiration datBket operatin
losses in China have various carryforward periguklaegin expiring in 2011. Net operating losseS@&mmany have
no expiration date. Net operating losses in Mekiave a ten year carryforward period and begin pirexn 2009.
However, these losses are not available for userihe new IETU tax regulations in Mexico. As tBEF'U is the
primary system upon which the Company will be saje tax in future periods, no deferred tax aksstbeen
reflected in the consolidated balance sheets Beoémber 31, 2008 for these income tax loss camgials.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48 effeclanuary 1, 2007. FIN 48 clarifies the accounfor
income taxes by prescribing a minimum recognittmes$hold a tax benefit is required to meet befeiad
recognized in the financial statements. FIN 48 plswvides guidance on derecognition, measurembassi€ication,
interest and penalties, accounting in interim msjalisclosure and transition. As a result of thplementation of
FIN 48, the Company increased Retained earning&lBymillion and decreased Goodwill by $2 million.dddition
certain tax liabilities for unrecognized tax betgfas well as related potential penalties andéstewere
reclassified from current liabilities to noncurrdiabilities. Liabilities for unrecognized tax bdits as of
December 31, 2008 relate to various US and forgigsdictions.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Balance as of January 1, 2C 20C 19z
Increases in tax positions for the current y — 2
Increases in tax positions for prior ye 7 28
Decreases in tax positions of prior ye (10 (21)
Settlement: @ @
Balance as of December 31, 2( 19t _20C

Included in the unrecognized tax benefits as ofdb@mer 31, 2008 and 2007 are $71 million and $56amijl
respectively, of tax benefits that, if recognizeduld reduce the Company'’s effective tax rate.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiessrbtatunrecognized tax benefits in the provisianiicome
taxes. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Coyipas recorded a liability of approximately $38lmil and
$36 million, respectively, for interest and peredtiThis amount includes an increase of approxign@femillion
and $13 million for the years ended December 3082fhd 2007, respectively.

The Company operates in the US (including multgtége jurisdictions), Germany and approximateloér
foreign jurisdictions including Canada, China, FranMexico and Singapore. Examinations are ongoirggnumbe
of those jurisdictions including, most significantin Germany for the years 2001 to 2004. Durirgy th
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guarter ended March 31, 2007, the Company recdimatassessments in Germany for the prior exantnateriod
1997 to 2000. The effective settlement of thoseremations resulted in a reduction to Goodwill opegximately
$42 million with a net expected cash outlay of $&8ion. The Company’s US federal income tax retufor 2003
and beyond are open tax years not currently undanimation. Unrecognized tax benefits are not etqueto
change significantly over the next 12 months.

The tax provision (benefit) amounts allocated teeottomprehensive income (loss), net, were $5anilli
$10 million and $11 million for the years ended Beber 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 respectively. Okthesounts,
$5 million, $10 million and $11 million were atttitable to the pension and postretirement beneditsponent of
other comprehensive income (loss), net. The incex@rovision (benefit) associated with Accumulabeiaer
comprehensive income (loss), net is dependent tipotax jurisdiction in which the items arise awedadingly
could result in an effective tax rate that is difiet from the overall consolidated effective incotae rate on the
consolidated statements of operations.

20. Stock-Based and Other Management Compensation Plar

In December 2004, the Company approved a stockiiveeplan for executive officers, key employeed an
directors, a deferred compensation plan for exeeuwificers and key employees as well as other gemant
incentive programs.

The stock incentive plan allows for the issuancdadivery of up to 16,250,000 shares of the Comfgany
Series A common stock through the award of stotlong, restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and othercktbased
awards as may be approved by the Company’s Comgi@m&zommittee of the Board of Directors.

Deferred Compensation

The 2004 deferred compensation plan provides areggte maximum amount payable of $196 million. The
initial component of the deferred compensation plasted in 2004 and was paid in the first quat&085. In May
2007, the Original Shareholders sold their remamiquity interest in the Company triggering an Exient, as
defined by the plan. Cash compensation of $74 onilliepresenting the participants’ 2005 and 2008icgent
benefits, was paid to the participants during tharyended December 31, 2007. Participants contrinithe 2004
deferred compensation plan (see below for discaggigarding certain participant’s decision to apite in a
revised program) continue to vest in their 2008 20@9 time-based and performance-based entitlerasrdsfined
in the deferred compensation plan. During the yeaded December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, the Cgmpan
recorded compensation expense of $3 million, $84amiand $19 million, respectively, associatedhathis plan.
The remaining amount payable under the plan is fliom

On April 2, 2007, certain participants in the Comypa deferred compensation plan elected to pa#iteijin a
revised program, which includes both cash awardsestricted stock units (see Restricted Stockdpédow).
Under the revised program, participants relinquistheir cash awards of up to $30 million that wolidd/e
contingently accrued from 2007-2009 under the pebplan. In lieu of these awards, the revised mete
compensation program provides for a future cashrdwwaan amount equal to 90% of the maximum po&dpayou
under the original plan, plus growth pursuant te ohthree participant-selected notional investnvehicles, as
defined in the associated agreements. Participanss remain employed through 2010 to vest in ttve amvard. The
Company will make award payments under the revisedram in the first quarter of 2011, unless paéints elect
to further defer the payment of their individualards. Based on current participation in the revi@egjram, the
awards aggregate to approximately $27 million plosonal earnings and will be recognized as expémaeigh
December 31, 2010. The Company expensed $8 milwh$6 million during the years ended DecembefB@3
and 2007, respectively, related to the revisednarg

In December 2007, the Company adopted a deferneghensation plan whereby certain of the Company’s
senior employees and directors were offered themppity to defer a portion of their compensatinrekchange for
a future payment amount equal to their defermelots gr minus certain amounts based upon the market-
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performance of specified measurement funds seldstdde participant. Participants are required akendeferral
elections under the plan prior to January 1 ofyésr such deferrals will be withheld from their quansation. The
Company expensed $1 million during the year endecehber 31, 2008 related to this plan.

In December 2008, the Company granted time-vestst) awards of $22 million with the Company’s
executive officers and certain other key employ&esh award of cash vests 30% on October 14, Z198,0n
October 14, 2010 and 40% on October 14, 2011slsate discretion, the compensation committee@Btbard of
Directors may at any time convert all or a portidrihe cash award to an award of timesting restricted stock uni

Long-Term Incentive Plan

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company adopted@-term incentive plan (the “LTIP Plan”) which cose
certain members of management and other key emgdayiethe Company. The LTIP Plan is a thyeas cash base
plan in which awards are based on annual and freaeeumulative targets (as defined in the LTImPI|
February 2007, $26 million was paid to the LTIPmptearticipants. During the year ended Decembe3Q6, the
Company recorded expense of $19 million relatetthiéo TIP Plan. There are no additional amountsuhder the
LTIP Plan.

Stock Options

The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No.RPXhare-Based Paymer(tSFAS No. 123(R)"), on
January 1, 2006. The Company elected the modifiesipective transition method under which compeosatosts
are recognized for all stock-based payments grariedto, but not yet vested as of January 1, 2@ all stock-
based payments granted subsequent to January@., @0Mpensation costs are based on the grantalateafue
estimated in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R).

The Company has a stock-based compensation plamé#ies awards of stock options to certain empleyite
is the Company current policy to grant options with an exergisiee equal to the average of the high and lowg
of the Company’s Series A common stock on the gilate. The options issued have a ten-year ternvesicon a
graded basis over periods ranging from one toyfears. The estimated value of the Company’s stadleth awards
less expected forfeitures is amortized over therdsvaespective vesting period on a straight-liasib.

The fair value of each option granted is estimatedhe grant date using the Black-Scholes optidairmy
method. The weighted average assumptions use@ imsitel are outlined in the following table:

Year Ended

December 31,

2008 2007
Risk-free interest rat 3.3% 4.6%

Estimated life in year 7.7 6.8
Dividend yield 0.38% 0.42%
Volatility 31.4% 27.5%

The computation of the expected volatility assunptised in the Black-Scholes calculations for neants is
based on the Company’s historical volatilities &othtilities of peer companies. When establishimgéxpected life
assumptions, the Company reviews annual histoeicgdloyee exercise behavior of option grants withilar
vesting periods and the expected life assumptibpgeer companies. The Company utilizes the reviepeer
companies based on its own lack of extensive hjistor
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A summary of changes in stock options outstandiragifollows:

Year Ended December 31, 200

Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Grant Remaining Aggregate
Number of Price in Contractual Intrinsic
Options $ Term Value
(In millions) (In years) (In $ millions)
Outstanding at beginning of ye 8.1 18.7: 7.5 192
Granted 0.2 42.1z
Exercisec (1. 17.3¢
Forfeited (0.2) 22.7:
Outstanding at end of ye 7.C 19.3¢ 6.€ —
Options exercisable at end of yt 5.3 16.41 6.2 —

The weighted-average grant-date fair value of stqtions granted during the years ended Decemhet(RB
and 2007 was $16.78 and $14.42, respectively, péoro As of December 31, 2008, the Company had
approximately $12 million of total unrecognized quensation expense related to stock options, exgjuelstimated
forfeitures, to be recognized over the remainingting periods of the options. Cash received framslsbption
exercises was $18 million during the year endedebdxer 31, 2008. There was no tax benefit realiraa Stock
option exercises during the year ended Decembe2(BIB.

Restricted Stock Units

Performance-based RSU®Rarticipants in the revised deferred compensatiogram also received an awari
RSUs. The RSUs, which were granted in April 200, west on December 31, 2010 and have a fair @alti$23.6:
per unit. The number of RSUs that ultimately vespehds on market performance targets measuredniyacson
of the Company’s stock performance versus a defireedl group. The ultimate award will range fronozer
263,030 RSUs, based on the market performance megasnot at the cliff vesting date. The market penfance
feature is factored into the estimated fair valaeymit, and compensation expense for the awarddged on the
maximum RSUs of 263,030. Dividends on RSUs areeshim accordance with the Company’s common stock
dividend policy and are reinvested in additional RS

In addition, under the 2007 Long-term Performancmam, the Company granted RSUs with a fair value
$21.30 per unit to certain employees. The RSUsamstially in equal tranches beginning Septembe2303
through September 30, 2011. The RSUs contain tihe saarket performance criteria as those describedea with
an ultimate award that will range from zero to @67, RSUs. The awards include a catch-up provigiahgrovides
for vesting on September 30, 2012 of previouslyasted amounts, subject to certain maximums. Dividem
RSUs are earned in accordance with the Companysmam stock dividend policy and are reinvested iditazhal
RSUs.
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A summary of changes in RSUs outstanding underetised deferred compensation program and the 2007
Long-term Performance Program during the year eifisxmber 31, 2008 is presented as follows:

Performance-based RSUs

Weighted

Average
Number of Fair Value in

Units $
(Units in thousands)

Nonvested at beginning of ye 1,11¢ 21.8¢
Granted — —
Vested (243) 21.3(
Forfeited (85 21.3(
Nonvested at end of ye 891 21.9¢

In December 2008, the Company granted RSUs toicenaployees with a fair value of $12.65 per uhfte
RSUs vest on October 14, 2011. The number of RBatauftimately vest is dependent upon the achientimie
1) internal profitability targets and 2) market foemance targets measured by the comparison dtimepany’s
stock performance versus a defined peer groupultimate award will range from zero to 669,150 RSUse
market performance feature is factored into theneded fair value per unit.

The Company also made a grant in December 20080020 performance units to be settled in cashdo t
Company’s Chief Executive Officer. The terms of feeformance units are substantially similar togbeformance-
based RSUs granted in December 2008. The valleqgfdrformance units is equivalent to the valuensf share of
the Company’s Series A common stock and any amdhatsnay vest under the performance unit awardeagent
are to be settled in cash, rather than sharesed€timpany’s Series A common stock. The compensatiommittee
of the Board of Directors may elect to convertaalany portion of the performance units award t@aard of an
equivalent value of performance-based RSUs.

Fair value for the Company’s performance-based RBatsestimated at the grant date using a MonteoCarl
simulation approach. Monte Carlo simulation waagti to randomly generate future stock returngtierCompan
and each company in the designated peer groumédr grant based on compasgecific dividend yields, volatilitie
and stock return correlations. These returns weeel to calculate future RSU vesting percentageshandgimulated
values of the vested RSUs were then discountedeept value using a ridkee rate, yielding the expected value
these RSUs.

The range of assumptions used in the Monte Camalsition approach is outlined in the following &bl

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007
Risk-free interest rat 1.05% 4.53— 4.5%
Dividend yield 0.00—12.7% 0.00— 2.7¢%
Volatility 20— 70% 20— 45%

Time-based RSUsDuring 2007 and 2008, the Company granted nonl@rap Directors timdzased RSUs th
generally vest one year after grant. During 2088,Gompany granted time-based RSUs to certain gedothat
vest ratably over time intervals ranging from oodaur years. The fair value of the time-based R$ds equal to
the average of the high and low price of the CongfzaBeries A common stock on the grant date.
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A summary of changes in timtesed RSUs outstanding during the year ended Dexre3ib 2008 is as follow

Employee Time-based RSU Director Time-Based RSU¢«

Weighted Weighted

Average Average
Number of Fair Value in Number of Fair Value in

Units $ Units $
Shares in 000’s

Nonvested at beginning of ye — — 23 32.61
Grantec 10€ 39.3¢ 15 44.0z
Vested — — (23) 32.61
Forfeited @ 39.5:¢ — —
Nonvested at end of ye 10E 39.3¢ 15 44.02

As of December 31, 2008, there was approximate®yrsillion of unrecognized compensation cost reldted
RSUs, excluding estimated forfeitures, which wél&mortized on a straight-line basis over the ramgivesting
periods.

21. Leases

Total rent expense charged to operations undepalating leases was $96 million, $122 million and
$109 million for the years ended December 31, 22087 and 2006, respectively. Future minimum |lgesenents
under non-cancelable rental and lease agreemeitth Wave initial or remaining terms in excess o gear as of
December 31, 2008 are as follows:

Capital Operating
(In $ millions)

2009 38 45
2010 55 27
2011 33 21
2012 33 14
2013 30 11
Later year: 22¢ 22
Sublease incom — (34)

Minimum lease commitmen 417 10€
Less amounts representing intel 20€

Present value of net minimum lease obligati 211

The Company expects that, in the normal coursausiniess, leases that expire will be renewed oroepl by
other leases.

22. Financial Instruments
Interest Rate Risk Management

To reduce the interest rate risk inherent in then@any’s variable rate debt, the Company utilizésrest rate
swap agreements to convert a portion of the vaziedike debt to a fixed rate obligation. These @gtrate swap
agreements are designated as cash flow hedgesinfesest rate swap agreement is terminated fwigs maturity,
the amount previously recorded in Accumulated otloenprehensive income (loss), net is recognizemeatnings
over the period that the hedged transaction impaantsings. If the hedging relationship is discamgith because it is
probable that the forecasted transaction will reaiuo according to the original strategy, any relamounts
previously recorded in Accumulated other compreivenscome (loss), net are recognized into earnings
immediately.
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As of December 31, 2006, the Company had an irttemés swap agreement in place with a notionalevalu
$300 million. On March 29, 2007, in connection witle April 2007 debt refinancing, the Company teraméd this
interest rate swap agreement and recognized abf& million related to amounts previously recatde
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net.

In March 2007, in anticipation of the April 2007ldeefinancing, the Company entered into variousddiar
and Euro interest rate swap agreements, which beeffiective on April 2, 2007, with notional amounfs
$1.6 billion and €150 million, respectively. Thetiomal amount of the $1.6 billion US dollar intereste swaps
decreased by $400 million effective January 2, 2008 decreased by another $200 million effectiveidey 2,
2009. To offset the declines, the Company enteredUS dollar interest rate swaps with a combinetibnal
amount of $400 million which became effective onulry 2, 2008 and an additional US dollar interat swap
with a notional amount of $200 million which wilebome effective April 2, 2009.

The Company recognized interest (expense) incoom fredging activities relating to interest rate gsvaf
($18) million, $6 million and $1 million for the ges ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, rasggcthe
Company recorded a net loss of less than $1 mitbo@ther income (expense), net for the ineffectivetion of the
interest rate swap agreements for each of the pealesd December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006. The Cgmpan
recorded an unrealized loss on interest rate sea$s9 million during the year ended December D&

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Certain entities have receivables and payablesrdierabed in currencies other than their respectivetional
currencies, which creates foreign exchange risk. Tompany enters into foreign currency forwards smaps to
minimize its exposure to foreign currency fluctoas. The currently outstanding foreign currencytiamis are
hedging booked exposure, however the Company noay fime to time hedge its currency exposure releied
forecasted transactions. Forward contracts ardesignated as hedges under SFAS No. 133.

The following table indicates the total US dollguéralents of net foreign exchange exposure relatddhort)
long foreign exchange forward contracts outstangiyngurrency. All of the contracts included in thble below
will have approximately offsetting effects from aat underlying payables, receivables, intercompeaays or other
assets or liabilities subject to foreign exchareyjaegasurement.

2009 Maturity
(In $ millions)

Currency
Euro 14E
British pound sterling (115)
Mexican pes( 80
Singapore dolla 26
Canadian dolla 21
Japanese ye 9
Brazilian real @)
Swedish kroni 6
Hungarian forin (5)
Other 3

Total 157

To protect the foreign currency exposure of a meg$tment in a foreign operation, the Company edt@rto
cross currency swaps with certain financial ingititas in 2004. The cross currency swaps and the-B@mnominater
portion of the senior term loan were designated lasdge of a net investment of a foreign operafitie. Company
dedesignated the net investment hedge due to Bteefnancing in April 2007 and redesignated the
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cross currency swaps and new senior Euro termitodaly 2007. As a result, the Company recordedr$iZion of
mark-to-market losses related to the cross currem@ps and the new senior Euro term loan durirgygéiiod.

Under the terms of the cross currency swap arraegemthe Company paid approximately €13 million in
interest and received approximately $16 milliofniterest on June 15 and December 15 of each yharfalr value
of the net obligation under the cross currency swegs included in current Other liabilities in tmnsolidated
balance sheets as of December 31, 2007. Upon tyadfithe cross currency swap agreements in Ju@ig,2be
Company owed €276 million ($426 million) and waseal$333 million. In settlement of the obligationet
Company paid $93 million (net of interest of $3lmit) in June 2008.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, the Coyngadesignated €385 million of the €400 Euro-
denominated portion of the term loan, previouslyigieated as a hedge of a net investment of a foxgigration.
Prior to this dedesignation, the Company had beérgwexternal derivative contracts to offset fore@mirrency
exposures on intercompany loans. The foreign cayremposure resulting from dedesignation 8% million of the
hedge of a net investment of a foreign operatiexjsected to offset the foreign currency exposureastain
intercompany loans, decreasing the need for eXtdaravative contracts and reducing the Companyjsosure to
external counterparties. The remaining €15 milkamo-denominated portion of the term loan contirtodse
designated as a hedge of a net investment of yfooperation.

The effective portion of the gain (loss) on theiwkgive (cross currency swaps) is recorded in Aaglaed
other comprehensive income (loss), net. For thesyeaded December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, therdrobarge:
to Accumulated other comprehensive income (los)was $(19) million, $(19) million and $(23) mdh,
respectively. The gain (loss) related to items eaet from the assessment of hedge effectivendb® afoss
currency swaps are recorded to Other income (ex)enst in the consolidated statements of opersitiéar the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006therd charged to Other income (expense), net i
consolidated statements of operations was $1 mjli6) million and $5 million, respectively.

Commodity Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the prices of comnagditiits procurement of certain raw materials. The
Company manages its exposure primarily throughuieeof long-term supply agreements and derivative
instruments. The Company regularly assesses it$igeaof purchasing a portion of its commodity riegments
forward and utilization of other raw material hasginstruments, in addition to forward purchaseti@mts, in
accordance with changes in market conditions. Fahparchases and swap contracts for raw materials a
principally settled through actual delivery of fhieysical commodity. For qualifying contracts, thendpany has
elected to apply the normal purchases and norned saception of SFAS No. 133, as amended, assitprabable
at the inception and throughout the term of thetrean that they would not settle net and would itesyphysical
delivery. As such, realized gains and losses osetleentracts are included in the cost of the conitmogon the
settlement of the contract.

In addition, the Company occasionally enters iimaricial derivatives to hedge a component of ameaterial
or energy source. Typically, these types of tratisas do not qualify for hedge accounting. Thestrioments are
marked to market at each reporting period and dgéisses) are included in Cost of sales in the alafsed
statements of operations. The Company recognizeghimoor loss from these types of contracts duttiregyear
ended December 31, 2008 and less than $1 milliomgleach of the years ended December 31, 2002006,
respectively. As of December 31, 2008, the Comphdyot have any open financial derivative consdot
commodities.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As discussed in Note 2, the Company adopted cqptavisions of SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2008.
SFAS No. 157 establishes a thtesred fair value hierarchy that prioritizes inptdsvaluation techniques used in
value calculations. The three levels of inputsdefined as follows:

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted prices for identicakss or liabilities in active markets accessibldéhgy
Company
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Level 2 — inputs that are observable in the mailke®other than those inputs classified as Level 1
Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable in the ntpikee and significant to the valuation

SFAS No. 157 requires the Company to maximize #eeaf observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. If a financial instrument usesits that fall in different levels of the hiechy, the instrument
will be categorized based upon the lowest levehpiit that is significant to the fair value caldita.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilitiesragasured at fair value on a recurring basis arlddec
securities available for sale and derivative finahimstruments. Securities available for saleudel US government
and corporate bonds, mortgage-backed securities@uity securities. Derivative financial instrumeiriclude
interest rate swaps and foreign currency forwandssavaps.

Marketable Securities.Where possible, the Company utilizes quoted priceactive markets to measure debt
and equity securities; such items are classifiedeagl 1 in the hierarchy and include equity se@siand US
government bonds. When quoted market prices fattickd assets are unavailable, varying valuatichiiéues are
used. Common inputs in valuing these assets inchrdeng others, benchmark yields, issuer spreadsafd
mortgage-backed securities trade prices and rgoeapbrted trades. Such assets are classifiedas Rén the
hierarchy and typically include mortgage-backedisies, corporate bonds and other US governmentries.

Derivatives. Derivative financial instruments are valued ia tharket using discounted cash flow techniques.
These techniques incorporate Level 1 and Levep@tssuch as interest rates and foreign currenclyagge rates.
These market inputs are utilized in the discouwtesh flow calculation considering the instrumetgisn, notional
amount, discount rate and credit risk. Signifidaputs to the derivative valuation for intereseratvaps and foreign
currency forwards and swaps are observable indtrecamarkets and are classified as Level 2 irhibearchy.

The following fair value hierarchy table presemtformation about the Company’s assets and liadsliti
measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurement as o
December 31, 2008 Usin
Quoted Prices in

Active Markets for Significant Other As of
Identical Assets Observable Inputs December 31
(Level 1) (Level 2) 2008
(In $ millions)
Assets
Marketable securitie 42 58 10C
Current derivatives (included in N-trade receivables — 54 54
Total asset 42 112 154
Liabilities
Current derivatives (included in current Other ilitils) — (65) (65)
Noncurrent derivatives (included in noncurrent @tebilities) — (76) (76)
Total liabilities — (147) (1417)
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Summarized below are the carrying values and etufrfair values of financial instruments that aoé carried
at fair value on our consolidated balance sheets:

As of December 31

2008 2007
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
(In $ millions)
Cost investment 184 — 18¢ —
Insurance contracts in nonqualified pension tr 67 67 74 74
Long-term debt, including current installments of I-term debt 3,381 2,40¢ 3,32¢ 3,211

In general, the cost investments included in thétabove are not publicly traded and their faluga are not
readily determinable; however, the Company beli¢kescarrying values approximate or are less tharair
values.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the fair valdesish and cash equivalents, receivables, tradabes;
short-term debt and the current installments offtarm debt approximate carrying values due tcstiat-term
nature of these instruments. These items have déaeduded from the table. Additionally, certain narment
receivables, principally insurance recoverables carried at net realizable value.

The fair value of long-term debt and debt-relatedricial instruments is based upon valuations filoind-party
banks and market quotations.

23. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in a number of legal praoéegs, lawsuits and claims incidental to the normal
conduct of business, relating to such matters aguat liability, antitrust, past waste disposalqgties and release
chemicals into the environment. While it is impaésiat this time to determine with certainty thémiate outcome
of these proceedings, lawsuits and claims, the Goms actively defending those matters where thie@any is
named as a defendant. Additionally, the Companigbes it has determined its best estimate, basedeoadvice of
legal counsel, that adequate reserves have beem anadhat the ultimate outcomes will not have tenal adverse
effect on the financial position of the Companywewer, the ultimate outcome of any given matter imaye a
material impact on the results of operations ohdbmsvs of the Company in any given reporting pdrio

Plumbing Actions

CNA Holdings, Inc. (“CNA Holdings”), a US subsidiaof the Company, which included the US businesg no
conducted by the Ticona business which is includatle Advanced Engineered Materials segment, aldtigShel
Oil Company (“Shell”), E.l. DuPont de Nemours anoh@any (“DuPont”) and others, has been a deferidamt
series of lawsuits, including a number of classoast alleging that plastics manufactured by thesapanies that
were utilized in the production of plumbing systefmsresidential property were defective or causech plumbing
systems to fail. Based on, among other thingsfititings of outside experts and the successfubfiécona’s
acetal copolymer in similar applications, CNA Haolgés does not believe Ticosaacetal copolymer was defective
caused the plumbing systems to fail. In many c&3¢& Holdings’ potential future exposure may be liea by
invocation of the statute of limitations since CKialdings ceased selling the resin for use in thenping systems
in site-built homes during 1986 and in manufacturedhes during 1990.

In November 1995, CNA Holdings, DuPont and Shelessd into national class action settlements whadled
for the replacement of plumbing systems of claireavtto have had qualifying leaks, as well as reiraboments for
certain leak damage. In connection with such setihg, the three companies had agreed to fund thptacements
and reimbursements up to an aggregate amount 6f ®8bon. As of December 31,
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2008, the aggregate funding is $1,103 million, thuadditional contributions and funding commitmemizde
primarily by other parties.

During the period between 1995 and 2001, CNA Hagsdiwas also named as a defendant in the following
putative class actions:

» Cox, et al. v. Hoechst Celanese Corporation, et Bb. 94-0047 (Chancery Ct., Obion County, Tenngsse
(class was certified

« Couture, et al. v. Shell Oil Company, et, No. 20(-06-00000:-985 (Quebec Superior Court, Canac

« Dilday, et al. v. Hoechst Celanese Corporatiorgle, No. 15187 (Chancery Ct., Weakley County,
Tennessee

» Furlan v. Shell Oil Company, et ¢, No. C967239 (British Columbia Supreme Court, \aner Registry,
Canada)

» Gariepy, et al. v. Shell Oil Company, et, No. 30781/99 (Ontario Court General Division, Gda).

« Shelter General Insurance Co., et al. v. Shell@impany, et al. No. 16809 (Chancery Ct., Weakley
County, Tennessee

e St. Croix Ltd., et al. v. Shell Oil Company, et,dllo. 1997/467 (Territorial Ct., St. Croix Divisipthe US
Virgin Islands).

« Tranter v. Shell Oil Company, et i, No. 46565/97 (Ontario Court General Division, Gda).

In addition, between 1994 and 2008 CNA Holdings nased as a defendant in numerous non-class actions
filed in Arizona, Florida, Georgia, Louisiana, Missippi, New Jersey, Tennessee and Texas, the tiffh\Wslands
and Canada of which ten are currently pendinglllofahese actions, the plaintiffs have soughorery for alleged
damages caused by leaking polybutylene plumbingadgge amounts have generally not been specifiethbse
cases generally do not involve (either individualtyin the aggregate) a large number of homes.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company had remaadeguals of $64 million, of which $2 million is ilucled
in current Other liabilities in the consolidateddrece sheets. As of December 31, 2007, the Comipattyemaining
accruals of $65 million, of which $3 million wascinded in current Other liabilities in the consalidd balance
sheets.

The Company reached settlements with CNA Holdimg®irers specifying their responsibility for thedaims.
During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Coynneived $23 million of insurance proceeds framaus
CNA Holdings’ insurers as full satisfaction for theesponsibility for these claims.

Plumbing Insurance Indemnifications

Celanese GmbH entered into agreements with inseremmpanies related to product liability settlersent
associated with Celcdhplumbing claims. These agreements, except thoseiméblvent insurance companies,
require the Company to indemnify and/or defenddghrsurance companies in the event that third gasiek
additional monies for matters released in theseaagents. The indemnifications in these agreementetiprovide
for time limitations.

In certain of the agreements, Celanese GmbH ret@ifixed settlement amount. The indemnities uritiese
agreements generally are limited to, but in sonsesare greater than, the amount received inrpettiefrom the
insurance company. The maximum exposure under thdsenifications is $95 million. Other settlement
agreements have no stated limits.
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There are other agreements whereby the settlingénagreed to pay a fixed percentage of claimsréfate to
that insurer’s policies. The Company has providgettmnifications to the insurers for amounts paiexoess of the
settlement percentage. These indemnifications d@nowide for monetary or time limitations.

Sorbates Antitrust Actions

In May 2002, the European Commission informed Hee&IG (“Hoechst”) of its intent to officially invéigate
the sorbates industry. In early January 2003, tvefiean Commission served Hoechst, Nutrinova, itlS
subsidiary of Nutrinova Nutrition Specialties & Fbtngredients GmbH and previously a wholly owneldssdiary
of Hoechst (“Nutrinova”), and a number of compestof Nutrinova with a statement of objections gilhg
unlawful, anticompetitive behavior affecting ther&pean sorbates market. In October 2003, the Earope
Commission ruled that Hoechst, Chisso Corporatimicel Chemical Industries Ltd. (“Daicel”), The Nipn
Synthetic Chemical Industry Co. Ltd. and Ueno Fatemicals Industry Ltd. operated a cartel in theoRaan
sorbates market between 1979 and 1996. The Eurdperamission imposed a total fine of €138 millionsarch
companies, of which €99 million was assessed agHioschst and its legal successors. The case adaitrinova
was closed. Pursuant to the Demerger Agreementhigdthst, Celanese GmbH was assigned the obligatiated
to the sorbates antitrust matter; however, Hoeelmst,its legal successors, agreed to indemnifyriésla GmbH for
80% of any costs Celanese GmbH incurred relatitkisomatter. Accordingly, Celanese GmbH recognized
receivable from Hoechst from this indemnificatitmJune 2008, the Court of First Instance of theopaan
Communities (Fifth Chamber) reduced the fine agditteechst to €74.25 million and in July 2008, Hoggbaid the
€74.25 million fine. In August 2008, the Companydkioechst €17 million, including interest of €2 loih, in
satisfaction of its 20% obligation with respecthe fine.

Based on the advice of external counsel and awesighe existing facts and circumstances relatinthe
sorbates antitrust matters, including the settléroéthe European Uniog’investigation, as well as civil claims fil
and settled, the Company released its accrualedsla the settled sorbates antitrust matters lamchtlemnification
receivables resulting in a gain of $8 million, riatluded in Other (charges) gains, net, in thesotidated
statements of operations. As of December 31, 20@7Company had indemnification receivables of $h#ilion
included in current Other assets and accruals 90 $illion included in current Other liabilities the consolidated
balance sheets.

In addition, in 2004 a civil antitrust action stgflEreeman Industries LLC v. Eastman Chemical Coaletvas
filed against Hoechst and Nutrinova, Inc. in thevl@ourt for Sullivan County in Kingsport, Tennesséke
plaintiff sought monetary damages and other rétieflleged conduct involving the sorbates industiye trial cout
dismissed the plaintiff's claims and upon appeal$upreme Court of Tennessee affirmed the dismiéshe
plaintiff's claims. In December 2005, the plainfifst an attempt to amend its complaint and thgeeattion was
dismissed with prejudice by the trial court. Pldfts counsel has subsequently filed a new complaiith new class
representatives in the District Court of the Didtof Tennessee. The Company’s motion to strikecthss
allegations was granted in April 2008 and the (iffie appeal of such ruling is currently pending.

Acetic Acid Patent Infringement Matters

On May 9, 1999, Celanese International Corpordiled a private criminal action stylddelanese
International Corporation v. China Petrochemical\opment Corporatioagainst China Petrochemical
Development Corporation (“CPDC”) in the Taiwan Khasg District Court alleging that CPDC infringe&l@nese
International Corporation’s patent covering the ofanture of acetic acid. Celanese Internationap@@tion also
filed a supplementary civil brief which, in view ofianges in Taiwanese patent laws, was subsequamberted to
a civil action alleging damages against CPDC based period of infringement of ten years, 1991-2G0@ based
on CPDC'’s own data which was reported to the Ta@sarsecurities and exchange commission. Celanese
International Corporation’s patent was held valjdie Taiwanese patent office. On August 31, 28@5 District
Court held that CPDC infringed Celanese Internati@orporation’s acetic acid patent and awardedu@ele
International Corporation approximately $28 milligpius interest) for the period of 1995 through 9.9& October
2008, the High Court, on appeal, reversed the bisbourt’s $28 million award to the Company. Thentpany is
appealing. On January 16, 2006, the District Court
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awarded Celanese International Corporation $800(0l08 interest) for the year 1990. In January 2808 High
Court, on appeal, affirmed the District Court’s astvand CPDC appealed on February 5, 2009. On Jan20P7,
the District Court awarded Celanese InternatiorapGration $60 million (plus interest) for the petiof 2000
through 2005. CPDC is appealing this award.

Domination Agreement

On October 1, 2004, a Domination Agreement betwaalanese GmbH and the Purchaser became operative.
When the Domination Agreement became operativeRthehaser became obligated to offer to acquire all
outstanding Celanese GmbH shares from the minshidyeholders of Celanese GmbH in return for payroffatir
cash compensation. The amount of this fair cashpemsation was determined to be €41.92 per sharejmkrest,
in accordance with applicable German law. Until Bugieeze-Out was registered in the commercialtexgis
Germany on December 22, 2006, any minority shadenatho elected not to sell its shares to the Ragehwas
entitled to remain a shareholder of Celanese GnmiitHt@receive from the Purchaser a gross guaraate®ahl
payment on its shares of €3.27 per Celanese Gmat¢ $&ss certain corporate taxes in lieu of aniddivd. For the
year ended December 31, 2006, a charc€3 million ($4 million) was recorded to Other incertexpense), net for
the anticipated guaranteed annual payment.

On June 1, 2006, the guaranteed annual paymetiiddiscal year ended September 30, 2005, whichuated
to €3 million, was paid. In addition, pursuant teadtlement agreement entered into with plaintiireholders in
March 2006, the Purchaser paitl @illion on June 30, 2006, the guaranteed annayainent for the fiscal year enc
September 30, 2006, to those shareholders whodsaytetter waiving any further rights with resptrsuch
guaranteed annual payment that ordinarily wouldberdue and payable after the 2007 annual genesetimg.
Between June 30, 2006, and January 17, 2007, tloh&ser paid a total amount of less than €1 milldminority
shareholders who required early payment of theaguaed annual payment for the fiscal year endete8dger 30,
2006, by submitting such waiver letter after JuBeZD06.

On January 17, 2007, the Purchaser made, pursuargdttiement agreement entered into with pldintif
shareholders in December 2006, the following guaethannual payments: (i) a total amount bféllion was paic
to all minority shareholders who had not yet retgetearly payment of the guaranteed annual payfoetite fiscal
year ended on September 30, 2006, and (ii) aantalunt ol€1 million representing the pro rata share of the
guaranteed annual payment for the first five moofttbe fiscal year ending September 30, 2007 vedd to all
minority shareholders.

The Domination Agreement cannot be terminated byRtrchaser in the ordinary course of busines$ unti
September 30, 2009. The Company’s subsidiariegn@ee International Holdings Luxembourg S.a r@lK1”),
formerly Celanese Caylux Holdings Luxembourg S.Cafd Celanese US, have each agreed to provide the
Purchaser with financing to strengthen the Purafgaeility to fulfill its obligations under, or iconnection with,
the Domination Agreement and to ensure that thetaser will perform all of its obligations under,io connectior
with, the Domination Agreement when such obligaibecome due, including, without limitation, thdigétion to
compensate Celanese GmbH for any statutory anosslimcurred by Celanese GmbH during the termeof th
Domination Agreement. If CIH and/or Celanese USddnigyated to make payments under such guarantemtber
security to the Purchaser, the Company may not kafficient funds for payments on its indebtedngken due.
The Company has not had to compensate Celanese GmhbH annual loss for any period during which the
Domination Agreement has been in effect.

The amounts of the fair cash compensation andeofitfaranteed annual payment offered under the Cadimim
Agreement are under court review in special awaodgrdings. As a result of these proceedings, regtimeunt
could be increased by the court so that all for@&lanese GmbH shareholders, including those whe hlgady
tendered their shares into the mandatory offerrewe received the fair cash compensation coulddae
respective higher amounts. Certain former CelafabH shareholders may initiate such proceedingswaith
respect to the Squeeze-Out compensation. In tees, éarmer Celanese GmbH shareholders who ceadsd to
shareholders of Celanese
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GmbH due to the Squeeze-Out are entitled, purdoansettlement agreement between the Purchaserataih
former Celanese GmbH shareholders, to claim fdr #iares the higher of the compensation amouriesaed

by the court in these different proceedings. Paymtrese shareholders already received as compmngattheir
shares will be offset so that those shareholdesaglased to be shareholders of Celanese GmbH dine 8jueeze-
Out are not entitled to more than the higher ofatmunt set in the two court proceedings.

Shareholder Litigation

The amounts of the fair cash compensation andeofitiaranteed annual payment offered under the Cxdimim
Agreement may be increased in special award praegechitiated by minority shareholders, which niasther
reduce the funds the Purchaser can otherwise mvalialae to the Company. As of March 30, 2005, salve
minority shareholders of Celanese GmbH had inifiatgecial award proceedings seeking the courtiewesf the
amounts of the fair cash compensation and of tlaeagueed annual payment offered under the Domimatio
Agreement. As a result of these proceedings, theuabof the fair cash consideration and the guasthainnual
payment offered under the Domination Agreementattel increased by the court so that all minoritgreholders,
including those who have already tendered theireshimto the mandatory offer and have receiveddieash
compensation could claim the respective higher artsoThe court dismissed all of these proceedings i
March 2005 on the grounds of inadmissibility. Thithiree plaintiffs appealed the dismissal, andainuary 2006,
twenty-three of these appeals were granted byadhe.cThey were remanded back to the court of firstance,
where the valuation will be further reviewed. OncBmber 12, 2006, the court of first instance apedimn expert
to help determine the value of Celanese GmbH.érfitht quarter of 2007, certain minority sharekotdthat
received €66.99 per share as fair cash compensatorfiled award proceedings challenging the arhthey
received as fair cash compensation.

As a result of the special proceedings discussedeglamounts paid as fair cash compensation tainert
minority shareholders of Celanese GmbH could beesed by the court such that minority shareholceutd be
awarded amounts in excess of the fair cash compenghey have previously received.

The Company received applications for the commesecemf award proceedings filed by 79 shareholders
against the Purchaser with the Frankfurt Districti€ requesting the court to set a higher amountti® Squeeze-
Out compensation. The motions are based on vaailbeged shortcomings and mistakes in the valuaifd@elanes:
GmbH done for purposes of the Squeeze-Out. On Magd07, the court of first instance appointed = icmn
representative for those shareholders that havBledtan application on their own.

Polyester Staple Antitrust Litigation

CNA Holdings, the successor in interest to Hoe€letanese Corporation (“HCC”), Celanese Americas
Corporation and Celanese GmbH (collectively, thels&@ese Entities”) and Hoechst, the former parERGC,
were named as defendants in two actions (invol2imindividual participants) filed in September 2086US
purchasers of polyester staple fibers manufactaneddsold by HCC. The actions allege that the defetsd
participated in a conspiracy to fix prices, rigoahd allocate customers of polyester staple sdiide United States.
These actions were consolidated in a proceediray Mylti-District Litigation Panel in the United $¢s District
Court for the Western District of North Carolinglet In re Polyester Staple Antitrust LitigatioMDL 1516. On
June 12, 2008 the court dismissed these actiorigsa@dl Celanese Entities in consideration of gnpent by the
Company of $107 million. This proceeding relatedates by the polyester staple fibers businesshwHaechst AG
sold to KoSa, Inc. in 1998. Accordingly, the impatthis settlement is reflected within discontidumperations in
the consolidated statements of operations. The @agnplso previously entered into tolling arrangetsevith four
other alleged US purchasers of polyester stapégdimanufactured and sold by the Celanese Enfiiresse
purchasers were not included in the settlemenbaedsuch company filed suit against the Compamyeicember
2008 in the Western District of North Carolina #ad Milliken & Company v. CNA Holdings, Inc., Celanese
Americas Corporation and Hoechst ANo. 8-CV-00578).
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In 1998, HCC sold its polyester staple businegsaaisof the sale of its Film & Fibers Division toka B.V.,
flk/a Arteva B.V. and a subsidiary of Koch Induss;i Inc. (“KoSa”). In March 2001 the US Departmehiustice
(“DOJ") commenced an investigation of possible @ffiging regarding the sales of polyester stagder§ in the US
subsequent to the period the Celanese Entities &rggaged in the polyester staple fiber business.Gdlanese
Entities were never named in these DOJ actionsa #sult of the DOJ action, during August of 208&¢eva
Specialties, S.a.r.l., a subsidiary of KoSa, (“Aaté&Specialties”) pled guilty to criminal violatiaf the Sherman Act
related to anti-competitive conduct occurring after 1998 sale of the polyester staple fiber bssiraad paid a fine
of $29 million. In a complaint pending against elanese Entities and Hoechst in the United Sfaitgsict Court
for the Southern District of New York, Koch Induss, Inc., KoSa, Arteva Specialties and Arteva Bes/S.a.r.l.
seek damages in excess of $371 million which iresuddemnification for all damages related to tefeddants’
alleged participation in, and failure to discloge alleged conspiracy.

Guarantees

The Company has agreed to guarantee or indemnity ghrties for environmental and other liabilitisrsuant
to a variety of agreements, including asset anéhkes divestiture agreements, leases, settlemesgmgnts and
various agreements with affiliated companies. Aligio many of these obligations contain monetaryartithe
limitations, others do not provide such limitations

As indemnification obligations often depend on dleeurrence of unpredictable future events, theréutosts
associated with them cannot be determined atithis t

The Company has accrued for all probable and redspestimable losses associated with all knowrtergbr
claims that have been brought to its attention s€Herown obligations include the following:

« Demerger Obligations

The Company has obligations to indemnify Hoechsd, its legal successors, for various liabilitiesl@nthe
Demerger Agreement, including for environmentabiliies associated with contamination arising unti@
divestiture agreements entered into by Hoechst prithe demerger.

The Company’s obligation to indemnify Hoechst, @&sdegal successors, is subject to the followhrgsholds:

« The Company will indemnify Hoechst, and its legatsessors, against those liabilities ug€250 million;

« Hoechst, and its legal successors, will bear thiabdities exceeding €250 million, however the Guany
will reimburse Hoechst, and its legal successarspfie-third of those liabilities for amounts teateed
€750 million in the aggregat

The aggregate maximum amount of environmental imdéations under the remaining divestiture agreetse
that provide for monetary limits is approximately5€ million. Three of the divestiture agreementsidbprovide
for monetary limits.

Based on the estimate of the probability of losdaurthis indemnification, the Company had reseofes
$27 million and $27 million as of December 31, 2@®&I 2007, respectively, for this contingency. Véhibie
Company is unable to reasonably determine the pititysof loss or estimate such loss under an indiication,
the Company has not recognized any related lisdslit

The Company has also undertaken in the Demergereigent to indemnify Hoechst and its legal succsdse
liabilities that Hoechst is required to discharigeluding tax liabilities, which are associatedwitusinesses that
were included in the demerger but were not demedgedo legal restrictions on the transfers of Sterns. These
indemnities do not provide for any monetary or tiingtations. The Company has not provided for eegerves
associated with this indemnification as it is nagl@ble or estimable. The Company has not made any
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payments to Hoechst or its legal successors dthimgears ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, rasggecin
connection with this indemnification.

« Divestiture Obligations

The Company and its predecessor companies agréedetmnify third-party purchasers of former bussess
and assets for various pre-closing conditions, elsag for breaches of representations, warraatiglscovenants.
Such liabilities also include environmental liatyiJiproduct liability, antitrust and other liabiés. These
indemnifications and guarantees represent starmentlactual terms associated with typical divestitagreements
and, other than environmental liabilities, the Campdoes not believe that they expose the Compaapyt
significant risk.

The Company has divested numerous businessestrimergs and facilities through agreements containing
indemnifications or guarantees to the purchaseey\f the obligations contain monetary and/or tiimétations,
ranging from one year to thirty years. The aggregabount of guarantees provided for under thesseaggnts is
approximately $2.3 billion as of December 31, 20Dther agreements do not provide for any monetatyree
limitations.

Based on historical claims experience and its kedge of the sites and businesses involved, the @oynp
believes that it is adequately reserved for theaars. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Coynpas
reserves in the aggregate of $33 million and $2liamj respectively, for these matters.

« Other Obligations

The Company is secondarily liable under a leaseeagent that the Company assigned to a third pahiy.
lease expires on April 30, 2012. The lease ligbitir the period from January 1, 2009 to April 2012 is estimated
to be approximately $26 million.

The Company has agreed to indemnify various inggraarriers for amounts not in excess of the seétas
received from claims made against these carridrsesjuent to the settlement. The aggregate amougputaoéntees
under these settlements which is limited in termpproximately $10 million.

Asbestos Claims

As of December 31, 2008, Celanese Ltd. and/or CNddidgs, Inc., both US subsidiaries of the Compag,
defendants in approximately 559 asbestos casemditine year ended December 31, 2008, 66 new ea=resfiled
against the Company, 137 cases were resolved, aase$ were added after further analysis by outsidesel.
Because many of these cases involve numerousiffiaitite Company is subject to claims significgriti excess of
the number of actual cases. The Company has resfnvdefense costs related to claims arising frloese matters.
The Company believes that there is no significapbsure related to these matters.

Purchase Obligations

In the normal course of business, the Company &iriey commitments to purchase goods and servioesao
fixed period of time. The Company maintains a nundfeétake-or-pay”contracts for purchases of raw materials
utilities. As of December 31, 2008, there were tanging future commitments of $2,291 million unthe-or-pay
contracts. The Company does not expect to incut@ses under these contractual arrangements stadically
has not incurred any material losses related teetisentracts. Additionally, as of December 31, 2008e were
outstanding commitments relating to capital prageft$33 million.
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24. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Cash paid for

Taxes, net of refunc 98 181 101
Interest, net of amounts capitaliz®) 25¢ 414 23¢
Noncash investing and financing activiti
Fair value adjustment to securities available &be snet of tas (25 17 13
Capital lease obligatior 10z 80 5
Accrued capital expenditur (v 18 —
Asset retirement obligatior 8 4 10
Accrued Ticona Kelsterbach plant relocation ci 17 19 —

1) Amount includes premiums paid on early redemptibdebt and related issuance costs, net of amounts
capitalized, of $217 million for the year ended Beber 31, 2007

25. Business and Geographical Segments
The Company operates through the following busisegsnents:
Advanced Engineered Materials

The Company’s Advanced Engineered Materials segoherelops, produces and supplies a broad portéblio
high performance technical polymers for applicaiimautomotive and electronics products as wetitasr
consumer and industrial applications. Together withCompany'’s strategic affiliates, we are a legdiarticipant
in the global technical polymers industry. The @ignproducts of Advanced Engineered Materials aeglun a
broad range of products including automotive congmis, electronics, appliances, industrial applicetj battery
separators, conveyor belts, filtration equipmeagtings, medical devices, electrical and electsanic

Consumer Specialties

The Company’s Consumer Specialties segment cordithie Acetate Products and Nutrinova businesdes.
Acetate Products business primarily produces apgl&s acetate tow, which is used in the produatibfilter
products. We also produce acetate flake whichasgmsed into acetate fiber in the form of a towdb&ur
Nutrinova business produces and sells SI1®, a high intensity sweetener, and food protectimmadients, such as
sorbates, for the food, beverage and pharmacesitivdlistries.

Industrial Specialties

The Company’s Industrial Specialties segment inetugur Emulsions, PVOH and AT Plastics busines3es.
Emulsions business is a global leader which prosladeroad product portfolio, specializing in viagetate ethyler
emulsions, and is a recognized authority on low @&atile organic compounds), an environmentatlgdly
technology. As a global leader, our PVOH businesslyces a broad portfolio of performance PVOH cloaisi
engineered to meet specific customer requireméntsemulsions and PVOH products are used in a waidey of
applications including paints and coatings, adressibuilding and construction, glass fiber, testéad paper. AT
Plastics offers a complete line of low-density mthylene and specialty ethylene vinyl acetate seaind
compounds. AT Plastics’ products are used in mamjications including flexible packaging films, lamation film
products, hot melt adhesives, medical tubing, aotoa carpeting and solar cell encapsulation films.
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Acetyl Intermediates

The Company’s Acetyl Intermediates segment prodaoessupplies acetyl products, including acetid aci
VAM, acetic anhydride and acetate esters. Thesgugts are generally used as starting materialsdimrants,
paints, adhesives, coatings, medicines and moleer@hemicals produced in this segment are organhents and
intermediates for pharmaceutical, agricultural andmical products.

Other Activities

Other Activities primarily consists of corporatenter costs, including financing and administratwetivities
such as legal, accounting and treasury functiodsraerest income or expense associated with fingractivities
of the Company, and the captive insurance companies

The segment management reporting and controllisesys are based on the same accounting policibeses
described in the summary of significant accounpinticies in Note 2. The Company evaluates perfocadrased ¢
operating profit, net earnings (loss), cash flowd ather measures of financial performance repantedcordance
with US GAAP.
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Sales and revenues related to transactions betseggnents are generally recorded at values thavsippaite
third-party selling prices.

Advanced
Engineerec Consumet Industrial Acetyl Other
Materials ~ Specialties Specialtie: Intermediates  Activities Eliminations Consolidatec
(In $ millions)
As of and for the year endec
December 31, 2008:
Net sales 1,061 1,158 1,40¢ 3,871 2 (67€) 6,82:
Other (charges) gains, r (29 2 ©)] (78) 4 — (20¢)
Equity in net earnings of affiliate 37 — — 3 14 — 54
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before tax and minority
interests 69 237 47 434 (359 — 434
Depreciation and amortizatic 76 53 62 15C 9 — 35C
Capital expenditure@) 55 49 67 86 10 — 267
Goodwill and intangible asse 39¢ 30¢ 73 363 — — 1,14z
Total asset 1,867 99t 908 2,197 1,20¢ — 7,16¢€
As of and for the year ended
December 31, 2007:
Net sales 1,03C 1,111 1,34¢ 3,615 2 (660) 6,444
Other (charges) gains, r 4) 4 (23 72 (64) (35 ® (58)
Equity in net earnings of affiliate 55 3 — 6 18 — 82
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before tax and minority
interests 18¢ 23t 28 694 (699) — 447
Depreciation and amortizatic 69 51 59 10€ 6 — 291
Capital expenditure@ 59 43 63 13C 11 — 30¢€
Goodwill and intangible asse 44E 33¢ 97 41C — — 1,291
Total asset 1,73¢  1,13d 968 2,54; 1,68 — 8,05¢
As of and for the year endec
December 31, 2006:
Net sales 91t 87€ 1,281 3,351 22 (667) 5,77¢
Other (charges) gains, r 6 — (11 — 5) — (20
Equity in net earnings of affiliate 53 3 — 8 12 — 76
Earnings (loss) from continuing
operations before tax and minority
interests 201 18t 43 51¢ (422) — 52€
Depreciation and amortizatic 65 39 59 101 5 — 26¢
Capital expenditure 27 75 30 10t 7 — 244

@ Includes $676 million, $660 million and $667 miliof intersegment sales eliminated in consolidatorrihe
years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 ctasghe.

@ Excludes expenditures related to the relocatioh@iCompany’s Ticona plant in Kelsterbach and idefia
decrease in accrued capital expenditures of $7omiind an increase of $18 million for the yeardesh
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively (Note

® Represents insurance recoveries received from engp@ny’s captive insurance companies related t€Ctbar
Lake, Texas facility (Note 29) that eliminates omsolidation
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Geographical Segments

Revenues and noncurrent assets are presenteddraesllocation of the business. The following ¢giesent
financial information based on the geographic limrabf the Company’s facilities:

Year Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Net sales

United State: 1,71¢ 1,75¢ 1,80
Non-United States 510¢ 4,69C 3,97¢
Total 6,82 6,44¢ 577¢

SignificantNon-United States net sales sources inclt
Germany 2,46¢ 2,348 1,97/
Singapore 783 762 771
Belgium 47¢ 29t 22¢
Mexico 391 34¢ 302
China 392 182 14

As of

__December 31,
2008 2007

(In $ millions)
Property, plant and equipment, net

United State! 733 78¢
Non-United States 1,73¢ 1,57/
Total 2,47: 2,36z
SignificantNon-United States property, plant and equipment, net sounmhsde:
Germany 682 49%
Singapore 111 91
Canade 117 12¢
Mexico 10k 13:
China 49¢ 382
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26. Transactions and Relationships with Affiliates andRelated Parties

The Company is a party to various transactions affifiated companies. Entities in which the Compéaas an
investment accounted for under the cost or equéthod of accounting, are considered affiliates; magsactions ¢
balances with such companies are considered #dfiliansactions. The following tables represenGbmpany’s
transactions and balances with affiliates for thequls presented:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006
(In $ millions)

Statements of Operations

Purchases from affiliate)(2) 131 12€ 15¢
Sales to affiliate(l) 36 12€¢ 29C
Interest income from affiliate 2 1 1
Interest expense to affiliat 9 7 5

(1 Purchases and sales from/to affiliates are accduoteat prices which, in the opinion of the Compan
approximate those charged to tl-party customers for similar goods or servic

@ Primarily includes utilities and services purchafedh InfraServ Hoechs
Refer to Note 8 for additional information relateddividends received from affiliates.

As of
December 31,
2008 2007
(In $ millions)
Balance Sheet:

Trade and other receivables from affilia 8 15
Current notes receivable (including interest) fraffiliates 9 15
Noncurrent notes receivable (including interesijrfraffiliates 9 7

Total receivables from affiliate _ 26 _ 37
Accounts payable and other liabilities due afféis 18 22
Shor-term borrowings from affiliate _ 10z 20C

Total due affiliates 121 22z

The Company has agreements with certain affiligggmarily InfraServ entities, whereby excess &ffé cash
is lent to and managed by the Company, at variabéeest rates governed by those agreements.

For the year ended 2007, the Company made payrtetite Advisor of $7 million in accordance with the
sponsor services agreement dated January 26, 20@ended. These payments were related primatihetsale
of the oxo products and derivatives businessestanédcquisition of APL (Note 4).
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27. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Year Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
(In $ millions, except for share and per share dafe

Earnings (loss) from

continuing operation 372 372 33€ 33€ 31¢ 31¢
Earnings (loss) from

discontinued operatior (90) (90) 90 90 87 87
Net earnings (loss 282 282 42€ 42€ 40€ 40€
Less: cumulative preferred

stock dividenc (10 — (10 — (10 —
Net earnings (loss) availak

to common shareholde 272 282 41€ 42¢€ 39€ 40¢€
Weighted average shares —

basic 148,350,27 148,350,27 154,475,02 154,475,02 158,597,42 158,597,42
Dilutive stock option: —  2,559,26! —  4,344.64 — 1,205,41.
Dilutive restricted stoc — 504,43¢ — 362,13( — —
Assumed conversion of

preferred stocl — 12,057,89 — 12,046,20 — 12,004,76
Weighted average shares —

diluted 148,350,27 163,471,87 154,475,02 171,227,99 158,597,42 171,807,59
Per share
Earnings (loss) from

continuing operation 2.44 2.2¢ 2.11 1.9¢ 1.9t 1.8¢
Earnings (loss) from

discontinued operatior (0.67) (0.55) 0.5¢ 0.5: 0.5t 0.5(C
Net earnings (loss 1.8: 1.7: 2.6¢ 2.4¢ 2.5C 2.3€

The following securities were not included in tlemputation of diluted net earnings per share as ¢fiect
would have been antidilutive:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Stock options 2,298,15' 336,13 1,915,28!
Restricted stock unit 90,62°¢ — —
Total 2,388,78. 336,13 1,915,28'

28. Ticona Kelsterbach Plant Relocatior

On November 29, 2006, the Company reached a settliewith the Frankfurt, Germany, Airport (“Frapgrtd
relocate its Kelsterbach, Germany, business, regpkeveral years of legal disputes related tgpthened Frankfui
airport expansion. The final settlement agreemexst approved by the Fraport supervisory board on 8)@&p07 at
an extraordinary board meeting. The final settlenagmeement was signed on June 12, 2007. In J@y,28e
Company announced that it would relocate the Kedatsh, Germany, business to the Hoechst Industagt in the
Rhine Main area by mid-2011. Over a five-year pebrieraport will pay Ticona a total of €670 milliem
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offset the costs associated with the transitiothefbusiness from its current location and thewl®f the
Kelsterbach plant. The payment amount was increlbge&?0 million to €670 million in consideration thfe
Company’s agreement to waive certain obligationBraport set forth in the settlement agreemeniubre 2008, the
Company received €200 million ($311 million) fromaport under this agreement. Amounts received froaport
are accounted for as deferred proceeds and aralaatin noncurrent Other liabilities in the condated balance
sheets. See Note 30 for a description of procemmtsved in advance of the original terms of theeagrent.

Below is a summary of the financial statement inbjgasociated with the Ticona Kelsterbach plantcagion:

Year Ended Total From
December 31 Inception Through
2008 2007 December 31, 20C
(In $ millions)

Proceeds received from Frap 311 — 337
Costs expense 12 5 17
Costs capitalize@ 20z 40 243

@ Includes increase in accrued capital expendituir&d ® million and $19 million for the years ended
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectiv

29. Insurance Recoveries

In May 2007, the Company announced that it hadrgatamned outage at its Clear Lake, Texas acetit aci
facility. At that time, the Company originally exgied the outage to last until the end of May. Upestart of the
facility, additional operating issues were idestifiwhich necessitated an extension of the outageriner, more
extensive repairs. In July 2007, the Company ancedithat the further repairs were unsuccessfuestart of the
unit. All repairs were completed in early AugusfZ@nd normal production capacity resumed. Dutiregyears
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Companydext&38 million and $40 million, respectively, nfurance
recoveries from its reinsurers in partial satistactof claims that the Company made based on lagsedting from
the outage. These insurances recoveries are irttindether (charges) gains, net in the consolidatattments of
operations (Note 18).

In October 2008, the Company declared force majenri¢s specialty polymers products produced aAits
Plastics facility in Edmonton, Alberta, Canada asslt of certain events and subsequent cessattiproduction.
The Company intends to replace damaged long-ligsdta. Any contingent liabilities associated wihté butage
may be mitigated by the Company’s insurance pdlicie

30. Subsequent Event:

On January 5, 2009, the Company declared a cagtediy of $0.265625 per share on its 4.25% convertib
perpetual preferred stock amounting to $3 milliod a cash dividend of $0.04 per share on its Sé&resmmon
stock amounting to $6 million. Both cash dividerads for the period November 1, 2008 to Januar28@9 and
were paid on February 1, 2009 to holders of reesrdf January 15, 2009.

On February 2, 2009, the Company announced theoFfrsyppervisory board approved the acceleratighef
2009 and 2010 payments of €200 million add@& million, respectively, required by the settletnagreement sign
in June 2007. On February 5, 2009, the Companyvwetea discounted amount of approximately €322iomi|l
excluding value-added tax of €59 million.

On February 12, 2009, the Company announced itsilt down its VAM production unit in Cangrejera,
Mexico and cease VAM production at Cangrejera ¢iffeche end of February 2009. The Company beli¢viss
capacity reduction is necessitated by the sigmifichange in the global economic environment, thst structure of
its VAM unit operations in Cangrejera and anticgzhtower demand. The Company recorded an impairtosstas
it relates to the Cangrejera VAM production unithdf million for the three months ended December2808.
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3.1
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10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

Description

Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatfwor (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1he
Current Report oForm &K filed on January 28, 200%

Third Amended and Restated By-laws, effective aSabber 23, 2008 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Current Report Form &K filed on October 29, 2008

Certificate of Designations of 4.25% Convertiblegegual Preferred Stock (Incorporated by refergnce
Exhibit 3.2 to the Current Report Form &K filed on January 28, 200%

Form of certificate of Series A Common Stock (Inpmmated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Rediistna
Statement olForm $-1 (File No. 33:-120187)filed on January 13, 200t

Form of certificate of 4.25% Convertible PerpetRedferred Stock (Incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 4.2 to the Registration StatementForm -1 (File No. 33:-120187)filed on January 13, 200%
Credit Agreement, dated April 2, 2007, among Cedartdoldings LLC, Celanese US Holdings LLC, the
subsidiaries of Celanese US Holdings LLC from timé&me party thereto as borrowers, the Lendersypar
thereto, Deutsche Bank AG, New York Branch, as atbtrative agent and as collateral agent, Merrill
Lynch Capital Corporation as syndication agent, ABMRO Bank N.V., Bank of America, N.A., Citiba
NA, and JP Morgan Chase Bank NA, a-documentation agents (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report Form ¢-K filed with the SEC on April 5, 2007

Guarantee and Collateral Agreement, dated Ap20B,7, by and among Celanese Holdings LLC, Cels
US Holdings LLC, certain subsidiaries of Celane&Hbldings LLC and Deutsche Bank AG, New York
Branch (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@.2he Current Report on Form 8fied with the SEC ol
April 5, 2007).

Celanese Corporation 2004 Stock Incentive Plarofparated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Quirre
Report orForm &K filed on January 28, 200=

Celanese Corporation Deferred Compensation Plaoi(orated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the
Registration Statement (Form ¢-1 (File No. 33:-120187)filed on January 3, 200&

Amendment to Celanese Corporation Deferred Compiens@lan (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report Form ¢-K filed with the SEC on April 3, 2007

Deferred Compensation Plaaster Plan Document adopted December 7, 2007 rfdocated by referenc
to Exhibit 10.6 to the Annual Report Form 1(-K filed on February 29, 200€

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (formayees) (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5
to the Current Report cForm ¢-K filed on January 28, 200t

Form of Amendment Two to Nonqualified Stock Optisgreement (for executive officers), dated
January 20, 2009, (Incorporated by reference takibxh0.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K file o
January 26, 2009

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (fonremployee directors) (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to the Current Report Form ¢-K filed on January 28, 200=

Form of Director Performance-Based Restricted Stdak Agreement between Celanese Corporation and
award recipient (Incorporated by reference to EixHiB.1 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fitad
July 27, 2007)

Form of 2007 Deferral Agreement between CelanespdZation and award recipient, dated as of April 2,
2007 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1he Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC o
April 3, 2007).

Form of Performance-Based Restricted Stock Unieagrent between Celanese Corporation and award
recipient, dated as of April 2, 2007 (incorporalgdreference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report

Form &K filed with the SEC on April 3, 2007

Form of Performance-Vesting Restricted Stock Unita#d Agreement, together with a schedule
identifying substantially identical agreements estw the Company and each of its executive officers
identified thereon (Incorporated by reference tbikit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
January 26, 2009
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10.18
10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

10.24t

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

Description

Form of Time-Vesting Cash Award Agreement, togethigh a schedule identifying substantially identica
agreements between the Company and each of itst@seofficers identified thereon (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Current ReporForm ¢-K filed on January 26, 200¢

Summary of pension benefits for David N. Weidmanrt@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the
Annual Report oForm 1(-K filed on March 31, 2005

Separation Agreement, dated as of July 5, 200Wdmet Celanese Corporation and Lyndon B. Cole
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to theafperly Report olForm 1(-Q filed on July 27, 2007
Offer letter agreement, effective April 18, 200%vbeen Curtis S. Shaw and Celanese Corporation
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Ghearterly Report oForm 1(-Q filed on May 16, 200&
Offer Letter Agreement, dated June 27, 2007, batvizdanese Corporation and Sandra Beach Lin
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to theaf@erly Report olForm 1(-Q filed on July 27, 2007
Offer Letter Agreement, dated May 21, 2008, betwthenCompany and Michael L. Summers
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to theaf@erly Report olForm 1(-Q filed on July 23, 2008’
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datetlJagy 26, 2007 between Celanese Corporation
and John J. Gallagher Il (Incorporated by refeeetocExhibit 10.1 to the Quarterly Report on

Form 1(-Q filed on October 24, 2007

Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement, dated as afiday 25, 2005, between Celanese Corporatior
Blackstone Management Partners IV L.L.C. (Incorpeatdy reference from Exhibit 10.23 to the Annual
Report orForm 1(-K filed on March 31, 2005

Share Purchase and Transfer Agreement and Settidgegement, dated August 19, 2005 between
Celanese Europe Holding GmbH & Co. KG, as purchaset Paulson & Co. Inc., and Arnhold and S.
Bleichroeder Advisers, LLC, each on behalf of #goand with respect to shares owned by the invaegtme
funds and separate accounts managed by it, agltbesgIncorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@ 1he
Current Report oForm &K filed on August 19, 2005

Translation of Letter of Intent, dated November 2806, among Celanese AG, Ticona GmbH and Fraport
AG (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 te @urrent Report on Form 8-K filed November 29,
2006).

Purchase Agreement dated as of December 12, 2086cdgmong Celanese Ltd. and certain of its
affiliates named therein and Advent Oxo (Caymamyited, Oxo Titan US Corporation, Drachenfelssee
520. V V GMBH and Drachenfelssee 521. V V GMBH @ngorated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to the
Annual Report oForm 1(-K filed on February 21, 2007

First Amendment to Purchase Agreement dated FebA8r2007, by and among Advent Oxea Cayman
Ltd., Oxea Corporation, Drachenfelssee 520. V V @ibrachenfelssee 521. V V GmbH, Celanese Ltd.,
Ticona Polymers Inc. and Celanese Chemicals EugspkH (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
the Quarterly Report aForm 1(-Q filed on May 9, 2007)

Second Amendment to Purchase Agreement effectieé &idy 1, 2007 by and among Advent Oxea
Cayman Ltd., Oxea Corporation, Oxea Holdings GmBkka Deutschland GmbH, Oxea Bishop, LLC,
Oxea Japan KK, Oxea UK Ltd., Celanese Ltd., and@xde Chemicals Europe GmbH (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly ReparForm 1(-Q filed on October 24, 2007

Compensation Letter Agreement, dated March 27, 290&nd between Jim Alder and Celanese
Corporation (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit3ll to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on
February 29, 200

Change in Control Agreement, dated April 1, 2068ween the Company and David N. Weidman, tog
with a schedule identifying other substantiallyritleal agreements between the Company and eats of i
name executive officers identified thereon and iifging the material differences between each ofth
agreements and the filed Changed of Control Agre¢iihecorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 te th
Current Report oForm &K filed on April 7, 2008)

Change in Control Agreement, dated April 1, 2008vieen the Company and Sandra Beach Lin, together
with a schedule identifying other substantiallyritleal agreements between the Company and eaté of i
executive officers identified thereon and identifyithe material differences between each of those
agreements and the filed Change of Control Agree¢itecorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Quarterly Report oForm 1(-Q filed on April 23, 2008)
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Change in Control Agreement, dated April 1, 2068ween the Company and Curtis S. Shaw
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to theafPerly Report olForm 1(-Q filed on April 23, 2008)
Change in Control Agreement, dated May 1, 2008yé&eh the Company and Christopher W. Jensen
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to theaf@erly Report olForm 1(-Q filed on July 23, 2008’
Change in Control Agreement, dated June 5, 20a8;dem the Company and Michael L. Summers
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to theaf@erly Report on Form 10-Q filed on October 22,
2008).

Agreement and General Release, dated Septemb20@3, between the Company and Curtis S. Shaw
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to theafperly Report on Form 10-Q filed on October 22,
2008).

Agreement and General Release, dated March 28, B@dBeen the Company and William P. Antonace
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to theafperly Report on Form 10-Q filed on October 22,
2008).

Form of Long-Term Incentive Claw-Back Agreement@rporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Current Report oForm &K filed on January 26, 200¢

List of subsidiaries of Celanese Corporal

Report on Financial Statement Schedule and Conééntiependent Registered Public Accounting Firm,
KPMG LLP

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuait $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuait $ection 906 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 200z
Financial Statement schedule regarding Valuatiah@ualifying Account

* Filed herewitlk

T Portions of this exhibit have been omitted purstarst request for confidential treatment filed wittle Securities
and Exchange Commission under Rule 24b-2 of thar8ies Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. The ethitt
portions of this exhibit have been separately filéth the Securities and Exchange Commiss



Name of Company

List of Subsidiaries of Celanese Corporation

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction

1776461 Canada Inc

Acetex B.V.

Acetex Chemicals Limite
Acetex Chemie Gmbl
Acetex Chimica S.r.l.
Acetex Chimie S.A.

Acetex (Cyprus) Ltd.
Acetex Derivatives, SA!
Acetex Intermediates, SA
Acetyls Holdco Cayman Lt
Alberta Ag— Industries Ltd.
Amcel International Co., Inc
AT Plastics Corporatio

AT Plastics Inc.

AT Plastics Manufacturing Partnerst
BCP Acquisition GmbH & Co. K(

BCP Crystal US 2 LLC
Celanese US Holdings LL
BCP Holdings Gmbt
CAPE Holding Gmbt

Celanese (China) Holding Co., Lt

Celanese (Nanjing) Acetyl Derivatives Co., |
Celanese (Nanjing) Chemicals Co., |

Celanese (Nanjing) Diversified Chemical Co.,
Celanese (Shanghai) International Trading Co., |

Celanese Acetate Limite
Celanese Acetate LL

Celanese Advanced Materials Ir

Celanese Americas Corporati

Celanese S.A

Celanese Canada In

Celanese Chemicals Europe Gm

Celanese Chemicals Iberica S.
Celanese Chemicals In

Celanese Chemicals India Private L
Celanese Chemicals S.A. (Pty) Lt

Celanese Chemicls UK Ltc
Celanese do Brasil Ltc
Celanese Emulsions B.\
Celanese Emulsions Gmk
Celanese Emulsions Ltc

Celanese Emulsions Pension Plan Trust |

Celanese Emulsions Norden /

Canad
Netherland
United Kingdon
German

Italy

Franct

Cyprus

Franct

Franct
Cayman Islanc
Canad
Delawart

North Carolini
Canad

Canad
German
Delawart
Delawart
German
German

Chine

Chine

Chine

Chine

Chine

United Kingdon
Delawart
Delawart
Delawart
Argentine
Canad
German

Spair

Delawart

India

South Africe
United Kingdon
Brazil
Netherland
German
United Kingdon
United Kingdon
Swedel




Name of Company Jurisdiction

Celanese Europe Holding GmbH & Co. t German'
Celanese Europe Management Grr German
Celanese Far East Lt China/Hong Kon
Celanese Global Relocation L1 Delawart
Celanese Gmbl German'
Celanese Holding Gmb German'
Celanese Holdings B.V Netherland
Celanese Holdings LL! Delawari
Celanese Hungary Kfi Hungan
Celanese International Corporati Delawari
Celanese International Holdings Luxembourg S.3a Luxembour
Celanese Holdings Luxembourg S.a. Luxembour
Celanese Japan Limite Japal
Celanese Korea Chusik Hoe Koree
Celanese Ltd Texas
Celanese Mexico Holdings LL Delawari
Celanese Polisinteza d.o. Slovenit
Celanese Pte. Ltc Singapor
Celanese S/ Belgiurr
Celanese Singapore Pte. Li Singapor
Celanese Singapore VAM Pte., Lt Singapor
Celanese US Holdings LL Delawari
Celtran Inc. Delawari
Celwood Insurance Compa Vermon
CNA Funding LLC Delawar:
CNA Holdings Inc. Delawar:
Crystal US Holding 3 L.L.C. Delawar:
Crystal US Sub 3 Corg Delawari
Edmonton Methanol Compat Canad
Elwood Insurance Limite Bermud:
FKAT LLC Delawari
Grupo Celanese, S. de R.L. de C Mexica
HNA Acquisition Inc. Canad
Hoechst Italia S.p.A Italy
InfraServ Verwaltungs Gmb German'
KEP Americas Engineering Plastics, LI Delawari
KEP Europe Gmbt German'
Majoriva GmbH German'
Methanol Holdco Cayman Ltc Cayman Islanc
NutriCapital Inc. Delawar:
Nutrinova (Australasia) Pty. Ltd Australie
Nutrinova Argentina S.A Argentine
Nutrinova Benelux S.A./N.V. Belgiurr
Nutrinova France S.ar. Franct

Nutrinova UK Limited
Nutrinova Inc.

United Kingdon
Delawart




Name of Company

Jurisdiction

Nutrinova Nutrition Specialties & Food Ingredie@sbH

Nutrition Specialties Mexico S. de R.L. de C.
Riomava Gmbt

Servicios Corporativos Celanese S. de R.L. de (

Synthesegasanlage Ruhr GmbH i
Tenedora Tercera de Toluca S. de R.L. de (
Ticona Austria Gmbt

Ticona CR s.r.o.

Ticona Fortron Inc.

Ticona France S.ar.

Ticona Gmbk

Ticona Hungaria Kft.

Ticona Iberica S.L.

Ticona Industrial Co. Ltd

Ticona ltalia S.r.L.

Ticona Japan Ltd

Ticona Korea Ltd.

Ticona LLC

Ticona Norden Denmark A/

Ticona Norden Finland C

Ticona PBT Holding B.V.

Ticona Polymers Inc

Ticona Polymers Ltd

Ticona Services, Inc

Ticona Technische Polymere g/

Ticona UK Limited

Transatlantique Chimie S.A

Tydeus Erste Vermoégensverwaltungs Gnr
Tydeus Zweite Vermdgensverwaltungs G
US Pet Film Inc.

Varimajo GmbH

Zetes Zweite Vermogensverwaltungs Grr

German
Mexico
German
Mexica
German
Mexica
Austrie
Czech Republi
Delawart
Franct
German
Hungan
Spair
South Kore
Italy

Japal
Koree
Delawart
Denmarl
Finlanc
Netherland
Delawart
Brazil
Delawart
Russi:
Great Britait
Franct
German
German
Delawart
German
German



Exhibit 23.1

Report on Financial Statement Schedule and Consent
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Celanese Corporation:

The audits referred to in our report dated Febrd@;y2009 included the related consolidated firglratatemer
schedule of Celanese Corporation and subsidigties‘Company”) for each of the years in the threaryperiod
ended December 31, 2008 included in the Decemhe2(®IB annual report of Celanese Corporation on
Form 10-K. This consolidated financial statemethiestule is the responsibility of the Company’s mamagnt. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thissmidated financial statement schedule based oauwdits. In our
opinion, such consolidated financial statement dates when considered in relation to the basic obadated
financial statements taken as a whole, presenty,fai all material respects, the information &&th therein.

We consent to the incorporation by reference inrélggstration statements on Form S-8 (Registratios.
333-122789 and 333-128048) and on Form S-3 (Ragistr No. 333-133934) of Celanese Corporation of ou
reports herein.

Our report dated February 12, 2009 contains exptapgaragraphs related to the Company’s adoption o
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, Fait Value Measurementshich was adopted during the y
ended December 31, 2008, to the Company’s adopfiginancial Accounting Standards Board Interpietat
No. 48,Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxeshich was adopted during the year ended DeceBthe2007,
and Statement of Financial Accounting Standards1§8,Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiod a
Other Postretirement Plarend Statement of Financial Accounting Standards1i28.(revised 20045hare-Based
Paymen, both of which were adopted during the year eridedember 31, 2006.

/sl KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
February 12, 200



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 17 CFR 240.13a-14
PROMULGATED UNDER
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, David N. Weidman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of @else Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floivthe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedore
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thtgnal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
report our conclusions about the effectiveness@efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of tHegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’s internal control over financial reportitiat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgelrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettie case of an
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbnbkely to materially affect, the registrant'sternal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofstegnt’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to reggutbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a sagm
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

/s/ David N. Weidmal

David N. Weidman

Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 12, 20(




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO 17 CFR 240.13a-14
PROMULGATED UNDER
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven M. Sterin, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of @else Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or don#ttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimalight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floivthe registrant as
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anare responsible for establishing and maintaimisglosure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actédul3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant hade:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedore
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thtgnal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during theriod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
report our conclusions about the effectiveness@efdisclosure controls and procedures, as of tHegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegint’s internal control over financial reportitiat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgelrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartettie case of an
report) that has materially affected, or is reabbnbkely to materially affect, the registrant'sternal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuat
internal control over financial reporting, to thegistrant’s auditors and the audit committee ofstegnt’s board of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to reggutbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that inesmanagement or other employees who have a sagm
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

/sl Steven M. Steri

Steven M. Sterin

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 12, 20(




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of CelanesepBmation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the ymeti
ending December 31, 2008 as filed with the Seasridind Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), |, David N. Weidman, Chief Executive @fr of the Company, hereby certify, pursuant tdJ18.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9€¢G&dbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeaftsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt
of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdéton
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ David N. Weidmal

David N. Weidman

Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer

Date: February 12, 2009

A signed original of this written statement reqdii®y Section 906 has been provided to CelaneseoCaiipn

and will be retained by Celanese Corporation amdgighed to the Securities and Exchange Commissids staff
upon reques




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of CelanesepBmation (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the ymeti
ending December 31, 2008 as filed with the Seasridind Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), 1, Steven M. Sterin, Senior Vice Presitdland Chief Financial Officer of the Company, lwreertify,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipnt$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @22@hat:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeaftsection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt
of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdéton
and results of operations of the Company.

/sl Steven M. Steri

Steven M. Sterin

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
Date: February 12, 2009

A signed original of this written statement reqdii®y Section 906 has been provided to CelaneseoCaiipn

and will be retained by Celanese Corporation amdgighed to the Securities and Exchange Commissids staff
upon reques




Exhibit 99.1

CELANESE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE Il — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions
Charged tc Charged tc
Balance at Costs and other Balance at
Beginning of Year Expenses Accounts Deductions End of Year

(In $ millions)

Year Ended December 31, 200
Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for doubtful accoun 16 1 — 1) @ 16
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass 71C 8 10) (25¢€) b)) 46(
Year Ended December 31, 200

Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for doubtful accoun 16 6 — 4) @ 18
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass 46C 27 33b) (20¢) (b)) 311
Year Ended December 31, 200

Deducted from asset accour

Allowance for doubtful accoun 18 9 — 2 @ 25
Valuation allowance for deferred tax ass 311 11 33C@b)c. — 652

@ Includes foreign currency translation effects andallected accounts written off, net of recove

) Represents amount charged to goodwill as a refplirchase accounting and Accumulated other congmsitae
income (loss), ne

© Includes changes to valuation allowances associgitbcchanges in net deferred tax assets not iegutt net
expense or benel



